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Corporate Profile
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Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company” or “ZMJ”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability. The Company’s A Shares were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 3 August
were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 December 2012.

The Company is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment manufacturer in the PRC. It focuses on the manufacturing and
supports, and is the largest hydraulic roof support manufacturer in the PRC. The Company is also engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the resear
manufacturing and sale of and servicing for auto parts, as well as the trading of steel and other raw materials. The established operating history, high
strong research and development capabilities, advanced manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network of the Company and its subsic
keys to its success and enable it to maintain its leading position in the coal mining and excavating equipment market and auto parts market.
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Chairman’s Statement EE KL=

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased, on behalf of the
board of directors (the “Board”)
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company
Limited, to present the
annual report of the Group
for the period from 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2018
(the “2018 Annual Report”).

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman
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Dear Shareholders,

2018 is another monumental year in the history of ZMJ’s development. Facing
the complex and ever-changing internal and external environment, the Company
stayed closely in line with its annual operating goal of “structural reshaping to
foster transformation, all-rounded synergy to secure growth, innovation-driven
approach to fabricate fine products, and scientific management to enhance
efficiency”, promoting smooth transition and integration of the acquisition of
SEG project, reorganizing and optimizing the management structure of the
Group, and continuing to deepen the reform of state-owned enterprises. As
a result, the Company experienced rapid development, with a stable and
positive development momentum reflected in each of its business segments
and substantial improvements recorded in major economic indicators such as
revenue and profit.
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In 2018, the revenue generated by the Company amounted to RMB26,011.73
million, representing an increase of 244.68% year-on-year. Net profit
attributable to the parent company amounted to RMB832.34 million,
representing an increase of 192.82% year-on-year.

2018F » RAIEREFEWAARKE26,011.73E8E T A
Lbi8R244.68% : EIRBBR I REIMEERFFEA
R¥832.34E &7t + [R5 R192.82% ©



N IR B AR (D B BR A A 20185 5

. Business Review for 2018

() Continued to deepen reform and push forward
corporate transformation and upgrade

1.

Pushed ahead the reform of centralized functions and
underwent internal reorganization of businesses and
assets

/MJ adjusted its management structure and implemented
a structure of “small headquarters, large segments” based
on its development strategy, taking into account practical
circumstances of its multiple business segments and global
operation. A preliminary segment management structure was
established for coal mining machinery, ASIMCO, SEG, and west
zone transformation and development. As the central unit of the
Group, the headquarters of the Company fully played its role as
the Group manager, value creator, integrator of global resources
and industrial coordinator to achieve efficient operation, and
formed the centralized functions focusing on strategic planning,
human resources development, risk prevention and control as
well as financial operation. The listed Company will act as a
platform for optimizing resource allocation among its business
segments. During the Reporting Period, the Company finished
the adjustment of its headquarters restructuring, with each
business segment capable of independent operation and
responsible for its own profits and losses.

Improved corporate governance structure and facilitated
the change of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management

In 2018, the Company initiated the change in session of its
Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and the management.
The executive Directors of the Company have backgrounds in
investment and finance, coal mining machinery and auto part
business, while the independent Directors have backgrounds in
investment, auditing and law, which are conducive to the long-
term development of the Company. The Board of Supervisors
comprises a combination of internal employee representative
Supervisors and external Supervisors recommended by
shareholders in a bid to bring the supervisory function into
full play. Our management was formed by a combination of
recruitment from external parties and through market-based
selective hiring, with a view to creating a market-oriented
and professional management team to enhance its execution
capability.
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(I) Operation of the coal mining machinery business

1.

Fruitful results in both order placements and collection
of receivables in respect of market development

In 2018, the Company was agile in capturing favorable
opportunities from the bounce back of the coal mining
machinery market. In tandem with strict risk control, we
gravitated towards “orders that generate profit and cash flow”
by seizing high-quality orders, solidifying strategic customers
and actively exploring new markets. As a result, our coal mining
machinery business recorded year-on-year increases of 40%
and 35% in order placements and collection of receivables (both
excluding trade) respectively, both being the highest for the
recent five years.

As for the domestic market, we remained customer-focused,
concentrated advantageous resources on strategic customers,
cemented our partnerships continuously and opened up new
markets. Meanwhile, we kept increasing our efforts in the
collection of receivables, leading to a new high in the total
collection of receivables. As for the international market, we
aligned with the national “Belt and Road” initiative to extend our
international market network. In 2018, we successfully entered
into an agreement for providing complete sets of equipment
for an Indonesian project. At the same time, our focus on key
markets resulted in consecutive breakthroughs in winning the
bid for the second set of hydraulic roof supports of Murray
Energy in the U.S. market.

Intensively exploring the Company’s potential and
steadily improving production capacity and efficiency

Since 2018, the Company has been intensively exploring
its potential. On top of ensuring safety and environmental
protection, it recorded a 26% year-on-year increase in total
production volume for the year, with output value reaching
another historic high. First, in terms of raising average work
efficiency, our efforts to improve 17 major indicators have
led to a surge in average work efficiency of each production
unit. Second, in terms of capacity improvement, the Company
formulated a special plan for capacity enhancement, carried
out special technical research and equipment transformation
for processes with inadequate production capacity, quickly
eliminated the shortcoming in production capacity, and achieved
new breakthroughs in the output of each production unit.
Third, in terms of green production, the Company responded to
increasingly stringent environmental requirements by exploring
new production methods, and consistently reduced the impact
of changing environmental policies on its production capacity.
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3. Scientific research, technological upgrading, and
continuous enhancement of core competitiveness

In 2018, the Company sustained its scientific research for
the coal mining machinery segment as it made continuous
improvement in intelligent product technology and intelligent
manufacturing, with in-depth application of its philosophy of
value project.

First, in respect of technological research and development, the
Company broke multiple world records with its self-developed
ultra mining height hydraulic roof support of 8.8 meters put into
production. It also made preliminary progress in key technologies
relating to intelligent surface, such as inertial navigation system,
video surveillance system, and planned mining technologies
based on transparent working surfaces. Second, in respect of
crafting technology, the Company was active in its intelligent
work planning with pilot projects on connecting rod production
lines and automatic loading and unloading for robot beveling.
The Company also maintained continuous R&D input into
new materials and new crafting technologies, coupled with
additional technical reserves. Third, in respect of technological
innovation, 2018 saw the Company pass the review of National
Demonstration Enterprises for Technological Innovation by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology and obtain
23 authorized patents, including 5 invention patents, 18 utility
model patents and 1 software copyright.

4. Improved operations under innovative management, with
lower cost and higher efficiency

In its coal mining machinery segment, the Company closely
followed its objective to become a high-yield enterprise with
high-quality development, by intensifying its project-based
management for market development, continuously promoting
lean management and Amoeba Management, continuously
beefing up the comprehensive quality of its leaders and staff
and innovating methods and approaches, all in an effort to
bolster its corporate management.

(Ill) Operation of the auto parts segment

In 2018, ASIMCO’s auto parts segment under the Company attained
new record highs in overall operating indicators, as the segment
captured opportunities from the growing commercial vehicles
market and benefited from the market concentration on high-quality
suppliers. Upon completion of the acquisition of equity interests in the
Germany-based SEG project, the Company has been actively engaged
in post-acquisition management through resource integration,
enabling SEG to make its proper transition from a business segment
to an independent operating company with stable business, staff and
development as well as reach new record high in order placements.
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Pushed ahead with restructuring and integration and
increased operation quality

In terms of ASIMCO, we acquired ASIMCO International Trade
Inc. (R¥TEIBIRE HHRR A to further improve
our layout in the global automobile market and enhance
our competitiveness in the international market. ASIMCO
Shuanghuan merged with ASIMCO Foundry for further resource
integration and centralized management, lower management
costs and higher management efficiency. In terms of SEG,
post-acquisition integration and management took place where
SEG was promoted as a new brand to global customers and
media, suppliers and partners, to realize smooth transition of
customers and shape a new brand image. We were also active
in allowing shareholders to play their role in the decision-
making of corporate strategy and significant matters, facilitated
SEG in global resource integration, sped up the adjustment of
its industry chain layout, and responded to customers at a faster
pace, to push for stable growth of sale revenue. In addition, our
new factories in Changsha and Changchun have commenced
production, which significantly boosted our production
capability.

Bolstered technological research and development as
well as core competitiveness

In terms of ASIMCO, we fully tapped into the brand advantages
of the Company as a provincial enterprise technology center
and in the industry, and undertook 20 major provincial and
municipal projects for science and technology. In 2018, we
completed such key projects as light and high-intensity cylinder
blocks and heads of vermicular graphite cast iron material,
combination of camshaft sets as an alternative to traditional
steel shafts and cast iron shafts, piston ring surface processing
technology which met the requirements of environmental
protection and Euro VI vehicle emission standards, and high-
end modular brake products. In addition, we organized SEG
and ASIMCO to set up a team to investigate the development
trends of the automotive industry and the motor industry, and
worked out a plan for SEG’s future research and development
on electrification technology. Currently, we concentrated our
advantageous resources on 48V hybrid power technology which
has been applied to mass production and large-scale market
promotion. We have become the motor supplier of 48V energy
recovery acceleration subsystems for mainstream automakers
such as Daimler Benz and BMW. Meanwhile, the Company has
been centered on the technological development trends of the
future automobile industry, starting to establish its presence in
technologies of 48V P>0 and high-voltage motors.
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3. Set up a control system for better investment control

ZMJ has integrated the management system of multinational
corporations with state-owned assets supervision and the
system of listed companies, to establish and improve the
management reporting system and financial management
system of its investee companies. Meanwhile, from strategy,
investment and development perspectives, we allowed
shareholders to play an active role in guiding the healthy and
stable development of our investee companies.

Il. Industry Landscape and Trends

1.

Macroeconomic conditions

Based on an overall analysis of domestic and international situation,
China will face an even tougher and more complex environment in
its development in 2019, with more and bigger risks and challenges
ahead which may or may not be expectable. However, China
remains in a critical strategic stage brimming with opportunities,
where it enjoys adequate resilience, huge potential and surging
innovative strength. Its economy also sustains a long-term positive
trend. As pointed out in the 2019 Government Work Report by the
State Council, it is necessary to maintain high-quality development
and the supply-side structural reform as the main theme, deepen
market-oriented reform, further open up to the outside world with
high quality, and accelerate the development of a modern economic
system. Work will continue on three major campaigns, to stimulate
the vitality of micro entities, innovate and improve macro-control,
and proceed with growth stabilization, reform, structural adjustment,
improvement of people’s livelihood and risk prevention in a well-
planned manner. Economic growth will remain within a reasonable
range, with further efforts to stabilize employment, finance, foreign
trade, foreign capital, investment and expectations, so as to boost
market confidence.
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2. Development of the coal mining machinery industry

(1)

@

Stability of the coal industry

As for the domestic market, 2019 will see stability in policy
regulation over the coal market, with a sustained dynamic
equilibrium between supply and demand, as price gradually
enters a reasonable range. Overall, thermal coal will enjoy a
stable trajectory, with cyclical price fluctuation due to seasonal
factors. In 2019, the thermal coal market will embrace more
stability, while the market of coal mining machinery stays in the
stable development stage. In particular, developing countries
such as India, Vietnam and the Philippines will experience year-
on-year growth in coal production and demand for coal mining
machinery, given their growing demographic dividend.

Stiffer competition in the coal mining machinery industry

Regarding the domestic coal mining machinery industry, greater
profitability of coal enterprises has fully unleashed the demand
for equipment renewal. The coal mining machinery industry saw
sustained improvement in economic efficiency, with much better
performance of major coal mining machinery enterprises in the
PRC. The increase in coal production technology and equipment
investment will keep unleashing the production capacity of
coal mining machinery, which is expected to result in abundant
supply in the coal mining machinery industry.

Regarding the overseas coal mining machinery industry,
globalization has caused some international manufacturers
of coal mining machinery to shift their competition from
a comprehensive scale to market segments and industry
chains, or to pursue market expansion and higher market
status through merger and acquisition, alliance and channel
integration. This poses fresh challenges to domestic coal mining
machinery enterprises who are involved in international market
competition.

Nevertheless, being the world’s largest R&D and manufacturing
enterprise for hydraulic roof supports used for comprehensive
coal mining, ZMJ has a considerable market share and
apparent technology advantages. Widely recognized for its
product quality in the market, the Company presents an evident
edge in brand value, advantageous innovation of product
technology, production and operation, as well as stronger
market competitiveness.
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Auto industry: Short-term stagnation and room for
improvement in the long run

According to statistics from the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers, in 2018, China recorded its first negative growth in
both automobile production and sales for the past 28 years. This
signals that the auto industry has transited from high-speed growth to
low-speed, stable and high-quality development. China will roll out a
series of policies in 2019, including tax breaks for the manufacturing
sector, and further deepening the reform and opening up to the
outside world. This, together with the thawing China-US trade
dispute, has created better conditions for the development of the
manufacturing sector. In January 2019, the National Development
and Reform Commission and other ten government departments
and commissions made a joint announcement to propose multiple
initiatives for promoting automobile consumption, in a bid to better
meet the travel needs of residents. Since China’s average vehicle
ownership lags far behind that of developed countries, the relatively
low vehicle ownership and high income growth generate new demand
for automobiles. It is expected that there remains considerable room
for production and sales growth in the Chinese automobile industry, as
it will continue to work towards high-quality development.

Meanwhile, the auto parts industry faces fresh challenges and
opportunities from the global policy on energy conservation and
emissions reduction, as well as the automobile industry evolving
towards intelligence and electrification. Given unsaturated sales
volume of passenger cars in emerging economies such as China and
India as well as the structural change in mature markets such as
Europe, the US and Japan, the global automobile market will continue
to grow.
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lll. Development Strategies of the Company

The Company’s development strategies will be: strategic positioning as an
international enterprise, market-oriented corporate governance, high-end
industry layout, and globalization of talents

Firstly, strategic positioning as an international enterprise: Economic
globalization has become an irreversible trend. By firmly capitalizing on the
strategic opportunities brought by the national “Belt and Road” initiative,
ZMJ will execute the “go global” strategy by optimizing its resource across
the globe. It will also proactively integrate itself into the global networks of
innovation, manufacturing and market, and push ahead with transformation
and upgrade of its industrial structure. In addition, ZMJ will benchmark its
own level of operation and management against international standards,
continuously explore the room for survival and development, and establish
itself as an international large-scale conglomerate.

Secondly, market-oriented corporate governance: A sound mechanism
is pivotal to the virtuous cycle of development of an enterprise. As an
“A+H” listed company fully exposed to competition in the global market,
the Company needs to further deepen its institutional reform in line with
national policy orientations: capitalizing on the “Reform of Hundreds
of State-owned Enterprises” (2 B 77&)) under the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council
as an opportunity to further optimize its shareholding structure and
improve its corporate governance; establishing a board of directors with
market-oriented operation to serve as a platform for corporate governance,
for expression of capital allocation and for decision-making; and further
carrying out the professional manager system among senior management
staff and exploring a mid- to long-term mechanism for incentives and
restrictions.
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Thirdly, high-end industry layout: Innovation is the fundamental way to
high-quality development of the manufacturing sector. As such, it is
necessary to stress on optimizing the industrial structure, comprehensively
improve the quality of development, and procure various industrial
segments to evolve towards the mid- to high-end of the global value
chain. Given that the coal mining machinery segment will move towards
comprehensive, intelligent and international development, we will develop
into a world-class supplier and service provider of comprehensive coal
mining machinery, and promote the green, intelligent, efficient and safe
development of comprehensive coal mining technology. Regarding our auto
parts business which has ASIMCO and SEG as the main operating entities,
we will center on being intelligent, electrical and light, to build up an auto
parts enterprise with global influence and contribute to environmental
protection, energy conservation and emissions reduction of China and the
world at large.

Fourthly, globalization of talents: Talents are the ultimate source of
corporate reform and innovation, and the greatest resource for corporate
development. By steadfastly executing its strategy of talent-driven
development under the concept of “innovation, open-mindedness and
inclusion”, the Company has worked to continuously optimize the existing
human resources structure under a market-oriented mindset, create a
scientific system of talents cultivation and development, and provide clear
channels for career development, a reasonable remuneration system,
global perspectives and a market-oriented mechanism. It also has a
human resources mechanism that combines cultivation and recruitment
to attract outstanding talents and thus lay a solid foundation for building a
long-lasting ZMJ.
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IV. Business Plan for 2019 ‘2019 F EREETE

Based on its comprehensive analysis of the development trends in coal
mining machinery and auto parts industries, the Company has established
its business plan for 2019 and the development strategy centered on
“strategic positioning as an international enterprise, market-oriented
corporate governance, high-end industry layout and globalization of
talents”. We will seize the favorable opportunities from the deepening
reform of state-owned enterprises, optimize structure for transformation,
deepen the reform to stimulate vitality, conduct risk prevention and control
as well as stronger compliance, and improve capital operation efficiency,
striving for stable increase in results of operations. Our work in 2019 is
contemplated as follows:

() Continue to promote corporate reform to realize
healthy development

1. Continue to restructure the Group for further
transformation and upgrade

In line with its future development strategy and the reform
objective of “small headquarters, large segments”, the Group
will continue to restructure itself and reform the centralized
functions so that each of the headquarters’ functions will be
performed in a concrete manner. Furthermore, we will sort out
the existing business segments and subsidiaries, and push
forward the reorganization of our internal business segments so
that they attain synergetic development. In the meantime, we
will narrow down our management through equity transfer or
settlement and withdrawal of the subsidiaries that have ceased
operation or cannot improve their operation due to macro
conditions.

2. Continue to deepen the internal reform to stimulate
business vitality

(1) We will deepen the reform of our remuneration incentive
system by further aligning our remuneration system
with the market, ramping up our salary-based and
performance-oriented remuneration system, and establish
a scientific and reasonable mechanism for remuneration
adjustment. We will explore long-term incentives for the
management teams of the Group and its subsidiaries, to
inspire the entrepreneurial enthusiasm of team members.
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(2)  We will establish a global human resources management
system, and optimize our mechanism for retaining and
cultivating outstanding talents of the Group. Talent
exchanges will be enhanced, in order to cultivate
exceptional talents with international perspective and
capable of local management in China.

(3)  Within the Group, we will work comprehensively to
construct intelligent factories where our management will
take place in a digital and intelligent fashion. Work will
start from partial transformation and move on to developing
a complete system for intelligent manufacturing, building
intelligent factories, and bringing about all-rounded
upgrade in production management, technical process and
corporate governance.

Strengthen risk management to assure compliant
operation

We will further improve our corporate risk management system
with internal control and audit at its core, to ensure that
corporate operation complies with laws and regulations and
our assets remain safe. We will further procure our Board of
Supervisors as well as internal audit and disciplinary inspection
bodies to perform their functions so as to forge a joint force to
ensure our corporate operation in compliance with laws and
regulations.

() Strengthen the Group’s management to procure the
robust growth of respective business segments

1.

We will strengthen the development of a centralized information
system for the Group’s management and enable the Group
to manage its domestic and overseas subsidiaries through
information-based approaches, standard processes and well-
established systems. We will improve our global financial control
system and capital management, work out a unified taxation
planning system, establish a mechanism for hedging exchange
rates, and ramp up our risk prevention and control system.

We will promote robust growth in each business segment and
underscore the self-sustaining ability as well as independent
development and growth capability of each segment and
subsidiary.

Chairman’s Statement EEE &=

@ BYNREHMANEREEER
BILEBRRESAT ES HEH
B o PIERAA B - BB ABERR
FMPEALERENOESAL

® E@W%zﬁﬁ\ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ'g
ﬁgﬁm@%m Beelb - BB
HIBETENB EEERSS - T
i”%lf TEAEEEE - BifT
ESBN2HFE

3. MEEBEE BRESEE

E—HRETEANE - ABAZOND
ERBEERE  BREFLLZAEER
MEERZ - E—THBEEFE - NEE
BRI R ) {’Fﬁﬁ H/Iﬂzﬁ**"
BN EREFAESRE

(D) EE LB - HEE
MBI =

1T MREEEZEERA -MESLERRR
R/ OBRCEBEEAR  RINFRREEDN
E8E - miE(E - BUE(E - RETERIR
e ERRAR  rLESERE - iﬁﬁ
%RH&"’EEU N EIIE%%WW&%H
BETTERE &

BEXER

2 HBREFRBNBRER  REBLS
R - BEFRFNBULETT - BRBERERN
BHEAERRES

17



18

Zhengzhou Coal Min

ing Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Chairman’s Statement EEE &£ =

The coal mining machinery segment will follow its development
strategy of “being intelligent, comprehensive, international
and social”, by promoting the studies on intelligent products.
Meanwhile, the segment will take a long-term perspective by
further optimizing its structure in respect of market, product,
production, inventories and personnel, so as to create
sustained favorable conditions for the Company’s high-quality
development.

With regard to the auto parts segment, ASIMCO emphasizes on
the development and promotion of new products and technical
processes, with additional efforts in developing new markets.
Development projects will be implemented according to the
need of operational development, to meet the development
needs of future production capacity and technical reserves.
We will fully capitalize on our brand advantages, vigorously
explore the international market, attach great importance to
the after-sale market, and seize the development opportunity
of the after-sale market in the auto industry. SEG will continue
with post-acquisition integration and management so that SEG
and ASIMCO can complement each other with their respective
strengths and deliver synergy. In order to provide customers
with the transformation from engineering products to integrated
electromechanical products, we will continue to optimize
the industrial layout of SEG, attain a comprehensive layout
for energy-saving products such as 48V BRM, promote the
research and development of new energy technology and strive
to become a world-leading provider of electrification solutions.

In 2019, despite the challenges we face, opportunities will be embodied in

difficulties and

new challenges will breed fresh development. The Board of

Directors of the Company will revolve around its operational goals for the
year 2019, actively work on innovation, initiate reforms, work to deliver new
development, and bring higher returns to the shareholders and the staff.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express

my sincere grati
Company.

tude to the entire staff, shareholders, clients and partners of the

Jiao Chengyao

Chairman

26 March 2019
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Review of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group achieved sales revenue
of RMB26,011.73 million, representing an increase of 244.68% from the
corresponding period of last year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
was RMB832.34 million, representing an increase of 192.82% from the
corresponding period of last year. Earnings per share was RMB0.48. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had borrowing balances of RMB2,867.83 million.

Overview

The Group is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment
and auto parts manufacturer in the PRC. Our established operating history,
high quality products, strong research and development capabilities, advanced
manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network are the keys
to our success and allow us to maintain our leading position in the PRC coal
mining and excavating equipment market. With the completion of ASIMCO and
SEG Automotive Germany GmbH acquisition, the Group has duly entered the
auto parts market and is engaged in two principal businesses, namely coal
mining machinery and auto parts.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth a summary, for the year of 2018 indicated, of our

consolidated results of operations.

RERE

%o

TRENETEERAR T N\ENRAEEEER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB millions RMB millions
ARMEHETR ARBEST
Revenue WA 26,011.73 7,546.70
Cost of sales SHE KA (21,159.85) (5,899.30)
Gross profit EF 4,851.88 1,647.40
Other income Hublg A 106.06 11212
Other gains and losses H Aoz &8 (174.50) (85.26)
Selling and distribution expenses THE Mo R (1,044.12) (400.07)
Administrative expenses TR (1,203.18) (709.65)
Research and development expenses fEEE A (1,030.20) (265.43)
Reversal of net impairment losses on financial and contract assets% gt & 4 [8& B 5 1B F Z 46.95 139.01
Share of (loss)/profit of associates FEMRE & AR (E1B) 5 T (49.64) 18.40
Share of profit of a joint venture FE(E—R A B ERT 5.91 6.19
Finance costs IR (220.42) (39.68)
Profit before tax RRELADEF 1,288.74 423.03
Income tax expense FriSHiR X (349.83) (82.87)
Profit for the year FERER 938.91 340.16
Profit for the year attributable to: T AT FERER
Owners of the Company ARARIPEE 832.35 284.25
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A 106.56 55.91
938.91 340.16
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Results of Operations (Continued)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEER ARBEETT
Other comprehensive income: Hib2mEukEs :
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: & RE# EFr 718 = 182569
EEH -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations RIKEN A ENEFTE (60.99) -
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through JAA T (EETE B H@ &t A b2
other comprehensive income HARENSEENAFES (17.59) -
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AJEEEFT P E BB -
Exchange differences arising on translation MEE A ME N Z5E (6.25) (5.98)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale financial assets AHEENEREEN A TERS - 13.29
Cash flow hedging WEmELH 2.28 (71.02)
Share of fair value gain on available-for-sale financial assets of ~ Br AR FTIS 14 FE(E — R4 A 7
an associate, net of related income tax AMEEENEEENRATFEY
=5 - 22.73
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FRHEHMZEEX -
net of income tax HIRRFT88 (82.55) (40.58)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREZEMBP AL 856.36 299.58
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: LT A THEEFEREZHEWAZLE :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NE] Sy 749.80 243.67
Non-controlling interests IR R 106.56 55.91
856.36 299.58
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER
— Basic (RMB cents) —EERK(ARES) 48.04 16.67

21
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Revenue

Our revenue increased by 244.68% from RMB7,546.70 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to RMB26,011.73 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, mainly because of the acquisition of the SEG Group. In
addition, revenue from the coal mining machinery segment also recorded a
significant increase of 73.77% as compared to that of the last period because
of the bounce back in demand of domestic coal market in 2018, which resulted
in an increase in domestic market demand for the Group’s products and the
corresponding increase in the Group’s revenue from hydraulic roof supports.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by product and
business (in RMB millions):

MBS AT

WA
AEBRABBEE-_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE
R AREET 546,708 & TTIENN24468% 2 EE —T— N\4F

+TZA=T—BLEFEMNARE6011.7388T =2
EUESEGEREATER © Bhoh - IR MAR B A R
AR EFA73.77%  BRE-_Z— \FREAKRKRTSH
SKEIRE - S BINT S AN B E & k8 g il R A &
ER R 7 ZE UL A AR FE = FHRTER -

TR AEBIRER R EBEDOBAS (EAL
AREBET)

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-ZE-\F+ZA=+—HLEFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of

machinery auto parts Total
BUERESE  RESETIM s

RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions
AREEER AREBET AREEET

Sales of auto parts REEIREAEE - 17,658.66 17,658.66
Sales of hydraulic roof supports TRIEE S B SHE 5,107.14 - 5,107.14
Revenue from steel and other materials trading  #f#2) & H 4th KL S U A 2,052.72 86.29 2,139.01
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery BB BD (4 49 85 868.33 - 868.33
Sales of other coal mining equipment HEtHERREnHEeE 136.96 - 136.96
Other revenue E A 101.63 - 101.63
8,266.78 17,744.95 26,011.73
Year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of

machinery auto parts Total
BUEETEME ST E T 5t
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions
AREEHET ARBEBHET ARBEEET
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RBZRHHE 2,957.15 - 2,957.15
Sales of auto parts REEIEAEE - 2,712.70 2,712.70
Revenue from steel and other materials trading  #f42) & £ i R RHE S &9 A 1,034.46 76.57 1,111.03
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery — (EREHGRFR (E R 84 E 557.61 - 557.61
Sales of other coal mining equipment HihE R ENEE 14414 - 14414
Other revenue E g A 64.07 - 64.07

4,757.43 2,789.27 7,546.70
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Cost of Sales

As the Group recorded an increase in our revenue, our cost of sales increased
by 258.68% from RMB5,899.30 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB21,159.85 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Gross Profit

Driven by the above factors, our gross profit increased by 194.52% from
RMB1,647.41 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB4,851.88
million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The change in gross profit primarily comprised of two parts. The gross profit
margin of the coal mining machinery segment remained fairly flat and increased
slightly from 20.0% for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 23.7% for the
year ended 31 December 2018. As of 31 December 2018, the gross profit
margin of the auto parts segment of the Group decreased from 24.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to 16.2% for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Therefore, the overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased from 21.8%
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 18.7% for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Other Income

Our other income decreased by 5.4% from RMB112.12 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to RMB106.06 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Other Gains and Losses

Our other gains and losses turned from loss of RMB85.26 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to loss of RMB174.50 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, primarily as a result of the addition of our impairment of
goodwill.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses increased by 160.98% from RMB400.07
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB1,044.12 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018, mainly due to the consolidation of the SEG
Group during the year.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 69.55% from RMB709.65 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB1,203.18 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, mainly due to the consolidation of the SEG Group during
the year.
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Staff Costs and Remuneration Policy

Our staff costs increased by 275.30% from RMB1,000.59 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB3,755.21 million for year ended 31
December 2018, primarily as a result of the completion of the acquisition of
the SEG Group during the year. The staff remuneration of the Group comprises
of basic salary and bonus payment, which is determined with reference to the
operating results of the Group and results of performance assessment on the
employees. The Group adheres to the orientation towards efficiency and results
as well as the focus on top-tier staff. It also strives to ensure scientific and
reasonable allocation of income.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses increased by 288.12% from
RMB265.43 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB1,030.20
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, mainly because of the
consolidation of the SEG Group during the year.

The focus of development work at SEG Automotive is on continuously further
developing and newly creating product platforms and on the prompt fulfilment
of customer projects with customer-specific applications, covering generators,
starter motors and Components for the 48-Volt Mild Hybrid Applications

Finance Costs

Our finance costs increased from RMB39.68 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB220.42 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
because of the new bank borrowings raised by the Group and the interest on
redemption liabilities incurred during the year.

Profit Before Tax

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate, our profit before
tax increased by 204.65% from RMB423.03 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB1,288.74 million for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense increased by 322.16% from RMB82.87 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB349.83 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, primarily because of the significant increase in taxable
income. Our effective tax rate increased to 27.15% for the year ended 31
December 2018 from 19.59% for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Total comprehensive income for the year

In view of the combined effect of the above factors, our profit for the year
and the aggregate of comprehensive income increased by 185.85% from
RMB299.58 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB856.36
million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Based on the factors referred to above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 192.82% from RMB284.25 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to RMB832.34 million for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Trade and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2018, trade and other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB6,327.00 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB433.93 million as compared to approximately RMB5,893.07 million as at
the end of 2017, mainly because of the consolidation of the SEG Group during
the year.

Liquidity

The Group’s net current assets were approximately RMB6,968.04 million (31
December 2017: RMB5,143.32 million) and the current ratio was 1.60 as at 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: 1.89). The decrease in current ratio was
mainly attributable to the increase in trade payables and borrowings.

Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had RMB2,746.04 million in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of
cash and bank deposits.
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2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB millions RMB millions

ARBBEER ARBEHETT

Net cash from operating activities KRBTSR S35 1,072.74 1,237.87
Net cash used in investing activities WA EREFTEIR S 35 (1,747.63) (4,313.10)
Net cash from financing activities BB EE RIS FEE 1,715.93 2,233.92
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ReERESEYLMORD ) F5E 1,041.04 (841.31)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXRFEHMTE (40.18) (45.91)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year FUHNRS RS EEY 1,745.18 2,632.40
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year FRNIRERIRESEEY 2,746.04 1,745.18
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Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities in 2018 was RMB1,072.74 million. Cash
inflow primarily comprised profit before taxation of RMB1,288.74 million,
adjusted for; () an increase in inventory of RMB696.74 million; (i) depreciation
of property, plant and equipment of RMB796.02 million, (i) amortization of
intangible assets of RMB175.05 million, (iv) finance cost of RMB220.42 million,
(v) impairment of goodwill of RMB109.13 million. The cash inflow was offset
by an increase in financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income of RMB3,245.51 million, a decrease in trade and other receivables of
RMB2,113.14 million, an increase in trade and other payables of RMB841.39
million.

Investing Activities

Net cash outflow in investing activities in 2018 was RMB1,747.63 million,
primarily comprising: (i) payment of RMB3,704.24 million for the purchase
of short-term structured deposits; (i) receipt of proceeds of RMB3,412.00
million from the disposal of short-term structured deposits; (i) payment of
RMB426.95 million for the acquisition of SEG Group and ASIMCO International
Inc.; (iv) payment for pledged bank deposits of RMB2,719.58 million, primarily
for obtaining acquisition loans and for the issuance of bank notes that we
used to purchase raw materials; (v) withdrawal of pledged bank deposits of
RMB2,733.49 million; (vi) payment of RMB843.92 million for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment; and (vii) payment of RMB410.66 million for the
purchase of intangible assets.

Financing Activities

Net cash from financing activities in 2018 was RMB1,715.93 million, consisting
of (i) net cash inflow from borrowing of RMB2,041.59 million; (i) cash outflow
from the repayment of borrowings in the amount of RMB206.00 million; and
(iii) cash outflow from the payment of dividends in the amount of RMB140.83
million.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of RMB1,287.23 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, for purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and leasehold land and land use rights.
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Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Capital Commitments

As of 31 December 2018, our commitments consisted of capital commitments
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that have been authorized
and contracted for in the amount of RMB138.11 million and operating lease
commitments of RMB794.66 million.

Contingent Liabilities

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment
of the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure to
the Group that may result from the default of these endorsed and derecognised
notes receivable at the end of each reporting period is as follows:
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB millions RMB millions
AREEER AREEET
Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse HERREOMARERDREE
e 824.71 74717
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Working Capital and Indebtedness

The following table sets forth details of our current assets and liabilities as of 31

December 2018 (in RMB millions):

LCEETRAE

TRENBE-ZT—/\F+ A=t HELEERHE
ENBEFHBEEL : ARBBET)

2018 2017
—EBE-N\E T+
RMB millions RMB millions
AREEET ARBEST
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights THE 4 3 J2 4 b F#E - 11.55
Finance lease receivables, current portion mEHERWHIBECREE D) 24.96 31.47
Long-term receivables, current portion REAEUIE GRENEE D) 131.92 141.86
Loans receivable from associates and a joint venture FEYEE S AT R —REEEER 9.75 34.00
Inventories VeSS 3,960.84 1,832.13
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EW IR 6,327.00 5,893.07
Transferred trade receivables EEEMNE Z ERGIE 242.88 225.30
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss UAFEEAE BHES T ABED
TRMEE 355.54 -
Financial assets at fair value through other WA ENZEBHEEFH T AH MBS
comprehensive income MmN mEE 3,955.29 -
Derivative financial instruments PTAESRIE 4.40 -
Other financial assets Hivem&EE - 62.00
Tax recoverable A U B 55 18 29.66 17.37
Bank deposits RITHER 884.48 954.21
Cash and cash equivalents Ee RIREZEEY 2,746.04 1,745.18
18,672.76 10,948.14
GURRENT LIABILITIES P b=k
Trade and other payables E 5 R EMERRIE 8,130.55 4,432.70
Contract liabilities ARAE 1,390.87 -
Advance from customers ZERE - 814.71
Income tax liabilities FrIisiia’ 147.15 27.89
Borrowings ==Y 1,019.59 191.00
Provisions A 738.50 113.22
Liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables HEEENE ZEWFIEB BN
aE 242.88 225.30
Derivative financial instruments TESRT A 35.18 -
11,704.72 5,804.82
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 6,968.04 5,143.32

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB6,968.04 million (31 December 2017: RMB5,143.32 million) and current
ratio of 1.60 (31 December 2017: 1.89). The decrease in current ratio was
primarily due to the increase in trade payables and borrowings for the period.
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Working Capital and Indebtedness (Continued)

As of 31 December 2018, the balance of the Group’s outstanding borrowings
was RMB2,867.83 million, of which RMB1,019.59 million are current portion (31
December 2017: outstanding borrowings was RMB1,009.00 million, of which
RMB191 million was current portion).

As of 31 December 2018, our available credit line from various financial
institutions amounted to RMB4,181 million. As of 31 December 2017,
approximately RMB7,931 million of our credit lines from various domestic and
foreign financial institutions remained unused.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the net liabilities (total liabilities minus
cash and cash equivalent) at the end of the year by total equity at the end of the
year and multiplying by 100%.

As of 31 December 2018, our gearing ratio was 106% (31 December 2017:
53%).
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Liquidity Risk REBESEE
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orlessthan 3 months to 1 yearto 2yearsto  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2years 5 years cashflows amount
il REXS FSigchcka
THRE  HSRER  MEAEIE 1522 2ERGE MEEE REE
RMBmillions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMB millions ~ RMB millions
AREBET ARKABT AREEET AREEET AREEER AREEET
The Group by |
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-A=1+-A
Non-derivative financial liabilties HiEsREE
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE - 7,141 916.76 - - 8,128.17 8,128.17
Liabiliies associated with transferred trade 27 2JE40E S lzE
receivables ERmMaE - 242.88 - - - 242.88 242.88
Borrowings Fﬁx 3.0 1575 1,061.25 763.29 1,167.41 3,007.70 2,870.80
Redemption liabiities (note 43) B GETY) 10 - - - 1425.28 142528 11779
Derivative financial liabiities iTEeRaRE
Not designated as hedging instruments e E ¥ TA - 35.18 - - - 3.18 35.18
7,505.22 1,978.01 763.29 2,592.69 12,839.21 1245495
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables,
long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative assets, loans receivable
from associates and a joint venture, financial asset as fair value through profit or
loss, pledged bank deposit, cash and cash equivalents.

To manage the risk with respect to pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, structured deposits and derivative assets, the Group placed them in
or entered into the contract with the banks with high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to reputable and
creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and an appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation of credit limits
to individual customers and recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business of manufacture of coal
mining machinery, the Group generally receives advances in the form of notes
receivable or cash from customers (which approximate 30% of the contract
price) before delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts, normally a
credit period of 0 to 90 days is granted to its customers.

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment
of the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on historical
credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 3 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate borrowings (see note 33 for details). Currently, the Group does not have
a specific policy to manage its interest rate risk, but management will closely
monitor interest rate exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Please refer to note 3(a) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs for
more quantitative information about the Company’s credit risk.

Currency Risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various non-functional currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is primarily with
respect to non-functional currency bank balances, and receivable (collectively
“Non-Functional Currency Items”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
certain foreign currency exposure by using foreign exchange forward contracts
when the need arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk between USD/RMB,
EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB. Please refer to note 3(a) of the financial statement
prepared under IFRSs for more quantitative information about the Group’s
currency risk.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (£ &), aged 55, is an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Jiao is a professor-level senior engineer. He
graduated from China Institute of Mining and Technology (H [ 7 2 £2B5)
(now known as China University of Mining and Technology (7 [E A& 3£ K £2)),
majoring in mechanical design, manufacture and automation and obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1985. He obtained a master’s degree
in engineering from China University of Mining and Technology in December
2003, and obtained a doctoral degree in economics from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology in December 2007. From July 1985 to May 1992,
he served as a technician, a production dispatcher and an engineer of the No.
1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From
May 1992 to May 1993, he was the manager of Zhengshen Import Vehicles
Repair Station (2578 [ 35 8 #& & uk). From May 1993 to January 1998, he
was the deputy plant manager and the plant manager of the No. 1 machinery
subplant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From January 1998
to July 2000, he was the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the plant manager
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002 to December
2008, he served as the Chairman and general manager of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company (ZCMM). Since December 2008, he has been the
Chairman of the Company. Since July 2015, he was appointed as a director and
the chairman of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Jia Hao (Z3%), aged 49, is an executive Director and the Vice Chairman
of the Company. Mr. Jia graduated from University of Shanghai for Science
and Technology in 1991, majoring in mechanical engineering. He successively
worked at Guangzhou Electrical and Mechanical Scientific Research Institute
of China National Machinery Industry Corporation where he was responsible
for design and research, and Parker Hannifin Motion & Control (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., a foreign company, where he was responsible for sales. In April 2001, he
obtained a Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree from China Europe
International Business School. He then worked as the general manager of the
investment division of Salim Group (China) Company Limited (= {b ¥ &£ F
(7 [ ) A BR A &), a foreign company. In March 2006, he began to serve
as the president of Shanghai Huili Group Company Limited and a director of
Shanghai Huili Company Limited (_= % & B8 A% {5 A BR A 7)), both of which
are the subsidiaries of Salim Group. From March 2014 to February 2018, he
was the deputy general manager of the Company. Since February 2018, he has
been the Vice Chairman and the general manager of the Company.

BE
HITEF

BASRLE 555  BWEARRRTESREFR K
EERFBEPBRITREN - FR—NAN\RFLARER
B ER CRPBIER AR ) M REEA e
¥ BEIZSZ2LE: —_TT=F+_-F  E5H
BBEABITRRELTSM  —TT+F+ - AEGEF
RHEARBEBEEHE L2 - —AN\EFEA-—— NN
FRA - EEMNREEREE — DB E « £ERE
8 TR —ANWZFRA-—hA=FHA £
EREQTHHEBIEE - —WN=FAA——hANhN
F—H  EBNEEEREE D REIRE - BE
—NNNE-R-—ZTTFLH - EBMNEREERR
BAlME —ETTFLA-ZTTF1+A - £ENE
BERBBEE  — 2T F+A-—TZEN\F+_-A-
FEMNEEERERGREFRRESRRBLIE  —
ZZNF+_RAES  FARFRESRR _T—RHFt
AESEZERAREREEREREARETIARE
EREER-

BESE 4057 BIARRMTESREESR - B
EER—NN—FEER BT AEMETER &L
BB E E N B E R R R A BRARE T
EONVERE - RTERSREGHER DEERA AN
EWEETIE: ST —FWNA  AEEBRIEEESMR
MBALEBIE T2 : ZIEFIINERE - =MEESE
E(FBDHBRARIREIPLLLRE  —TTNF=-ALMT
=MEEEBFEN LSERBEEERAGAE - L8
EEROARARESR: _T—NF=AZ2=-_F—N\F
— A EARRREELE s - \F-_AES5 K
NEIEIEER MBI -



N IR B AR (D B BR A A 20185 5

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xiang Jiayu (/513X /), aged 53, is an executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Xiang is a senior engineer. From September 1980 to July 1984, he studied
at the Department of Electrical and Mechanical Engineering of Jiaozuo Mining
Institute (£5 {EHE 2 Z2F5), majoring in mechanization. He studied at the China
University of Mining and Technology, Master’s Department (Beijing) (7 B 5%
2R EHL R T35 4 #6) from September 1988 to January 1991, majoring
in mining mechanical engineering and obtained a master’s degree. From July
1984 to August 1988, he lectured at Yima Mining Technical School (= 55 1%
EBEAR). From May 1991 to December 1992, he was a designer at the
research center of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December
1992 to July 1995, he was the executive officer of the No. 2 research center
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From August 1995 to November
1998, he was the deputy plant manager at the Huanghe Electronics Institute (&
A EBHER) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From November
1998 to July 2000, he was the executive officer of the hydraulic project center
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002,
he served as the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From October 2002 to October 2008, he was the deputy general
manager and standing deputy general manager of ZCMM. From October 2008
to December 2008, he was a director and the general manager of ZCMM. From
December 2008 to February 2015, he was a Director and the general manager
of the Company. From February 2015 to February 2018, he was the Vice
Chairman of the Company. Since December 2014, he has been the secretary to
the Party Committee of the Company. Since July 2015, he has been a director
of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. Since February 2018, he has
been a Director of the Company.

Mr. Fu Zugang ({338R), aged 53, is an executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Fu is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at
Wuhan Technology College (% T 225x) (now known as Wuhan University of
Technology (EtEEIE T A22)), majoring in casting and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to July 2000, he served as a technician,
an assistant engineer, an engineer, a senior engineer, a team leader of
technology team, an assistant to the plant manager, a deputy plant manager
and a plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002
to November 2006, he was the chairman of the labor union of ZCMM. From
November 2006 to December 2008, he was a director and a deputy general
manager of ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2012, he was a deputy
general manager of the Company. From February 2012 to February 2015, he
was a Director and a deputy general manager of the Company. From February
2015 to February 2018, he was the general manager of the Company. Since
February 2018, he has been a Director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wang Xinying (£ %), aged 53, is an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985,
he studied at the Department of Mining Engineering of Chongging University
(EEAE), majoring in mining machinery. From September 2004 to July
2007, he studied at the School of Mechanical Engineering of China University of
Mining and Technology and obtained postgraduate qualification and a master’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to October 1992, he was an engineer of
the equipment department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory, and
worked and studied in Toyota Motor Corporation between January 1991 and
January 1992, From October 1992 to July 1994, he was a deputy manager
of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station. From July 1994 to December
1996, he was a deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of machinery repair of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December 1996 to July 2000,
he was a deputy director of the production department of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to January 2005, he was the head
of the corporate planning division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From January 2005 to December 2008, he was a deputy general manager of
ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2015, he was a Director and deputy
general manager of the Company. He was appointed as a director of Luoyang
LYC Bearing Co., Ltd. with effect from 29 June 2016 and was appointed as
the chairman of Luoyang LYC Bearing Co., Ltd. with effect from 30 June 2016.
Since February 2015, he has been a Director of the Company.

Mr. Wang Bin (3E;&), aged 59, is an executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from the Department of Thermal Engineering of Tsinghua University
in 1982 and later graduated with an MBA from Tsinghua University in 1998.
From 1982 to 1990, he was an engineer/executive officer of the research
institute under the State Economic and Trade Commission. From 1990 to 1997,
he was the manager of China market of the U.S.— based General Electric. From
1997 t0 2005, he was the general manager of ASIMCQ’s division of combustion
system. From 2005 to 2010, he was the general manager of Cummins (U.S.)
headquarters and of the CES division of China region. Since 2010, he has been
the president and CEO of ASIMCO Group. Since February 2018, he has been a
Director of the Company.

BX)
HITES @)

THLKE 535 BEARRMITES - THERES
BIRE - B —HN—FNA-—WN\EFLA &
BERAERBEIREZRLUEREEEE : _TTNFAN
A—ZZZF+Hth FEBEASHRESS[REY
EMEEEEMTIEELEN - —AN\AFEA -
—NNZF+A - ENEEEAR B TIZAD - HA
—NAN—F—A-——AN_F—F EBLRLAQRW
& —NWN=ZF+A-——NNANFELA - ERENRSE
HEIEIEIE  —ANNFELA——hAARE+=A
BN R BE D BEIRE  —ANAFE+=A—
ZETTFLA - BNEREERREESERER =8
TEFLA-—ZTTHF— A BHERERREER
EIHBR —EERF—A-_ZTTN\F+=F ' N
BIERREEARETARBIRALE - T N\F+=
BE-ZT—RAF_F  AARRESE - BILALLE - FH
CE-RNFERNAZTNAEZEREBLCIEBRA
RIEE YR T AFNAZTHEZTAESHLC
EBRAREER - —T—AF-_AZES  £4ARF
EH o

AEEE 895 MEARAMTES - ®R—HN\Z
FARMBENFERZRELIER  —ANNFBEX
BIFERBELEE - — N\ ZF-——AAZTF  BR
REZMEE IR, ZEXE  —ANEF-——NNt
F o XBEBRAERTFEMSKE  —ANEF-—FF
hF - SHRRERRERBELE  —STRF——
T—FE - RHAT(ER) Z AR B (% CES 3 ¥ AR 42 4
B CE2-2EES SHMEREHRERNTE
“E-N\F_RES FARREF-

<

° H



RPN KRR SR B AR 1D B IR A R 201853

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Yao (2)2), aged 43, is an independent non-executive Director of
the Company. Ms. Liu studied in Xiamen University from 1992 to 1996 and
obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry. From 1997 to December 1998, she
studied in the National University of Singapore and obtained a master’s degree
in chemistry. From 1999 to March 2001, Ms. Liu studied materials engineering
in Case Western Reserve University in Cleveland, the United States of America
and obtained a master’s degree. From 2005 to May 2007, she studied in the
Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in Philadelphia, the United
States of America and obtained an EMBA degree. From March 2001 to May
2007, Ms. Liu served as an analyst, manager and department head for Capital
One Bank. She worked in Deutsche Bank at its corporate finance practice under
the investment banking department as a manager from July 2007 to November
2009. From December 2009 to June 2014, she worked in the investment
banking department of UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited as an associate
director, a director and an executive director. From June 2014 to May 2016,
she served as a managing director of HK Griffin Reed Capital Group ((H{EE&
ZNE2[E)). She founded RJ Capital Group (38 & &£ E) and has been the
chairman since June 2016. Since June 2014, she has been an independent
Director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li Xudong (Z=fB%-), aged 48, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Li is a senior accountant, Chinese certified public
accountant, Chinese certified assets valuer and Chinese certified tax agent.
From 2000 to 2003, he studied at Central University of Finance and Economics
and obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting. He is currently a managing
partner (1774 $ A) of Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) (RZE & 51 AD = AT 7R M A %2). Mr. Li was a member
of the 13th, 14th and 15th session of the review committee for main board
issue of China Securities Regulatory Commission. In 1996, Mr. Li commenced
his CPA business and has focused on the partial and whole-scale listing of
corporate assets, asset restructuring, and IPO audit and consulting business for
listed companies. Mr. Li has been a chief auditor or a certified public accountant
signing the audit for listed companies and large-scale state-owned enterprises
including Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (B3 2 ER N BR
A a]), Inner Mongolia Junzheng Energy & Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. (N5 &
E I8 R TR% D BBE A 7)), Zhejiang Hangxiao Steel Structure Co., Ltd.
(I T B 845 B 1D B PR A 7), China CAMC Engineering Co., Ltd. (2 T E
2 T F2R% {5 A FR A 7)), and China National Machinery Industry Corporation
(Fh B AR T 3£ £ [E) /2 A)). He has accumulated professional experience in
areas including accounting, auditing, asset appraisal, merger and acquisition
and corporate governance consulting. Since February 2015, Mr. Li has been
an independent Director of the Company. Mr. Li has been an independent non-
executive director of Tianjin TEDA Biomedical Engineering Company Limited (x
EREAYBRETIZIR B R A F) (Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 8189)
since December 2016.

BEE )
B FEITE S ()

TIRR 4% 0 4857 0 RITARARIBYIEITES - =548
ERAGEAD - PR EAD - PR EE
BN AP EEMRESE - TS F - T _FHEPR
BHERBEE  BSEEE LB o BEREGTAD
EHFUFHREBER)NTERA - ZHAELEHEE
EeE+=E F+HE - FHRAEFRETEZEZE
L8 c FRAA-NNAFRENSFMETEE
% BIRGESSEERER T EESA £W
NAEIPOET RABHAFET - THEEBEHNEMERD

RAR] - NEEE LRI IO BR AR ~ ATINE
MERNBRAR  PIEBRIRERGERAR - PH
B ITEEERARS EMAR - KERFLEEENE
FrHMaEshh - BRTEEMNS - Bit - BETE -
WHERARIAEHAS I EMNEELR - —T—AF =
RZ24 A RRBYES: — T "F+A%5 "
FREREEMELTRERMHERDE(BRZAT - 8189)
B IEITES ©



N IR B AR (D B BR A A 20185 5

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Jiang Hua (JT ), aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Jiang was among the first batch of securities lawyers
in China. From September 1981 to June 1985, he studied law at Renmin
University of China and obtained a bachelor’s degree. From September 1985
to June 1987, he studied civil law at Renmin University of China and obtained
a master’s degree. He began to practice law since 1993. From 1993 to 1994,
he was a partner of the Beijing-based Zhong Yin Law Firm (3t =R R §R
22EM 75 Fr). From June 1994 to 2001, he was a partner of the Beijing-
based Dacheng Law Offices (3t /7 ABK 2 B = H5Ff). From 2001 to
2003, he was a partner of the Beijing-based Tongwei Law Firm (1t =T
[Rl 42 EM == 75 A7), Since 2003, he has been a partner of Beijing Kangda
Law Firm ({1t SR B @R RBE A FT). In 2012, Mr. Jiang was hired by the
Law School and the Lawyer College of Renmin University of China as a part-
time instructor for graduate students under the Juris Master program. He has
provided legal services in various aspects, including transformation into share
based corporations, issue and listing of shares, refinancing, and merger and
acquisition to more than a hundred enterprises including Beijing Tiangiao (3t &%
X1%), Gu Yue Long Shan (& &eg1L1), Yintai Resources (SR =& )F) and so
forth, contributing his profound theoretical knowledge and extensive practical
experience. As a lawyer, Mr. Jiang Hua is qualified to become an independent
director of listed companies. Mr. Jiang has been an independent director of
Jonjee Hi-Tech Industrial & Commercial Holding Co., Ltd. (FF4E = & i fiT &
2 (&=H) f% {5 BFR A7) (Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600872) from 2003
to 2011, an independent director of Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology
Co., Ltd. (AN E B ER B F R MDA R A 7)) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange: 002415) from 2008 to 2014, an independent director of China
Zhonghua Geotechnical Engineering Co., Ltd. ({5 + TI2RMHER A
7l) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002542) from 2009 to 2017, an independent
director of Daheng New Epoch Technology Inc. (K18 %742 TTRHE IR D
AR /AR (Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600288) from 2009 to 2014, an
independent director of Huafa Industrial Co., Ltd. Zhuhai (k& ZE 35 & 3 I8 (0
APR A 7)) (Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600325) since 2013, an independent
director of China National Complete Plant Import and Export Corporation Limited
(FPBCGE H DD B BR 22 7)) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 000151) since
2014, an independent director of Shanxi Top Energy Company Ltd. (LI 75382
82 IR IR 9 A BR A 7)) (Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600780) since 2016 and
an independent director of Huaiji Dengyun Auto-parts (Holding) Co., Ltd. ({2
EBE SR M AR A F) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002715) since
August 2017. Since February 2015, he has been an independent Director of the
Company.
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Supervisors

Mr. Liu Qiang (2)58), aged 49, is a Supervisor of the Company. From
September 1986 to July 1990, Mr. Liu studied at Nankai University, majoring
in economics management and law, and obtained bachelor’s degrees in
economics and law. From September 2001 to July 2004, he studied at Wuhan
University, majoring in world economics, and obtained a master’s degree. In
July 2009, he graduated from Henan University, majoring in regional economics
and was admitted as a doctoral candidate. He obtained a doctoral degree
in economics in December 2009. From July 1990 to November 2002, he
successively worked at the agriculture audit division, general office and division
of legal affairs under the Department of Audit of Henan Province, and his last
position was the deputy-department-head-level officer. From November 2002
to July 2012, he was the deputy section-level supervisor of the Supervisory
Committee for the State-owned Enterprises Administered by Henan Provincial
Government (AR & & & BB X EE=2). From July 2012 to November
2012, he served as the department-head-level supervisor of the Supervisory
Committee for the State-owned Enterprises Administered by Henan Provincial
Government. From November 2012 to September 2014, he was a researcher
of Provincially Administered and State-owned Medium and Small Enterprise
Department (‘& B /)N E ) of the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government. He also
served as a researcher of Economic Cooperation Department of the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s
Government from September 2014 to December 2014. Since December 2014,
he has been the secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited. From February 2015 to February
2018, he was a Director of the Company. Since February 2018, he has been
chairman of the Board of Supervisors and chairman of Labor Union of the
Company.

Mr. Wang Yue (£ #), aged 48, is a Supervisor of the Company. In July
1993, Mr. Wang graduated from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics
(A 7 B 4% 22F5%) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics, majoring
in industrial economics. In July 2006, he obtained an MBA degree from
Zhengzhou University (281 A £2). From October 1993 to October 1998, he
was an accountant in Zhengzhou Running Water General Corporation (&5 77
B 2Rk 482 a)). From November 1998 to March 2001, he was the deputy
head of the department of accounting and finance of Zhengzhou Dongzhou
Water Supply Company Limited (2584 77 3 /& £ 7K /5 BR 22 &). From June
2004 to December 2009, he was successively the deputy head and head of the
finance department and the financial controller of Zhengzhou Running Water
General Corporation. From December 2009 to November 2013, he was the
chief accountant of Zhengzhou Running Water Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (&5
I B AR K35 & $2E P& A BR A 7). From November 2013 to September 2015,
he was the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Development Investment
Group Co., Ltd. (B 22 R & £ E A R A 7). Since September 2015, he
has been the deputy general manager of Henan Machinery Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (A Eat A S fic B =B AR & (£ /2 7). Since February 2018,
he has been a Supervisor of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Cui Leilei (E2E %), aged 37, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Cui
graduated from China University of Mining and Technology (7 BURE 3 A
&) in July 2007, majoring in mechanical engineering and automation. From
August 2007 to February 2012, he has worked at the office, production and
manufacturing division and the plant of oil tanks of the Company successively.
From February 2012 to February 2015, he was the deputy head of the capital
operation division of the Company. From February 2015 to October 2015, he
was the deputy head (person-in-charge) of the strategic development division
of the Company. From October 2015 to February 2018, he was the head of
general office and head of human resources division of Henan Machinery
Investment Group Co., Ltd. Since February 2018, he has been a Supervisor and
the head of division of Party and masses’ affairs of the Company.

Mr. Ni Wei (7 &), aged 54, is a Supervisor of the Company. From
1983 to 1991, Mr. Ni studied at Tsinghua University and has obtained a
bachelor’s degree in automobile engineering and a master’s degree in
mechanical engineering successively. From 1991 to 1995, he was a trainer
of Mercedes-Benz (1§ &1E By 7 & /52 A &)). From 1995 to 1998, he was
a service engineer, manufacturing and production manager of General Motors
Company. From 1998 to 2001, he successively served as an export manager
and deputy general manager at Hubei Super-Elec Auto Electric Motor Co., Ltd.
C#AdL e B T PR A &)). Since September 2001, he has been the
president of ASIMCO International Inc. (32 #TEHEIPE B[R A &)). Since March
2004, he has been the vice president of the ASIMCO Group. Since February
2018, he has been a Supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Rong (&), aged 47, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Zhou
graduated with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering and technology
from Zhengzhou University of Light Industry in July 1996. He graduated from
Zhengzhou University majoring in mechanical engineering and obtained a
master’s degree in engineering in June 2007. He served as the deputy plant
manager of the sub-plant of electroplating of ZCMM from April 2002 to August
2006. From August 2006 to December 2007, he was the plant manager of the
sub-plant of electroplating of ZCMM. From December 2007 to August 2009, he
was the plant manager of the sub-plant of installation of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited. From August 2009 to February 2010, he
was the deputy head of the marketing and sales division of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited. From February 2010 to February
2011, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of electroplating of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited. From February 2011 to April
2011, he was the deputy plant manager of the plant of oil tanks and the plant
manager of the sub-plant of electroplating of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited. From April 2011 to February 2016, he was the head
of the supply division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited. From February 2016 to February 2018, he has been an assistant to
chief financial officer of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited. Since February 2015, he has been a Supervisor of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Yichen (38 3 ), aged 33, is a Supervisor of the Company. From
September 2005 to June 2009, Mr. Zhang studied Chinese Language and
Literature in Huazhong University of Science and Technology and obtained a
bachelor’s degree. From July 2009 to April 2014, he worked in general office
and capital operation division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited successively. From May 2014 to January 2016, he served
as an assistant to the head of the general office and an assistant to the head
of the strategic development division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited. Since February 2016, he has been the deputy head
(person in charge) of the strategic development division of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited. From August 2016 to February
2018, he also served as the deputy head of general office of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited. Since February 2018, he has been
a Supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Yuan Shaochong (%&4>3%), aged 37, is a Supervisor of the Company.
Mr. Yuan graduated from Hebei University of Engineering majoring in mechanical
design, manufacturing and automation and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
July 2006. From July 2006 to September 2011, he served as a technician and
planning coordinator of the sub-plant of processing, the head of production
and allocation and control room of production and manufactory division of
Zhengzhou Goal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited. From October 2011
to November 2011, he served as the deputy head of west zone production and
manufactory department. From November 2011 to January 2013, he served
as the deputy head of the production and manufactory division. From January
2013 to February 2014, he served as deputy plant manager of the assembly
plant. From February 2014 to February 2015, he served as the plant manager
of the assembly plant. From February 2015 to February 2016, he served as the
general manager of an oil tank company. Since February 2016, he has been
the plant manager of the assembly plant. Since February 2018, he has been a
Supervisor of the Company.
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Senior Management

Mr. Jia Hao (&%), aged 49, is a general manager of the Company. Please
refer to “— Directors” of this section for his biography.

Mr. Fu Qi (133%), aged 49, is a deputy general manager of the Company.
Mr. Fu is a senior engineer. From September 1988 to July 1992, he studied at
China University of Mining and Technology, majoring in mechanical design and
theories. From July 1992 to September 1995, he was a section member of the
first development department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From September 1995 to May 1996 and from May 1996 to December 1996,
he was a senior section member and the deputy head of the first development
division, respectively. From December 1996 to January 2006, he was a section
officer and the deputy head of the planned sales department, the deputy head
of the marketing and sales division, and the deputy head of the sub-plant
of installation. From January 2006 to March 2008, he was the head of the
production and manufactory division. From April 2010 to February 2012, he
was the chairman and the secretary of the Party Committee of Huainan ZMJ
Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. Since February 2012, he has been the deputy
general manager of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Haibin (3R3838), aged 37, is the secretary to the Board and
company secretary. Mr. Zhang graduated from China University of Mining
and Technology and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law in July 2005. From
July 2005 to March 2007, he was a secretary of the general office of ZCMM.
From March 2007 to December 2008, he served as the chief secretary of the
general office of ZCMM. From December 2008 to March 2010, he was the
chief secretary of the general office of the Company. From March 2010 to
September 2010, he served as an assistant to the head of the general office of
the Company. From September 2010 to January 2012, he served as the deputy
head of capital operation division and representative for securities affairs of the
Company. From January 2012 to February 2015, he was the head of general
office, head of capital operation division and representative for securities affairs
of the Company. From July 2012 to February 2015, he was also the head of
division of Party and masses’ affairs. From February 2015 to February 2018, he
was the deputy general manager and secretary to the Board of the Company.
From July 2017 to February 2018, he was also the chief financial officer of the
Company. Since February 2018, he has been the secretary to the Board of the
Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Huang Hua (Z1£), aged 50, is the chief financial officer of the Company.
Ms. Huang is a chartered financial analyst (CFA) and an engineer. In July
1987, she graduated from Central South University majoring in metal physics
and obtained a bachelor’s degree in science. In August 1990, she obtained a
master’s degree in engineering majoring in inorganic nonmetal materials granted
by the Institution of Metal Research under Chinese Academy of Sciences. In
December 2000, she obtained a master of business administration (MBA)
degree from China Europe International Business School. From August 1990
to November 1991, she served as an assistant researcher at the Institution
of Metal Research (Shenyang) under Chinese Academy of Sciences. From
December 1991 to April 1999, she served as the plant manager of sub-plant,
manager of the corporate management division, chief engineer and assistant
general manager of Shenzhen Jinke Special Materials Co., Ltd. From September
2000 to May 2001, she served as a senior project manager at the capital
operation division of China Online (Bermuda) Company Limited ((F B4R (H
KA 2 7). From August 2001 to July 2003, she served as investment
manager of Shenzhen Innovation Centre Co., Ltd. (&I I EHEEHBRE A
A ). From August 2003 to March 2005, she served as the general manager
and director of Shenyang Jinchangpu New Materials Company Limited (&F5 &
B i KB R A 7). From May 2005 to December 2006, she served as
the general manager of Jinco Nonferrous Metals Co., Ltd. From January 2007
to June 2008, she served as a project manager and senior analyst at VALE
INCO LIMITED (formerly the headquarter of Inco Ltd. (JN& K BIER 48 2 A 7).
From July 2008 to September 2017, she served as the treasurer and risk officer
of Vale Minerals (China) Co., Ltd. (7K AT A8 2 4 B A R A &), From
October 2017 to February 2018, she was the consultant for the acquisition
of SG Holding by Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.
Since February 2018, she has been the chief financial officer of the Company.

Ms. Li Weiping (Z=18F), aged 45, is a deputy general manager of the
Company. From October 2003 to June 2005, she studied under the MBA
programme in the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. From September 1994 to
August 2002, she served as the human resources commissioner/supervisor/
manager of ABB Xinhui Low Voltage Switchgear Co., Ltd. (ABB¥T& (K B
475 FR A 7). From September 2002 to September 2004, she served as the
senior human resources manager of Bosch Heating System Co., Ltd. ({8 4%
e Z 42 R A 7). From September 2004 to September 2008, she served
as the director of human resources at Bosch Automotive Diesel Systems Co.,
Ltd. (B LM Z 4 AR A ). From July 2008 to December 2009,
she served as the director of Asia-Pacific human resources at the German
headquarters of Bosch Rexroth (Rohr, Germany). From January 2010 to
March 2012, she served as the director of human resources at Bosch Rexroth
Hydraulic (Beijing) Co., Ltd. ({Ftt h +46&EE (Jb) BFRAF]). From
January 2012 to August 2018, she served as the director of human resources
and chief business officer of Bosch Automotive Components (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
(R E I (M) B2 F). Since October 2018, she has been
the deputy general manager of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Company Secretary

Mr. Zhang Haibin is the company secretary. Please refer to “— Senior
Management” of this section for his biography.

Ms. Chan Yin Wah (B #£E), aged 43, is the assistant to the company
secretary. Ms. Chan is an associate director of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited. She has over 18 years of professional experience
in handling the corporate secretarial, compliance and share registry matters
for listed companies in Hong Kong. She has worked for various internationally
well-known professional firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan
holds a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s degree in professional
accounting. She is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. She is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. The Board believes that
effective and reasonable corporate governance practices are essential to the
development of the Group and can safeguard and enhance the interests of the
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Review Period”), the
Company complied with the requirements in the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation to the Management

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Company in
a responsible and effective manner, being responsible for execution of the
resolutions passed at general meetings, deciding on the Company’s operating
plans, investment proposals and the establishment of its internal management
units, preparing the Company’s annual financial budgets, final accounts and
profit distribution plans, and appointing members of its senior management.
Meanwhile, the Board has established four special committees under the
Board, namely, the Strategy Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration and Assessment Committee, and these Board
committees are assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of
reference.

The Board delegated the authority and duties to the senior management to carry
out the daily management, administration and operation of the Company. The
general manager is accountable to the Board.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith in the best interests of
the Company and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and act in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, which at least include the following:

e 1o develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e o review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management;

e 1o review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e o develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

e 1o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Company’s annual report.

Board Meetings

The Board will convene at least four regular meetings each year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings will involve the active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors entitled to be present. A written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors 14 days prior to the regular Board meeting.
For the extraordinary meetings of the Board, the written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors four days prior to the meeting. When an
extraordinary meeting of the Board needs to be held as early as possible in case
of an emergency, the meeting notice is allowed to be given by telephone or in
other verbal forms at any time provided that the convener makes necessary
explanations at the meeting. A written meeting notice shall at least include the
subject matters for discussion and the meeting information as necessary for the
Directors to make well-informed decisions.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a Board meeting
have connected relations, such Director shall not exercise his/her voting rights
on such proposal, nor shall he/she exercise any voting rights on behalf of other
Directors.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings should be sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is held. The participating Directors shall sign
the meeting minutes and resolutions records for confirmation on behalf of
themselves and the Directors who authorize them to attend. Any Director who
has different views on the meeting minutes or the resolutions records can make
a written explanation when signing the name; when necessary, he/she shall
report such views to the regulatory authorities timely; he/she can also make a
public statement regarding such views.

BEEgn)
BEENPEE AR

FESAAREFEAOLEAME - RS DB
TRE -

o FIERBHAABNEEEBBRREER |
s BAREREENGNEEASNFIILFERE
TR

o B RERARREETEENEERTE AR

KRER

o HIE  RAMEREERESNRTERRERTF
fi(mE) : &

o BEARNFRETEEERTRMNERREARRTF
#&WE’H&E& °

EETRE

o4 g ié%&ﬁ%% Hewk  KOEFE—R-

RABREFRE Qﬁﬁmﬁ$ DEELEEENES
BEHRE - iﬁL@%LﬂﬁﬁFﬂ/ﬂ AHESFS
THEHE  EREAGARATHRANEmRNERES
MEE- - CRERSRRHSE  BREIACMINAESE
ERAEREENESE - FRES  FERRIOFRES
Q%ﬁéﬁm A ABSR BB E A L O BRI A B

HBEA - BEEAEARESHE LELHA - SEEHE
ﬂmWREQE%?% ENEEMNESERORILANE
AMTHERR

EXHERRERARABRTEMS RN EEEMEB AR
B MEHRIBRBTERORME - ST EREAMES
TTRERORME -

EEEERARR  BRAERRALREGHTEN
Miah&EEREZ2RER  RHEEREER
BRERAERELH A - BEEFRERRELA
MERERAHFESRNETHERCHEMRRTERE
TETHR EFHFRLHFIAZTHATAER
B IRERFRELEEHA - HBE - BEREH
BEEWPIMS - LAIABRRAFHREA -

45



46

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Corporate Governance Report 1%

Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)
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During the Review Period, the Board held 11 meetings in total, one on each of REH - DRIRZE
11 January 2018, 22 January 2018, 12 February 2018, 29 March 2018, 27 —-N\F¥—A+—-8 -—2—/\F—A=-+=ZHBH =&
April 2018, 28 May 2018, 23 July 2018, 29 August 2018, 7 September 2018, —\F=ZA+=H" )\i A=Z+hH =%
26 October 2018 and 18 December 2018. —N\FHAZ++ E! —N\FREAZ+NB =%
—N\FEtAZ+= E! —N\FNAZ+IA - =%
—\FhALH - )\¢+H +5B ZZT—N
F+ZA+N\RH méﬁéhT R o
Attendance of meetings by each Director during the Review Period is recorded as SEMNESROEARSRTZSEMNEFLsEeT ¢
follows:
Number Number Number
of Board of Board of Board Number
meetings meetings meetings of Board
required attended attended meetings Attendance
to be attended in person by proxy not attended rate
Name of Director FEiE FELE ZREHE
EEn EZERY RE R RERY HE=R
Jiao Chengyao i 11 1 0 0 100%
Jia Hao (appointed on (20184
12 February 2018) 2R12BEZRT) 9 9 0 0 100%
Xiang Jiayu BEG 11 11 0 0 100%
Fu Zugang (appointed on AR (7420185
12 February 2018) 2A12BEZRT) 9 9 0 0 100%
Wang Xinying T 11 11 0 0 100%
Wang Bin (appointed on B (20185
12 February 2018) 2A12BEZRT) 9 9 0 0 100%
Liu Yao 2z 11 1 0 0 100%
Li Xudong EIIES 11 1 0 0 100%
Jiang Hua T 11 1 0 0 100%
Guo Haofeng (resignation effective from SR I& (320184
12 February 2018) 2A128EET) 2 2 0 0 100%
Liu Qiang (resignation effective from 2158 (7720184
12 February 2018) 2A128EET) 2 2 0 0 100%
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Board of Directors (Continued)

General Meetings

During the reporting period, the Company held a total of three general meetings,
which were attended by some of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
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management. Attendance of general meetings by the Directors is recorded as S ETN—E P
follows:
2018 Second
Extraordinary
General Meeting
(2018 First
2018 A Shareholders
First 2017 Class Meeting,
Extraordinary Annual 2018 First
General General H Shareholders  Attendance Actual  Attendance
Meeting Meeting Class Meeting) required  attendance rate
D18FE R
BREREAE
2018%F (20185 — R
E-R 2017 ABRERIBRRAS
Name of Director e FE 2018FHE—R BK
EEpng BRERAE REAE HREIRRAE) EHERE  HEXH" HE=x
Jiao Chengyao K V V V 3 3 100%
Jia Hao (appointed on BE5 (20185 |
12 February 2018) 2A12BEZE)  as non-voting
attendee
SfE V 2 1 50%
Xiang Jiayu BES] | | V 3 3 100%
Fu Zugang (appointed on AR (720184 y
12 February 2018) 2A12BEZE)  as non-voting
attendee
SfE i V 2 2 100%
Wang Xinying THg | V 3 2 67%
Wang Bin (appointed on B (F201845F
12 February 2018) 2ANBEZE) NATER V 2 1 50%
Liu Yao 2z i | | 3 3 100%
Li Xudong TRL V V V 3 3 100%
Jiang Hua = N N V 3 3 100%
Guo Haofeng (resignation effective from  2F & I (320184
12 February 2018) 2A12B8EE) Vv NARERA N/A N 1 1 100%
Liu Qiang (resignation effective from 228 (7220184
12 February 2018) 2A12B8EE) Vv NARERA N/A N 1 1 100%
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition

During the Review Period, from 1 January 2018 to 11 February 2018, the
Board consisted of eight Directors, including five executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors; and from 12 February 2018 to
31 December 2018, the Board consisted of nine Directors, comprising six
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. One third
of the members of the Board of the Company are independent non-executive
Directors.

The executive Directors possess extensive experience in coal mining machinery
and auto parts industries, and the independent non-executive Directors have
appropriate professional qualifications in law and accounting as well as financial
management expertise. In accordance with the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all corporate communications.

As at the end of the reporting period and as of the date of this annual report, the
members of the Board were:

Executive Directors: Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director and Chairman), Jia Hao
(Executive Director and Vice Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director), Fu
Zugang (Executive Director), Wang Xinying (Executive Director) and Wang Bin
(Executive Director).

Independent Non-executive Directors: Ms. Liu Yao, Mr. Li Xudong and Mr. Jiang
Hua.

The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report. Save as disclosed in such
section, there is no other material relationship among the members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships).

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all the
independent non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmation, the Board
considers that all of the three independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Chairman and General Manager

The roles of the Chairman and the General Manager of the Company have
been separated and performed by different individuals. During the Review
Period, Mr. Jiao Chengyao was the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Jia
Hao was the General Manager. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board and ensuring that all significant
and key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board timely
and constructively. The General Manager is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to manage the Company’s day-to-day business in all aspects
effectively, implement major strategies and coordinate the overall business
operation.
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Internal Control

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to take in achieving its strategic
objectives. In accordance with the requirements set out in paragraph C.2 of
the CG Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Board has established a
risk management and internal control system, and has continuously supervised
and reviewed the effectiveness of the system’s operation. The system is aimed
at managing, instead of eliminating, the risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, fostering effective and highly efficient operation, and offering
reasonable assurances as to the reliability of the financial reports, compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations, and protection of the Group’s assets.

Structure of risk management and internal control functions

To ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training courses and the related budget available to the Company in respect
of risk management and internal audit, the Company has established a sound
organizational structure of risk management and internal control that includes
the Board, the Audit Committee, the management of the Company, the Audit
Department and the various departments of the Company.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management and internal control
of the Company by determining the overall risk preference and risk tolerance
of the Company based on the strategic development objectives and ensuring
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system. The
Audit Committee under the Board monitors the operation of the Company’s
risk management and internal control system, advises the Board and makes
recommendations on major decisions regarding the building of the risk
management and internal control system. The management of the Company is
responsible for laying down the risk management and internal control structure
and basic requirements, and continuously improving the scope, substance,
methodology and procedure of work of the structure. The Audit Department of
the Company conducts internal audit and supervision for risk management, and is
responsible to the management of the Company. As the first line of defence in
risk management and internal control, the various departments of the Company
organize and carry out the daily work in risk management and accept the
organization, coordination, guidance and supervision by the management and
the Audit Department of the Company in doing their part of risk management
and internal control in their respective professional areas.

Commencement of risk management work

Risk prevention determines the course in building the Company’s system
and internal control structure. In 2018, based on the methodology of risk
management covering risk identification, risk evaluation, risk response, risk
reporting and monitoring, the Company focused on its overall operating
objectives, combined the internal and external circumstances, as well as the
management conditions of the Company, fully reorganized and identified the
possible risks at different levels, such as strategy, operation, finance, market,
law and others, and thereby built up a risk incident database unique to the
Company.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Structure of risk management and internal control functions
(Continued)

Commencement of risk management work (Continued)

On the basis of risk identification, each responsible department for risks
performs an in-depth analysis of the risks identified from two perspectives,
namely vulnerability to the occurrence of risk and the extent of impact from
the occurrence of risk, in order to determine the different levels of risk and,
through evaluation, ascertain the major risks the Company is faced with.
This is to ensure that appropriate management resources are allocated to
the management of major risks in an effort to step up the risk prevention and
control in key areas.

In 2018, the risk management work of the Company culminated in the Risk
Management Report, mainly covering the methodology and procedure for
commencing risk management work, along with the major risks the Company
is faced with. The Risk Management Report has been approved by the Audit
Committee, and has been submitted to the Board for review.

The Audit Department of the Company is responsible for internal audit in risk
management. By organizing and commencing the supervision and assessment
of risk management, the Audit Department of the Company continuously
monitors and controls the major risks and information on changes in risks in the
course of operation and management of each responsible department for risks,
supervises and assesses whether each department is able to commence risk
management work in accordance with the relevant regulations and the results
of the work, and makes recommendations on improving the effectiveness of
implementing risk management work.

Operation of the internal control system

The building and improvement of internal control is an effective response
to risks. Every year, the Company reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, and evaluates all the key areas of
control, including financial control, operations control and compliance control.

On the basis of adequately identifying and evaluating risks, the Company
implements the basic response measures to risks for internal control through
specific business processes. In view of the management and business
processes involved in major risks, the Company has formulated whole-process
control measures covering every stage, including management procedures and
internal control measures for important processes, such as the preparation
and disclosure of financial reports, as well as the handling and dissemination
of inside information. Through gradual formation of a sound internal control
environment, characterized by well-defined powers and responsibilities, effective
checks and balances, and coordinated operation, the Company has laid a solid
foundation for enhancing the level of internal control and risk management.

Risk management and internal control for the Review Period was reviewed at
the Board meeting on 26 March 2019. The results of the commencement of
risk management and internal control work in 2018 indicate no control failure
for major risks in the Company and reveal no weakness in major risk control.
The Company has been in strict compliance with the requirements about risk
management and internal control in the CG Code. The Board has assessed
the Company’s risk management and internal control system as effective and
adequate.
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Directors
Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s corporate documents such as the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). In
accordance with Article 153 of the Articles of Association, the Directors of the
Company shall be elected or replaced at the general meetings and the terms
of office of all Directors (including executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors) shall be three years. Upon the expiry of the terms, the
Directors will be eligible for re-election and re-appointment. Subject to the
compliance with relevant laws and administrative regulations, the general
meeting may dismiss any Director during his/her service term by way of an
ordinary resolution (except that any claim for compensation pursuant to any
contract shall not be prejudiced thereby).

The Company has not entered into any service contract (except for any contract
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation) with any of the Directors/
Supervisors.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction after his/her initial appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operation of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors also reviewed the amendments to or up-to-date version of the
relevant laws, rules and regulations regularly. In addition, the Company has
been encouraging the Directors and executives to enroll in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
companies ordinance/act and corporate governance practices organized by
professional bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so
that they can continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills. From time to time, Directors are provided with written training
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills.

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development so that their relevant knowledge and skills can be improved and
updated. The Company has arranged internal training for the Directors by
seminars and provision of training information. All the Directors have provided a
record of training they received to the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, all the Directors had been given
relevant guideline materials and attended trainings regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, as well as the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors.
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Directors (Continued)
Insurance for Directors

To mitigate the exposure to liabilities of the Directors, at the annual general
meeting held on 7 June 2013, the Company resolved to take out an insurance
plan at a total premium of not more than US$30 million for the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives to cover their liabilities (the “Liability
Insurance”) and confirmed that arrangements regarding the Liability Insurance
had been completed. The Liability Insurance covered the periods from 19 July
2014 to 18 July 2015, from 19 July 2015 to 18 July 2016, from 19 July 2016
to 18 July 2017, from 18 July 2017 to 17 July 2018 and from 18 July 2018 to
17 July 2019.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and the Supervisors. The Company has made
specific enquiries with all the Directors and Supervisors of the Company, who
have confirmed their compliance with the Model Code during the Review Period.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has endeavored to improve its remuneration management
measures for its Directors, Supervisors and senior management under the
guidance of relevant policies of the PRC. The Company’s remuneration system
for Directors, Supervisors and senior management is based on the principle of
combining incentives and disciplines, and market adjustment and governmental
regulation.

The Directors receive remuneration in different forms, including salaries,
allowances, benefits in kind, discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme
contributions made on their behalf.

During the Review Period, there was no arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

Responsibility Statement of Directors Regarding Preparation
of Account

All the Directors of the Company acknowledged their responsibilities to the
preparation of the Company’s account for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the Board prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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Board Committees

The Board has set up four specialised committees, namely, the Strategy
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee, in accordance with the CG Code.
These Board committees are assigned respective responsibilities according
to their terms of reference. The composition and main functions of these
specialised committees and their work during the Review Period are set out as
follows:

Strategy Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Strategy Committee
comprised Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao, Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Fu
Zugang and Mr. Jiang Hua.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are to study and
comment on our long-term development plans and significant investment
strategies, including: (i) reviewing the Company’s long-term development
strategies; (ii) reviewing and commenting on the Company’s significant capital
investment and financing proposals that require approval of the Board,; (iii)
reviewing and commenting on the significant capital expenditure and assets
management projects that require approval of the Board; and (iv) exercising
other functions and duties as authorized by the Board.

The Strategy Committee did not convene any meeting during the year.

Audit Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Audit Committee
comprised Mr. Li Xudong (Chairman), Ms. Liu Yao and Mr. Jiang Hua, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the Company’s financial reports and auditing work, including: (i)
proposing appointment and replacement of the Company’s independent
auditors; (ii) supervising the Company’s internal auditing policies and their
implementation, supervising the financial statements and annual reports and
accounts of the Company, and reviewing material opinions regarding financial
reporting as stated in financial statements and reports; (iii) coordinating the
communication between our internal Audit Department and the independent
auditors; (iv) reviewing the Company’s financial information and disclosure
of such information; (v) reviewing the Company’s internal control system and
auditing on the material connected or related party transactions; (vi) reviewing
the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk management systems
and to evaluate whether there is material failure or weakness in the risk
management and internal control of the Company; (vii) discussing the risk
management and internal control system with the management to ensure that
the management has performed its duty to establish such effective systems; (viii)
researching on major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters and the management’s response to these findings as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative; (ix) evaluating the changes in the nature
and extent of significance of the material risks the Company faces after the
previous year and its ability to respond to the changes in the business and the
changes in external environment; and (x) exercising other functions and duties as
authorized by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee convened four meetings in 2018, with full attendance of
the entire committee:

(1) On 26 March 2018, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the Board
convened its first meeting in 2018, where it considered and approved the
Proposal on the 2017 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial Report of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal
on 2017 Annual Report on A Shares and Summary thereof of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2017
Annual Results Announcement of H Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited and Authorising the Chairman of the
Company to Sign and Announce 2017 Annual Report of the Company’s H
Shares, the Proposal on the 2017 Report on Internal Control Assessment
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the
Proposal on the 2017 Audit Report on Internal Control of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on the
2017 Report on the Performance of Duties of the Audit Committee of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal
on the Appointment of External Audit Institution and Internal Control Audit
Institution for 2018 and Payment for the Auditing Fees for 2017, the
Proposal on the Daily Connected Transactions of the Company in 2017
and the Expected Daily Connected Transactions of the Company in 2018,
and the Proposal on Change of Accounting Policies of the Company;

(2)  On 27 April 2018, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the Board
convened its second meeting in 2018, where it considered and approved
the Proposal on the 2018 First Quarterly Report and Summary thereof
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited and the
Proposal on Change of Accounting Policies of the Company;

(3) On 28 August 2018, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of
the Board convened its third meeting in 2018, where it considered
and approved the Proposal on the 2018 Unaudited Interim Financial
Statements of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited,
the Proposal on 2018 Interim Report on A Shares and Summary thereof
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, and the
Proposal on 2018 Interim Results Announcement of H Shares and 2018
Interim Report of H Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited; and

(4)  On 26 October 2018, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the
Board convened its fourth meeting in 2018, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on the 2018 Third Quarterly Report and Summary
thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Nomination Committee
comprised Mr. Jiang Hua (Chairman), Mr. Fu Zugang and Ms. Liu Yao. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive Director and
is comprised of a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to: (i) advise
on the size and structure of the Board in accordance with the position of
the Company’s operation, scale of assets and shareholding structure; (ii)
formulate the selection criteria and procedures for candidates of the Company’s
Directors and management personnel; (iii) search for qualified candidates of
Directors and management personnel; (iv) review the qualifications and other
credentials of the candidates of Directors and management personnel; (v)
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors; (vi) make
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of the Company’s
Directors; and (vii) exercise other functions and duties as authorized by the
Board.

The Nomination Committee convened four meetings in 2018, with full
attendance of the entire committee:

(1) On 22 January 2018, the Nomination Committee of the third session of
the Board convened its first meeting in 2018, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on Nominating Candidates for Executive Directors
of the Fourth Session of the Board and the Proposal on Nominating
Candidates for Independent Directors of the Fourth Session of the Board;

(2)  On 12 February 2018, the Nomination Committee of the fourth session
of the Board convened its first meeting in 2018, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on the Appointment of the General Manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal
on the Appointment of the Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial
Officer of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited,
and the Proposal on the Appointment of the Secretary to the Board and
Representative for Securities Affairs of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited;

(3)  On 29 August 2018, the Nomination Committee of the fourth session of
the Board convened its second meeting in 2018, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on Evaluating the Structure, Size and Composition
(Including Skills, Knowledge and Experience) of the Board of the Company
and Board Diversity; and

(4) On 26 October 2018, the Nomination Committee of the fourth session
of the Board convened its third meeting in 2018, where it considered
and approved the Proposal on the Appointment of Ms. Li Weiping as the
Deputy General Manager of the Company.

EESEMZEER ()

BEAFRAE RELZEENBRETELRE(ERF)
HEREEMBIZEL L - HRBIFRTESEETR
B8 -

REZEEHNIEBER  ((REBEAQRAKLETHE
T BESREMBRESEHESSNREMEREDZ
Fo(NVRIEARFES - BEEABNBEERNERT
([P EEERNEZNEREABAE  (WVESESNE
BABREANEREREMER © WTZBILIENITE
ENBUM  WREEMEFEEAATESIRMIEE
BER - RV TE R SRR AR AE BT o

—F\FE - REZEEAMTHRER  REER
SZBHEEHF

(1) 2018F1A2H - BRFE-EEFTSIRVEES
18FF—XEHE  BRBB T(ARIERENE
EFERTEFREANZER) (BARIEEENE
EEBUEEREANGR)

@ 2018F2A12H  BHAENEEECREEZES
018F F—IXEHE - B @b T (FREEEINE
EUHEBRD AR A RBCENER) (R
FENEEENEER N BRA R R BEE -« B
HmEEEEER) - (RARR IR (T EDN AR ML = AR (D
RAREZSWE BHEBRENZER)

@) 2018F8A20H  AHENEEECREEES
18FFENEHE  BRBBT(EARTELRRR
EEGMRE - A AR (BIERE - ME R
BIREZELILIER)

@ 2018%F10A26H  BHENEESESRELZES
18FF=NEH - BadBB T(EREBEEEET
T AR RBIBEEIERER) -

09



56

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Taxt

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &R R E

Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee comprised Mr. Li Xudong (Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao
and Ms. Liu Yao. The Remuneration and Assessment Committee is chaired
by an independent non-executive Director and is comprised of a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
are to: (i) formulate the remuneration and compensation policies and schemes
for the Company’s Directors and management personnel; (ii) evaluate the
performance of the Company’s Directors and management personnel and
assess the appropriate remuneration package for such Directors and officers;
(iii) supervise the implementation of remuneration policies and schemes; and (iv)
exercise other functions and duties as authorized by the Board.

The Remuneration and Assessment Committee convened two meetings in
2018, with full attendance of the entire committee:

(1) On 26 March 2018, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
of the fourth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2018,
where it considered and approved the Proposal on the Executive
Directors’ Remuneration Package of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited, the Proposal on the Independent Directors’
Remuneration Package of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited, and the Proposal on Senior Management’s
Remuneration Package of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited; and

(2)  On 29 August 2018, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of
the fourth session of the Board convened its second meeting in 2018,
where it considered and approved the Proposal on Assessment of the
Performance of Duties of Directors and Managers of the Company and
Annual Performance Evaluation.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31

December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB’000)
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Board Diversity Policy
Purpose

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees the increasing diversity of the Board as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Candidates for the Company’s Directors will be selected based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender and age) will be disclosed in the annual report of
the Company each year.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review annually on the Board’s composition
in respect of diversity, and monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers and BDO China Shu Lun
Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP as the international and domestic auditors
of the Company, respectively. Details of fees paid or payable to the auditors by
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:
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Total st 21,020
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Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Zhang Haibin (“Mr. Zhang”),
who also acts as the board secretary of the Company, is an employee of the
Company and has knowledge of the Company’s day-to-day affairs.

In addition, the Company appointed Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”) as the
assistant to the company secretary, to work closely with Mr. Zhang and to
provide assistance to Mr. Zhang to discharge his duties and responsibilities as
company secretary such as organizing meetings of the Board and meetings
of holders of the H Shares and gaining the relevant experience as required
under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Chan is an
associate director of a corporate service provider, SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited. The primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Mr. Zhang, whom Ms. Chan will contact on matters relating to
corporate governance, the Listing Rules of Hong Kong as well as other laws
and regulations which are relevant to the Company and other affairs of the
Company.

Mr. Zhang and Ms. Chan took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period, respectively.

Investor Relations, Communication with Shareholders
and General Meeting

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information.
Information of the Company is communicated mainly through the Company’s
corporate communications including interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars, etc. These publications are sent to the shareholders in
a timely manner and are also available on the website of the Company
(http://www.zzmj.com). The means of communication between the Company
and the shareholders also include general meetings, analysts meetings or
seminars, one-on-one meetings, telephone consultation, advertisements, media
interviews and coverage, site visits and roadshows, etc.
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Shareholders’ Rights

According to the Articles of Association, shareholder(s) individually or in
aggregate holding 10% or above of the shares of the Company shall have the
right, by written requisition to the Board to propose an extraordinary general
meeting to be called. The Board shall, in accordance with laws, administrative
regulations, and the Articles of Association, make a response in writing on
whether or not it agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting, within
ten days upon receipt of such requisition. If the Board agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, a notice convening the extraordinary general
meeting shall be issued within five days to all shareholders after the Board
resolves to do so. If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary
general meeting or does not reply within 10 days upon receiving the request,
shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or above of the Company’s
shares shall have the right to propose to the Board of Supervisors to convene
an extraordinary general meeting by way of written request. If the Board of
Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
upon receiving the request. Should there be alterations to the original proposals
in the notice, consent has to be obtained from the related shareholders. If the
Board of Supervisors does not issue a notice of the general meeting within the
required period, it will be considered as not going to convene and preside over
the general meeting, and shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or
above of the shares of the Company for 90 consecutive days shall have the
right to convene and preside over the meeting on their own. All reasonable
expenses incurred for such meeting convened by the shareholders as a result
of the failure of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors to convene
a meeting as required by the above request(s) shall be borne by the Company,
and any sum so compensated shall be set-off against sums owed by the
Company to the defaulting Directors.

When a general meeting is convened, shareholder(s) individually or jointly
holding 3% or above of the Company’s shares shall have the right to submit
proposals to the Company. Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 3%
or above of the Company’s shares can submit the temporary proposal to the
convener 10 days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders have the right to make enquiries and copies of the minutes of
general meetings, resolutions of Board meetings and resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Shareholders may make enquiries about the Company’s affairs through our
investor relations consultant of the Company:

Strategic Development Department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

Address: No. 167 (Nan San Huan), 9th Street
Econ-Tech Development Zone
Zhengzhou
Henan Province
PRC

Telephone: (86371) 6789 1017

Fax: (86371) 6789 1100

Postal Code: 450016

During the Review Period, the Company amended the Articles of Association
pursuant to relevant requirements including the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Guidelines for the Articles of Association of Listed
Companies (amended in 2016) and the Rules for General Meetings of Listed
Companies (amended in 2016) promulgated by China Securities Regulatory
Commission, to better protect the interests of investors, particularly minority
investors. The amendments were considered and approved at the first
extraordinary general meeting of 2018 held on 12 February 2018. Please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 7 December 2017 and the circular
of the Company dated 25 January 2018 respectively for details.

Board of Supervisors
Composition of Board of Supervisors

As of the date of this annual report, the Board of Supervisors was composed of
seven members, four of whom are nominated by the shareholders and three are
nominated by the employees. The Supervisors are appointed for a term of three
years, upon the expiry of which they may be re-elected.

As at the end of the Review Period and as of the date of this annual report,
the members of the Board of Supervisors were Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Wang Yue,
Mr. Cui Leilei, Mr. Ni Wei, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Zhang Yichen and Mr. Yuan
Shaochong.

The list and biographies of the Supervisors of the Company are set out under the
section “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
Save as disclosed in that section, there is no any other material relationship
among members of the Board of Supervisors.
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Board of Supervisors (Continued)
Duties of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors shall be accountable to the general meetings and
exercise the following duties and powers in accordance with law:

e reviewing regular corporate reports prepared by the Board and submitting
written opinions regarding the same;

e examining the finance affairs of the Company;

e monitoring the performance of duties of Directors and senior management,
and proposing the dismissal of Directors and senior management who have
violated laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association or
resolutions of the general meetings;

e demanding for correction in the event of any damage to the interests of the
Company caused by Directors or senior management;

e proposing the convening of extraordinary general meetings, and convening
and chairing general meetings in the event of the Board having failed to
perform its duties to convene and chair the general meeting pursuant to the
Company Law;

e proposing motions to general meetings;

e liaising with Directors on behalf of the Company or instituting legal
proceedings against Directors and senior management pursuant to the
provisions of Article 151 of the Company Law;

e incase of any irregularity related to the operation of the Company identified,
to investigate; and if necessary, to engage professional institutions such
as accounting firms or law firms to assist in its work at the expense of the
Company;

e reviewing the financial information, such as financial report, operation report
and profit distribution plan, to be submitted by the Board to the general
meetings; and may, in the name of the Company, appoint a certified
public accountant or a qualified auditor to re-examine such documents if a
suspicious item is identified;

e exercising other duties and powers specified in the Articles of Association.

During the Review Period, the Board of Supervisors held seven meetings.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities and Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacturing of comprehensive
coal mining and excavating equipment. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the financial statements. During the
Review Period, the Group was engaged in two principal businesses, namely,
coal mining machinery and auto parts.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the Review Period, to the best knowledge of the Company, the Group
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a material impact on
the business of the Group in all material aspects and there were no material
breaches of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavours to achieve long-term sustainable development in the
environment and community where the Group operates. The Group actively
contributes to society and engages in public welfare activities in addition to
striving for good performance, to foster credibility and build a good corporate
image. Besides, the Group acts in an environmentally responsible way and
strives to comply with the relevant environmental laws and regulations. In
addition, the Group also adopts effective measures to achieve efficient utilisation
of resources, reduces wastage, and advocates saving water and electricity.

Business Review

Please refer to the section of Management Discussion and Analysis. The section
of Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Report of the Board
of Directors.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the
financial statements of this annual report.

A relevant resolution has been passed at a meeting of the Board held on 26
March 2019, and the Board proposed the payment of a final dividend (the
“Dividend”) of RMB1.45 per 10 shares for the year ended 31 December 2018,
totalling approximately RMB251,208,348.65. If the proposal in relation to the
profit distribution is approved by the shareholders at the 2018 annual general
meeting to be held on 20 June 2019 (the “2018 Annual General Meeting”),
the final dividend for H Shares of the Company will be distributed on or about 31
July 2019.
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Results and Dividends (Continued)

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (F2 2 A R HAIE 1>
ZFT{SF %) and its implementation regulations (the “EIT Law”), the tax rate
of enterprise income tax applicable to the income of a non-resident enterprise
deriving from the PRC is 10%. In this regard, any H Shares registered under
the name of a non-individual enterprise, including the H Shares registered
under the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees or trustees, or
other organisations or entities, shall be deemed as shares held by non-resident
enterprise shareholders (as defined under the “EIT Law”). The Company will
distribute the final dividend to those non-resident enterprise shareholders
subject to a deduction of 10% enterprise income tax withheld and paid by the
Company on their behalf.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the “EIT Law”) which is legally
incorporated in the PRC or established pursuant to the laws of foreign countries
(regions) but has its effective administrative entity located in the PRC, and
whose name appears on the Company’s H Share register should deliver a
legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident enterprise furnished by a
practicing PRC lawyer (with the official chop of the law firm issuing the opinion
affixed thereon) and relevant documents to Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited in due course, if the enterprise does not wish to have the 10%
enterprise income tax withheld and paid on their behalf by the Company.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy of Individual Income Tax after the
Abolishment of Circular SAT No. [1993]045 (787> B %% 225 [1993]0455% X {4
& IH12 BRAE A PSBEE FRERVBA) (the “Notice”) issued by the
State Administration of Taxation on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be distributed
by a domestic non-foreign invested enterprise which has issued shares in
Hong Kong to overseas resident individual shareholders, is subject to individual
income tax at a tax rate of 10% in general. However, the tax rates for respective
overseas resident individual shareholders may vary, depending on the relevant
tax agreements between the countries of their residence and Mainland China.
Thus, 10% individual income tax will be withheld from the final dividend payable
to any individual shareholders of H Shares whose names appear on the H Share
register of members of the Company on the Record Date, unless otherwise
stated in the relevant taxation regulations, taxation agreements or the Notice.

The Company will not be liable for any claim arising from any delay in, or
inaccurate determination of the identification of shareholders or any disputes
over the mechanism of withholding.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive
any dividends.
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Profit Distribution to Investors of Northbound Trading

For investors of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (including enterprises and
individuals) investing in the A Shares of the Company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (the “Northbound Trading”), their dividends will be distributed
in RMB by the Company through the Shanghai Branch of China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited to the account of the nominal
holder holding such shares. The Company will withhold and pay income taxes
at the rate of 10% on behalf of those investors and will report to the competent
tax authorities for the withholding. For investors of the Northbound Trading who
are tax residents of other countries and whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend income
tax rate of lower than 10%, those enterprises or individuals may apply to the
competent tax authorities for the entitiement of the rate under such tax treaty or
may entrust a withholding agent to do so. Upon approval by the competent tax
authorities, the paid amount in excess of the tax payable based on the tax rate
according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

The Record Date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of Northbound Trading will be the same as those
for the holders of A Shares of the Company.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Southbound Trading

For investors of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(including enterprises and individuals) investing in the H Shares of the Company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Southbound Trading”), the
Company has entered into the Agreement on Distribution of Cash Dividends of
H Shares for the Southbound Trading (7 % #FHN% A% 23R & 4T F) )k 2% 173
%) with China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited, pursuant
to which, China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited or its
branches, as the nominal holders of H Shares for the Southbound Trading,
will receive cash dividends distributed by the Company and distribute the cash
dividends to relevant investors of H Shares of the Southbound Trading through
its depositary and clearing system.

Cash dividends for the investors of H Shares of the Southbound Trading will
be paid in RMB. Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the Notice on
the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect (AR EBBREMER HEM G BEHIHE AR
Uk F 5 /938 40) (Caishui [2014] No.81) and the Notice on the Tax Policies
Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect
(BARRBIRET 5 5 5 8 B i 6l 5208 BT BCER 7 8 40)
(Gaishui [2016] No.127), for dividends received by domestic individual investors
from investing in H Shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect, the companies of such H Shares shall withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of the investors. For dividends received
by domestic securities investment funds from investing in shares listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange through the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or
the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the tax payable shall be the same as
that for individual investors. The companies of such H Shares will not withhold
and pay the income tax of dividends for domestic enterprise investors and such
investors shall report and pay relevant tax by themselves.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Southbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of H Shares of the Company.
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Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering on the
Stock Exchange

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2012 and the net proceeds were HK$2,155.55 million after
deducting relevant expenses. During the Review Period, save as described in
the announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2014 in relation to the
update on the use of proceeds and the announcement dated 23 May 2017 in
relation to the proposed change to the use of proceeds from H Share offering,
the use of proceeds was in line with the usage disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and note 49 to the financial statements, respectively.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions on pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
and the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has not adopted any share option scheme.

Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 30.51% of the
Group’s total sales, while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 12.87% of the Group’s total sales. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the total purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 15.67% of the Group’s total
purchases, while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 8.09% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates
or substantial shareholders who had more than 5% of the issued share capital
of the Company has any equity interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

The Group maintains steady relationship with each of the customers and
suppliers. The business of the Group does not rely on any individual customer or
supplier which may cause any material impact on the Group.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2018, details of movements in property, plant
and equipment and land use rights during the year are set out in notes 16 and
17 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Shares of the
Company

During the Review Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed shares of the Company.

Equity-Linked Agreement

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company and its subsidiaries
neither entered into any agreements in relation to equity-linked products nor
participated in any arrangement to subscribe for equity-linked financial products.

Directors and Supervisors

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors and the
Supervisors were as follows:

Directors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors were:

From 1 January 2018 to 11 February 2018:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director,
Vice Chairman), Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Guo Haofeng (Executive
Director), Liu Qiang (Executive Director), Liu Yao (Independent Non-executive
Director), Jiang Hua (Independent Non-executive Director), and Li Xudong
(Independent Non-executive Director)

From 12 February 2018 to the date of this report:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Jia Hao (Executive Director, Vice
Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director), Fu Zugang (Executive Director),
Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Wang Bin (Executive Director), Liu Yao
(Independent Non-executive Director), Jiang Hua (Independent Non-executive
Director), and Li Xudong (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Guo Haofeng and Mr. Liu Qiang were not nominated as candidates for re-
election as members of the fourth session of the Board, and they retired as
executive Directors and from other relevant positions of the Company with effect
from 12 February 2018.
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Directors and Supervisors (Continued)
Supervisors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Supervisors were:

From 1 January 2018 to 11 February 2018:

Mr. Li Chongqing, Mr. Zhang Zhigiang, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Liu Fuying, Mr. Ni
Heping, Ms. Xu Mingkai, and Mr. Zhang Jun

From 12 February 2018 to the date of this report:

Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Wang Yue, Mr. Cui Leilei, Mr. Ni Wei, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr.
Zhang Yichen and Mr. Yuan Shaochong

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

During the Review Period, none of the Directors or Supervisors entered into or
proposed to enter into any service agreement with any member of the Group,
other than agreements expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (excluding statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Insurance for Directors

The Company has taken out valid insurance for the Directors.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Material
Contracts

No contracts of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange) in which a Director or a Supervisor is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, and subsisted during the Review Period.

During the Review Period, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business in which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor is or was materially interested in any way, directly or
indirectly, and subsisted at any time during the period.

No contracts or proposed contracts with the Company in relation to the
Company’s business and in which a Director or a Supervisor was materially
interested in any way, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Company
hereby discloses that none of the Directors had any interest in any business (other
than the business of the Group) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

At no time during the Review Period were there rights to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or Supervisors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
there any such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or the Supervisors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company had interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) of Hong Kong) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFQO); or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
under the Listing Rules, which are stated as follows:
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Name Chief executive interest shares shares shares % shares % Lending pool
1LER
=97 -9/ BRAERN EROEHEN HE KRS
"L BETBRAR & #utdtE ROEN BOBE HSAEI% BMOEISH% TEHEHOKRG
Jiao Chengyao  Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,901,964 0.19 0.17  Long position
= Bx BEmfEa A A% HE
Xiang Jiayu Director Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,120 0.13 0.11  Long position
HESH Bx BEmfEa A A% HE
Fu Zugang Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,526,720 0.17 0.15  Long position
NN Bx BEmfEa A A% HE
Interest of spouse A Share 200,000 0.01 0.01  Long position
[Tz 0ps AR HE
Wang Xinying Director Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,040 0.13 0.11  Long position
T BE EmEA A AR e
Liu Qiang Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 11,500 0.00 0.00 Long position
258 = EmEA A ARZ HE
Zhou Rong Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 40,000 0.00 0.00 Long position
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations (ontinued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors,
Supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (as defined in the SFO of Hong Kong) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were deemed to have); or were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Structure and Number of Shareholders

Details of the shareholders recorded in the register of shareholders of the
Company as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:
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Holders of A Shares ARRPR R 47,105
Holders of H Shares HA% A% 5 85
Total number of shareholders A& B 4 2 47,190

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2018, the following
shareholders (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives) had
interests or short positions in any shares and the underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register of members
kept by the Company:

FERRAEQAFMERSG - HERS
ZHEENKRE

BEFHAA W2 /N\F+-A=+—8 "  TIKRX
(BF - EEIERTRABRRINRARBNERRD
AR ® A RBGES RAEED)EXVEE2
KD EAMEARBNERIRE » FRIB(ESF LB
B IGGI)FEI6MBLARNR AFHFHETMavERS0OX

A

B



N IR B AR (D B BR A A 20185 5

Report of the Board of Directors EE2{EE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the

Company (Continued)

FERRAXRDRMERS - HERS
ZRERRRE &)

Approximate
percentage of Approximate
Capacity/ the relevant percentage of  Long position/
Nature of Class of Number of class of the total number  Short position/
Name interest shares shares shares % of shares %  Lending pool
LB
BRI EROEEN HAR KBS
wE/ LB 5 RnitE 142 55 RHEBE BAESE%  SHAESIL% THEHORG
State-owned Assets Supervision Beneficial owner A Share 521,087,800 34.99 30.08  Long position
and Administration Commission ~ ZzHEB A A% HE
of Henan Provincial People’s
Government(
mE ARBRBEEEE
EEERZER
Henan Machinery Investment Beneficial owner A Share 521,087,800 34.99 30.08  Long position
Group Co., Ltd.m EnEAA A% HE
SRR ESE
BRETRAT
Bain Capital Asia Fund, L.P.@ Interest of controlled A Share 75,265,078 5.05 4,34 Long position
corporation AR HE
SR EB R
Bain Capital Fund X, L.P.@ Interest of controlled A Share 75,265,078 5.05 4,34 Long position
corporation AR HE
SR EB R
Bain Capital Asia Integral Investors,  Interest of controlled A Share 75,265,078 5.05 434 Long position
LP.@ corporation AR% e
SR EB R
ASIMCO Technologies Group Limited®  Interest of controlled A Share 75,265,078 5.05 434 Long position
corporation AR HE
SR EE R
Axle ATL Cayman Limited®@ Interest of controlled A Share 75,265,078 5.05 4,34 Long position
corporation AR HE
SR EE R
ASIMCO Technologies Hong Kong Interest of controlled A Share 75,265,078 5.05 4,34 Long position
Limited®@ corporation AR% e
SR EE R
ASIMCO (China) Limited® Beneficial owner A Share 75,265,078 5.05 4,34 Long position
TR (PEDIREBRAF EnlBA AR )
Bain Capital Asia Fund, L.P.@ Beneficial owner A Share 75,265,078 5.05 4,34 Long position
EnlEBA AR HAE
National Council Beneficial owner H Share 23,709,400 9.75 1.37  Long position
for Social Security Fund Enla A Hi% S
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company (Continued)

Note:

(1) Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. directly held 521,087,800 A Shares
of the Company. Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of Henan Provincial People’s Government. By virtue of the SFO, State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s
Government is deemed to own 521,087,800 A Shares of the Company which were
in the same block directly held by Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.

(2)  ASIMCO (China) Limited directly held 75,265,078 A Shares of the Company.
ASIMCO (China) Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ASIMCO Technologies
Hong Kong Limited, which was wholly-owned by Axle ATL Cayman Limited, which
was in turn wholly-owned by ASIMCO Technologies Group Limited, which was in
turn wholly-owned by Bain Capital Asia Integral Investors, L.P.. Bain Capital Asia
Fund, L.P. and Bain Capital Fund X, L.P. held 54.04% and 44.32% shares in Bain
Capital Asia Integral Investors, L.P.. By virtue of the SFO, ASIMCO Technologies
Hong Kong Limited, Axle ATL Cayman Limited, ASIMCO Technologies Group
Limited, Bain Capital Asia Integral Investors, L.P., Bain Capital Fund X, L.P. and Bain
Capital Asia Fund, L.P. were deemed to own 75,265,078 A Shares of the Company
which were in the same block directly held by ASIMCO (China) Limited.

Public Float

Based on the public information available to and the knowledge of the Directors,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company had maintained sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the government, and are entitled
to a monthly pension from the date of retirement. The PRC government is
responsible to perform the pension obligation for these retired employees. The
Group is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at a
rate of 20% of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an expense
when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions
and when the contributions are due. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
a total contribution of RMB124.98 million made by the Group to the retirement
scheme was charged to the statement of income.

Corporate Governance Code

During the Review Period, the Company complied with the applicable Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange.
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Report of the Board of Directors EE2{EE

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the financial year and as of the date of this annual report, the Company
had in force indemnity provisions as permitted under relevant regulations for
the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors) of the Company or its
associated companies. Such permitted indemnity provisions are set out in the
Liability Insurance maintained by the Company for its Directors and officers, in
respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against such Directors.

Subsequent Events

There were no material subsequent events during the period from 31 December
2018 to the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements by the
Board of Directors on 26 March 2019.

Closure of the Register of Members

The 2018 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Thursday,
20 June 2019. In order to determine the H Shareholders’ entitlement to attend
the Annual General Meeting, the H Share register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 21 May 2019 to Thursday, 20 June 2019 (both
days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For the
H Shareholders of the Company who wish to attend the 2018 Annual General
Meeting but are not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 20 May 2019.

If the resolution in relation to declaration of dividends is approved in the 2018
Annual General Meeting, the H Share dividends will be paid to H Shareholders
whose names appear on the Company’s H Share register of members after the
close of trading on Friday, 5 July 2019. The Company’s register of members
will be closed from Monday, 1 July 2019 to Friday, 5 July 2019 (both days
inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For the H
Shareholders of the Company who wish to receive the final dividend but are
not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712—-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 28 June 2019.

Audit Committee

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the audited annual consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 with the management and the external
auditor.

By order of the Board
Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

Zhengzhou, the People’s Republic of China
26 March 2019
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2018 FEEES TERE

During 2018, in accordance with the power conferred and duties imposed by
relevant requirements of the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Articles of Association of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited and the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, and in the principle of being
accountable to all its shareholders, the Company’s Board of Supervisors
commenced its supervision according to law and diligently performed its
authority and obligations, and exercised their supervisory function over the
Directors and senior management of the Company, playing a positive role in the
standardized operation and development of the Company. The 2018 report of
the Board of Supervisors is set out below.

I. Basic Evaluation on Operation Behavior of the
Board of Directors and the Management and the
Performance Achieved in 2018

Through its supervision over the Directors and senior management of the
Company, the Board of Supervisors considered that the Board was able
to strictly comply with the requirements of the Company Law, the Articles
of Association and other relevant laws and regulations, and operated in
accordance with the laws. All major operation decisions of the Company
were rational and the decision-making process was lawful and valid. The
Company has established and enhanced its internal management system
and internal control mechanism. The Directors and senior management
of the Company conscientiously executed their respective duties in
accordance with the national laws, regulations, the Articles of Association,
and the resolutions of the general meetings and the Board meetings. They
were devoted to their duties, giving their utmost efforts in exploration
and expansion. None of the Directors and senior management of the
Company were found to have violated any laws, regulations or the Articles
of Association in discharging their duties for the Company and engaged
in any acts which contravened the interests of the shareholders or the
Company.

Facing the complex and ever-changing internal and external environment
in 2018, ZMJ stayed closely in line with its annual operating goal of
“structural reshaping to foster transformation, all-rounded synergy to
secure growth, innovation-driven approach to fabricate fine products,
and scientific management to augment efficiency”, promoting smooth
transition and integration of its newly acquired SEG project, reorganizing
and optimizing the management structure of the Group, and continuing
to intensify the reform of state-owned enterprises. As a result, the Group
experienced rapid development, with a stable and positive development
momentum reflected in all its business segments and substantial increases
recorded in major economic indicators such as revenue and profit.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2018

Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in
2018

(M

Completed Re-election of the Board of Supervisors
According to Laws and Regulations

During the reporting period, the term expired for the third session of
the Board of Supervisors. To ensure the continuity and effectiveness
of supervision by the Board of Supervisors, the Board of Supervisors
re-elected the Board of Supervisors according to legal procedures
and pursuant to the Company Law, the Articles of Association as well
as the laws and regulations regarding securities regulation.

Upon election at the Company’s general meeting and at the employee
representative meeting, the Company elected the fourth session
of the Board of Supervisors, which comprised four shareholder
representative Supervisors and three employee representative
Supervisors. Among them, shareholder representative Supervisors
are Liu Qiang, Wang Yue, Cui Leilei and Ni Wei; and employee
representative Supervisors are Zhou Rong, Zhang Yichen and Yuan
Shaochong. Liu Qiang chairs the Board of Supervisors. Employee
representative Supervisors account for no less than one third of
the Board of Supervisors, which complies with the requirements of
relevant laws and regulations.

Overview of the Meeting of the Board of Supervisors
Held in 2018

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors held a total
of seven meetings and considered and approved 28 resolutions in
accordance with the Company Law, the Articles of Association and
other relevant regulations. Details are set out as follows:

No. Date of the Meeting  Session of the Meeting
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Proposals Considered and Approved

EREBNER

F¥ E=AH gRERX
1 22 January 2018 20" Meeting of the Third Session 1.
201841 A22H of the Board of Supervisors
FoEEEEE_TARER
1
2 12 February 2018 The First Meeting of the Fourth 1.
20182 H12H Session of the Board of

Supervisors

FUEEFEE—AEH 1.

3 29 March 2018

201843 A29H Fourth Session of the Board of

Supervisors 1

FNEEFEE_REH

The Second Meeting of the 1.

The Proposal on Nominating Candidates for Shareholder
Representative Supervisors of the Fourth Session of the Board of
Supervisors

(AR REAFOEEFERRAREFEREANZR)

The Proposal on Electing Chairman for the Fourth Session of the
Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

(RPN ERENEBEMERROBERARIENEESE
FEONRE)

The Proposal on the 2017 Work Report of the Board of Supervisors of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
CEARCE MRS E RGO BRAF0T7TFEEEE
THEREIHER)
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2018 FEEEEE TR

Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in
2018 (Continued)

(2) Overview of the Meeting of the Board of Supervisors

Held in 2018 (Continued)

No. Date of the Meeting  Session of the Meeting
Fi S®AH B2ER

018 EEEET/EER )

(D) NFEEZEEEA

EDAC )

Proposals Considered and Approved

ERBEBNRAR

The Proposal on 2017 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial
Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

SRR (BB AR SR B A0 B IR A BI2017 F E AR & =T

BRSNS IS ) HIFEER)

The Proposal on 2017 Annual Report on A Shares and Summary
thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

- (R CERMN R 52 AL 0 B IR 2 BIABR 2017 - F E )

ERERBINER)

The Proposal on 2017 Annual Results Announcement of H Shares
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited and
Authorising the Chairman of the Company to Sign and Announce
2017 Annual Report of the Company s H Shares

(R CERN R e A SR B AL () B TR A BIHBR 2017 SF SR E 25

BAEREREARESREZFUAEAAHKR017FFE
KRR

The Proposal on the 2017 Specific Audit Report on the Deposit
and Use of Proceeds of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

(AR BMNEEEREER N AR AR0TFESESR

S REFRNFEREZRS)HHE)

The Proposal on the 2017 Social Responsibility Report (A Share) and
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (H Share)

: <<F§EA<201YEF?i@§1£§&%(AH£)>&<1§% CHERE

adE () B E)

The Proposal on the 2017 Report on Internal Control Assessment of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

(R (BRI BB AR SR B A A0 B TR A 12017 6 E A AR %

HIFHER S ES)

The Proposal on the 2017 Audit Report on Internal Control of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

SRR (BB R AR SR B A0 A PR A 12017 6 E A AR %

HIEFHIRE )RR

The Proposal on the 2017 Profit Distribution Plan of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

+ (BR2017TFEFBE D RRZESR)
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018F EEESTEEHE
Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in Z 2018 FEEEETEE R
2018 (Continued)
(2) Overview of the Meeting of the Board of Supervisors (D) NBEEESZSLZARER (@)
Held in 2018 (Continued)
No. Date of the Meeting  Session of the Meeting Proposals Considered and Approved

Fi EEAH BHEER EREBNER

10. The Proposal on the Daily Connected Transactions of the Company in
2017 and the Expected Daily Connected Transactions of the Company
in2018

10 ~ KRR FI0174F E B B B R 5150 R 2018 E Azt B
BB S ERNER)

11.  The Proposal on the Change of Accounting Policies of the Company
1N (ARRRIETBEZEENRR)

4 27 April 2018 The Third Meeting of the Fourth 1. The Proposal on the 2018 First Quarterly Report and Summary
20184 H27H Session of the Board of thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
Supervisors 1 CER<BBINEREREBR D BRARI08FFE —EE

FUEEEEFE=REE WEREBESNHEE)

2. The Proposal on the Change of Accounting Policies of the Company

2 (BARARIETHRREENHR)

5 23 July 2018 The Fourth Meeting of the Fourth 1. The Proposal on the Company Satisfying the Conditions Precedent to
201847 A23H Session of the Board of the Non-public Issue of A Shares
Supervisors 1+ (BRARIFAEIELHBETARBREGRENZESR)

FNEEEGFENREE
2. The Proposal on the Plan of Non-public Issue of A Shares by the
Company
2 (BARARIBEAREITARKRE D RNZER)

3. The Proposal on the Planned Non-public Issue of A Shares by the
Company in 2018
3 KBERRTI018FREIFAFEITARKRETERAHESR)

4. The Proposal on the Feasibility Analysis Report on the Use of
Proceeds from the Non-public Issue of A Shares by the Company in
2018

4~ (ERRAER018FEIFAFBETARKEEEE AL
TS T RS M SR

5. The Proposal on the Report on the Use of Proceeds from the Previous
Fund Raising by the Company
5 (FARDAAIREREEABARENRE)

6. The Proposal on the Effect of the Dilution of Current Returns as a
Result of the Non-public Issue of A Shares on the Key Financial
Indicators of the Company and Measures Adopted by the Company

6 (BAREARMBITARRSH BRI EERE QT EZHK
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Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in
2018 (Continued)

(2) Overview of the Meeting of the Board of Supervisors
Held in 2018 (Continued)

018 EEEET/EER )

(D) NFEEZEEEA

EDAC )

No. Date of the Meeting  Session of the Meeting Proposals Considered and Approved
F¥ EEAH BBER FERBBNRARER
7. The Proposal on the Relevant Committing Entities Making Their

6 29 August 2018 Fifth Meeting of the Fourth session 1.

20184F8 H29H of the Board of Supervisors

%E‘E% ggﬁﬁ/)\a‘& 1

2.
2
3.
3
7 26 October 2018 Sixth Meeting of the Fourth 1.
20184F10 526 H Session of the Board of
Supervisors 1-

FNEEEEE S RER

For the past year, the Board of Supervisors strengthened its
supervision over the Board of Directors and the management and
supervised and inspected the production operation of the Company
according to law, pursued standardization and enhancement of the
system of the Company and worked diligently for its development.

Commitment on Adopting Remedial Measures for the Dilution of
Current Returns Following the Non-public Issue of A Shares

(BN AR AR T B E L <R FF AR BT TAR IR REOE R

HA el R BUE A 1A e RV AR R > HIRR 2D

The Proposal on the Planned Distributions to Shareholders for the
Next Three Years (2019 —2021)

< (R AR R =F (20194 — 20214 ) R D 4L @ RAF 205

%)

The Proposal on Amending the System of Managing Proceeds from
Fundraising

- (BERERI<EEETERHIESHHEER)

The Proposal on 2018 Interim Report on A Shares and Summary

thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

CRAP <EB)N I 5= B R 15 B IR A BIARR2018 5 F F [E
WEREBESHZERE)

The Proposal on 2018 Interim Results Announcement of H Shares
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited and
Authorising the Chairman of the Company to Sign and Announce
2018 Interim Report of the Company s H Shares

+ (R <EPMN IR 52 B I 15 A R A BIHAR 2018 AR B 3

BRESREBAREERFZIN R E<AAIHR20185FH
HRESNFER)

The Proposal on the 2018 Special Interim Report on the Deposit and
Actual Use of Proceeds of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

- (BR<BMEE M EER D BERIR018FLFEE

SESHFRABRERBRNERRESNHRE)

The Proposal on the 2018 Third Quarterly Report and the Summary

thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
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Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2018

lil. Independent Opinion of the Board of Supervisors
on the Company’s Operations in 2018

1.

Lawful operation of the Company

The Board of the Company has complied with relevant requirements
stipulated in the Company Law, the Articles of Association, and the
Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors and carried on regulated
operations, and the decision-making procedures were lawful and
valid. The Company has established and improved its internal control
system; and the Directors and senior management of the Company
discharged their duties conscientiously, with no acts of violation of
any laws, regulations and the Articles of Association or prejudice to
the Company’s interests found.

Inspection of financial status of the Company

Having reviewed the financial status of the Company, the Board of
Supervisors considered that the financial report of the Company
reflected the actual state of the Company’s financial position
and operation results, and that the audit report was truthful and
reasonable and enabled shareholders to correctly understand the
financial and operational status of the Company. The 2018 Annual
Report prepared by the Board of the Company reflected the Company’s
position in a truthful, lawful and complete manner, without any false
record, misleading statement or any material omissions.

Inspection of the utilization of proceeds

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the utilization of proceeds,
and the Company has established a system for managing its
proceeds. The proceeds were used in a regulated manner and
invested in the projects as undertaken. Relevant decision-making
procedures were followed in changing the use of proceeds from H
Share offering and in their utilization according to law, with no breach
of regulations found in respect of the proceeds.

Acquisition and disposal of assets by the Company

During 2018, the acquisition and disposal of assets by the Company
took place in strict compliance with the Articles of Association and
the relevant requirements of Shanghai Stock Exchange and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Relevant decision-making
procedures were carried out according to law, with fair transactions,
well-regulated operations and no insider trading discovered. Nor were
there any prejudice to shareholders’ interests or dissipation of the
Company’s assets.
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lil. Independent Opinion of the Board of Supervisors
on the Company’s Operations in 2018 (Continued)

5.

Connected transactions

The connected transactions of the Company in 2018 took place in
strict compliance with the Articles of Association and the connected
transaction agreements and the transactions were fair and reasonable;
major connected transactions were conducted on an arm’s length
basis and the statutory approval process was fulfilled, with no act that
is prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Internal control self-assessment report

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2018 self-assessment
report on the Company’s internal control prepared by the Board as
well as the establishment and implementation of the Company’s
internal control system, and considered that the Company had
established a relatively sound internal control system which
could be effectively implemented. The self-assessment report on
the Company’s internal control reflected the establishment and
implementation of such system in the Company in a truthful and
objective manner.

The Board of Supervisors’ review opinions on the
2018 Annual Report of the Company

The preparation of and procedures for reviewing the 2018
Annual Report of the Company were in compliance with the
relevant requirements of the laws, regulations and the Articles of
Association. The content and the format thereof were in line with all
the requirements of China Securities Regulatory Commission and
Shanghai Stock Exchange, with the information contained therein
giving a true view of the business management and financial position
of the Company in that year. No staff involved in the preparation
and review of the annual report was found to have violated the
confidentiality requirement.

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2018 Annual Report of
the Company and its summary and considered that the preparation
and review procedures of the 2018 Annual Report of the Company
were in compliance with relevant laws, regulations and the Articles
of Association, as well as requirements under the internal control
system of the Company; that the content and format thereof were in
line with all the relevant requirements of China Securities Regulatory
Commission and relevant requirements of Shanghai Stock Exchange
including the Notice Concerning the Proper Disclosure Made in the
2018 Annual Report of Listed Companies; and that the information
contained therein gives a true, accurate and complete view of the
actual situation of the Company in various aspects and does not give
rise to any detriment to the interests of the shareholders. No staff
involved in the preparation, review or information disclosure of the
2018 Annual Report of the Company was found to have violated the
confidentiality requirement in the course of his/her work.
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IV. Working Plan of the Board of Supervisors in 2019

In 2019, the Board of Supervisors of the Company will continue to strictly
comply with the requirements of the Company Law, the Articles of
Association and the relevant laws, regulations and policies of the country,
perform its duties faithfully, and further facilitate regulated operations of
the Company.

(M

Comply with the laws and regulations and discharge
duties conscientiously

In 2019, the Board of Supervisors will strictly implement the relevant
requirements of the Company Law and the Articles of Association,
and supervise the Board and the management according to law so
that decision-making and operation activities will take place in a more
regulated and lawful manner.

Firstly, the Board of Supervisors will urge the Company to further
improve its corporate governance structure and enhance governance
standards according to the requirements of modern corporate
system.

Secondly, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the Board
of Supervisors, it will continue to strengthen the performance of its
supervisory function, attend the Board meetings according to law,
and timely grasp the Company’s major decisions and the legality of
the decision-making procedures, thereby protecting the interests of
the shareholders in a better way.

Thirdly, the Board of Supervisors will convene working meetings on a
regular basis to implement its rules of procedure.

Strengthen supervision and inspection to avoid
operational risks

The Board of Supervisors will constantly strengthen its supervision
over the Directors and senior management on their performance
of duties, execution of resolutions and compliance with laws and
regulations.

Firstly, the Board of Supervisors will maintain financial supervision as
a focus, and monitor the financial position of the Company according
to law.

Secondly, The Board of Supervisors will further strengthen its
internal control system to prevent corporate risks and the loss of the
Company’s assets. It will regularly keep informed of and understand
the operation status of the Company from the holding companies,
especially major operation activities and investment projects, and
provide prompt suggestions to stop and remedy the situation when
problems are found.
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IV. Working Plan of the Board of Supervisors in 2019
(Continued)

@)

Strengthen supervision and inspection to avoid
operational risks (continued)

Thirdly, the Board of Supervisors will maintain communications and
liaison with the internal audit department and external accounting
firms, making full use of internal and external audit information to
keep abreast of relevant situations.

Fourthly, the Board of Supervisors will pay particular attention to high
risk areas of the Company and carry out inspections on critical aspects
such as major investments, proceeds management and connected
transactions.

Bolster professional capabilities through self-
improvement

To better play its role, the Board of Supervisors should boost its
professional qualifications first in order to work efficiently. In this
regard, members of the Board of Supervisors will receive more
training, attend relevant programs in a planned manner and persist
in self-improvement during the new year in a bid to broaden their
professional knowledge and improve their professional capabilities,
so as to further protect the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. Members of the Board of Supervisors should also
strictly comply with laws, regulations and the Articles of Association,
discharge their duties conscientiously, and better perform the
supervisory function of the Board of Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

26 March 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BiIR - B RERHRE

About this Report

This report is prepared with reference to provisions set out in “Guidelines on
Environmental Information Disclosure by Listed Companies” issued by Shanghai
Stock Exchange in May 2008 and “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
December 2015. Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
presents its social responsibility report for the year 2018, namely, from 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2018.

This report focuses on the activities carried out by Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited After considering a range of parameters
such as sales values, business types, profits and asset values, the following
entities are included in the reporting scope:

e (Coal mining machinery products: Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Hydraulic Electrical Control Co., Ltd., Zhengzhou Coal Mining machinery
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd., Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Material Trading Co., Ltd.

e Auto parts products: ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd.,
ASIMCO Camshaft (Yizheng) Co., Ltd., ASIMCO International Casting Co.,
Ltd. (Shanxi), Hubei Super Electric Auto Motor Co., Ltd. and ASIMCO NVH
Technologies Co., Ltd. (Anhui).

This report does not cover the world-leading vehicle motor enterprise Robert
Bosch Starter Motors Generators Holding GmbH (currently known as “SEG
Automotive Germany GmbH” and hereinafter referred to as “SEG”), a former
subsidiary of the Germany-based Bosch Group and acquired by the Company
in 2018. For the ease of presentation and reading, Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited is referred to as the “Company”, “ZMJ”
or “We” and the 5 auto parts manufacturing subsidiaries are referred to as
“ASIMCQ” in this report.
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BRI - HERERERE

2018 Review (Including SEG)

We successfully acquired SEG

We completed the acquisition of equity interest in the SEG project, made
a successful transition and delivered sound operation. With German
technology + China’s speed + global marketing, we will be able to expand
our Chinese market at a rapid place, with a view to achieving large-scale
localised application and marketing as soon as possible for products and
services including starter motors generators and 48V BRM; on top of the
technological accumulation over the years and the strong R&D system of
SEG, we will study and explore technologies related to electrical application
and achieve transformation and upgrade.

We recorded revenue of RMB26,012 million and a net profit of RMB939
million, with a corporate income tax rate of 27%

Our revenue amounted to RMB26,012 million in 2018, representing an
increase of 245% as compared to that of 2017. Our net profit amounted
to RMB939 million in 2018, representing an increase of 176% from
2017. We paid an aggregate of RMB350 million globally, with an effective
corporate income tax rate of 27%.

17,914 employees, remuneration of RMB3,279 million was paid

In 2018, we had 17,914 employees and paid a total of RMB3,279 million
for their remuneration.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Highlights of Sustainable Development in 2018
(excluding SEG)

92% employees trained and zero work-related death

We have established a training structure open to all employees, in which
92% of employees were trained and the average training hours amounted
to 29 hours per employee.

We had no accidents of work-related death in 2018.

Water recycling rate of 84% and a 29% decrease in greenhouse gas
density

We mainly consumed recycled water and achieved a water recycling rate
of approximately 84% in 2018.

We have improved energy efficiency, and recorded an approximately 29%
decline in greenhouse gas density in 2018 as compared to 2017.

Independent R&D and manufacturing of 8.8-meter hydraulic roof support

In 2018, the world’s first hydraulic roof support product used for the
8.8-meter ultra-mining height intelligent workface of comprehensive
coal mining with complete independent intellectual property rights was
developed and manufactured by ZMJ independently.
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Management Methods
Social Responsibility Governance

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for our social responsibility
report, including the assessment and identification of social responsibility risks
and ensuring that an appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control system is in place for social responsibility. We have appointed our
departments of business functions to review the Company’s operations and
hold internal discussions to identify relevant social responsibility issues and
assess the importance of such issues to our business and stakeholders. The
management has confirmed the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system for social responsibility to the Board. According to the general
disclosure requirements of environmental, social and governance guidelines,
the identified major environmental, social and governance issues have been
included in this social responsibility report, to provide balanced disclosure of the
social responsibility performance of ZMJ during its operations.

Stakeholders’ Engagement

While adhering to the belief of creating a world-class brand and tirelessly
pursuing its own development, ZMJ has due regard to the needs of
stakeholders, including investors, the government/regulatory authorities,
employees, customers, suppliers, the non-government organisations and
the community. By establishing avenues conducive to the engagement of
stakeholders, the Company brings in the views of each party to the whole
decision-making and operating process of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Management Methods (continued)

Stakeholders’ Engagement (Continued)

This report provides the stakeholders of ZMJ with the latest information
about the Company’s activities and performance in environmental, social and
governance areas, conveying the Company’s wish to create the best value for

its stakeholders.

Rk HERERERE
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Stakeholders Expectations and Needs Means of Engagement
ERE BREEEEERR 2HEGN
Investors e Protection of Shareholders’ rights and e (eneral meetings
BEE interests ° REXE
o (REZAXEMEF K e e News releases and announcements
e Timely and accurate disclosure of relevant o FEfE A%
information e FExternal reports
o REREEREEE o HHNRE
e |mprovement of the corporate governance e Release of news on website of the Company
o EENGDRE o TEREMEUREEIEE
e Qperation in compliance with law e |nvestment briefings
o HEASHKE o REENNAG
Government/regulatory e Compliance with law e Compliance reports
authorities o HEAH o SHWE
BT BEEHE e Safe and healthy workplace e Supervision and Inspection
o TE5AMETERER ¢ EERE
e Bringing Benefits to the related communities e Application for license
*  RFIzAEREE R AL o A {FEGE
e Compliance conferences
° AREBER
Employees e Competitive remuneration and benefits e Trade unions/employee representative congress
BT o BBRFHOHMFIET e ITE/BMIKKAE
e Safe and healthy workplace e Collective negotiation agreements
o IT{ESEMTRRE o SEHHIHE
e Training and capacity building e  Safety and compliance conferences
o HEPIFIgE R o LRHEGHER
e Training and career development
o A ERE
e Communication channels for corporate employees
o (EETHBERSE
Customers e Customer service e Seminars for key customers
TR o EPR% o EHEFPEHREG
e Quality assurance e Systematic communications
o HERME o ZEEMNEB
e Product liability e \Visit to plants in operation
s EmEHR o EBEREZLE
e Participation in industrial organisations
o ZINTTEABH

Sustainability report
AFEEREmE
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Management Methods (Continued) BEEBHE®
Stakeholders’ Engagement (ontinued) BmELHE)

Stakeholders Expectations and Needs Means of Engagement
EwE HASEEEER R 2HEEX

Suppliers e Admittance management of suppliers Tendering, seminars
fHpER s HEREAERE Rz - e

e Evaluation of suppliers

o  (HEERETL

e Protection of suppliers’ rights
o HEMERRE

e Cooperation with suppliers

o HERMAE

Admittance and evaluation of suppliers
AN N R

On-site inspections

B ER

Meetings with senior management

= PN
= E g

Non-government organisations ¢  Investments in local development
EBURAE & o EHMERRKRA

e Participation in local community projects

e ZMEMMIEIAR

e Bearing environmental responsibility

o AERBRBME

e Human rights

o AREBR

e Sharing benefits fairly

o RQNFHHERE

Annual social responsibility report
FEHGEERE

Direct communications
HEBR

Factory visit

Mz 28

Communities e |ocal development
HE o EMEHRE

e Bearing environmental responsibility

o EERIREME

e Promoting employment

o HEFFE

e Providing opportunities for local goods and
services providers

*  AEMARFARGRER TSRS

Convening community meetings
ARt EE®E

Focusing on group meetings
BHETREE R
Procurement demand notices
REBHRRE

Recruitment notices

FBIERE
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Critical Social Responsibility Issues

From our investigation and communication with the internal and external
stakeholders of ZMJ, we have collected many suggestions. From the
dimensions of both the impact on the Company’s operation and the impact on
our stakeholders, we have scored and ranked the social responsibility issues of
ZMJ to reflect our material impacts on the environment and society and better
respond to the expectations and needs of stakeholders.

Our matrix of critical issues is as follows:

=L
S
=

ot

Very important
FEEE

Important
BE

s1apjoyaye}s uo 1oedwy
Al K

L{(;Ew Impact on company’s operation
- HAREBHNTZE
Market Responsibility

After years of dedication, ZMJ has grown into the world’s largest supplier of
technology and equipment for comprehensive coal mining and a world leading
manufacturer of auto parts, while engaging itself in coal mining machinery, auto
parts, industrial services and financial investment. We have built a China-based
high-end equipment manufacturing group with a global perspective, enjoying
such reputation as the “First Brand in China’s Coal Mining Machinery Industry”.

During 2018, we did not identify any recall of sold or shipped products for safety
and health reasons.
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Very important FEEE
Product responsibility EmEE
Safety and health e R
Anti-corruption RIBEE
Labour standards LT R
Supplier management HERERR
Customer service BE RS
Important g5
Energy AEIR
Greenhouse gas emission BE R
Career development BEERE
Community responsibility HEEME
Caring for staff BI@E
Relevant izl
Exhaust gas/solid waste R,
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Water resources management 7K &R & 18
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Market Responsibility (continued)
Product Responsibility of Coal Mining Machinery

Our coal mining machinery business has been adhering to “high standards,
delicacy and zero defect” quality ideal, and devoted to establishing ZMJ as
“the Best Supplier of Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment and
Services in the World”, so as to accomplish the transformation from “China
First” to “the World’s Best” and “Made in China” to “Created in China”. High
quality and advanced coal mining machinery products have helped our coal
mining machinery business go beyond China’s border. We have made a
ground-breaking progress as a Chinese coal mining machinery manufacturer by
tapping the high-end segment of the American market for the first time ever. In
Vietnamese market, with 100% ratio of achieving designed capacity, we are the
only comprehensive coal mining machinery supplier to have such attainment.
We have successfully entered into the supply contract of comprehensive
mining equipment for Indonesia project to realise a ground-breaking progress
in Indonesia market. To date, we have successfully expanded our business to
international markets in Russia, India, Turkey, Vietnam, United States of America
and Australia, as well as Indonesia.

Technical Support for Coal Mining Machinery
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8.8m Hydraulic Roof Support, independently developed and manufactured by ZMJ
TR B B L 8. 8mIR B ST AR



RPN KRR SR B AR 1D B IR A R 201853

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Market Responsibility (continued)
Technical Support for Coal Mining Machinery (Continued)

In our coal mining machinery business, we have scientific research institutions
including China’s national enterprise technological centers, post-doctoral
work stations, academician work stations. We have undertaken research and
development for various key projects on coal mining comprehensive equipment
in China, leading the development trend of China’s coal mining equipment. We
have various patents and formulated “Management Measures for Intellectual
Property Rights” for fortifying the management and protection of our intellectual
property rights.

In 2018, the output of 8.8-meter ultra-mining height intelligent workface at
Shangwan Coal Mine of Shendong Coal Group (& 58 /& % £ &) exceeded
10 million tons. As the world’s first 8.8-meter ultra-mining height intelligent
workface for comprehensive coal mining with complete independent intellectual
property rights, the hydraulic roof support product used for such workface was
developed and manufactured by ZMJ independently.

We have been adhering to an integrated development model combining R&D
with marketing through continuously enhancing our efforts in investments in
R&D of the technology to adapt to new development model of the industry, and
provided our customers with the most suitable equipment solutions related to
coal mining works. For example, we are promoting the technology of unmanned
workface in shaft to improve the working environment of mine workers and
improve labour productivity.

Quality Management system for Coal Mining Machinery

In our coal mining machinery business, we adhere to the artisan spirit, insisting
on the quality goal of “people-oriented and scientific management for offering
satisfactory products and services to the customers”. We put our customers’
needs first to guarantee the reliability of product quality.

Benchmarking against GB/T19001-2000 idt ISO 9001:2000 Quality
Management Systems — Requirements, ZMJ has established a sound quality
control system and a full-process testing and inspection system. In 2018, we
continue to organise an assessment of internal quality system and organise
themed activities and training in respect of stabilizing and improving product
quality, in the hope that the “artisan spirit” can be embodied in each section of
our product manufacturing processes.

In the coal mining machinery industry, we took the lead in acquiring the
IS03834-2 International Welding Enterprise Certification. In addition, we
have gained quality management system certification issued by China United
Certification Center.
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Market Responsibility (Continued) miEEFE®)

Quality Management system for Coal Mining Machinery — (EHHNES 2 B TR 62 X ()
(Continued)

The Full-Process Inspection System for Coal Mining Machinery: R 2 RIERHER
Entry Inspection
EARER
r 1
i' . f Raw materials must pass strict inspections before we put them into commission. The test items
b T include chemical composition inspection and mechanical performance inspection. In this connection,
- iV/ we have established “ZMJ central laboratory” and acquired relevant precision instrument and
_' o0 b inspection equipment and professional inspectors so as to guarantee the quality of raw materials.
-~ EMEHERUR S BERER A REIR AL - 0RITE B 215 L 2R B AN B 1 B g

Bl Al BPIRLT [SEEROERE] - REEEETESTERRE  KEE
EWRAIAR - RETRMENE B -

Process Inspection

BRERR

During the production process, we apply 3-step inspections, including self-inspection, mutual inspection and
specific inspection, to ensure the quality of products in each process. After the welding of the structural parts,
the key welded seam should undergo a 100% non-destructive testing. The qualified items can be passed to
the next step. Before assembling, oil pressure levers should pass the 100% cleanliness inspection and down-
hole and cross-hole inspection with an industrial endoscopy in order to guarantee the cleanliness of hydraulic
systems.

EEBER  BONIT=RE - AR BRNER RETE—EIFNERRE - 248
HIREE TR 2 - BARRIRAEZEHETT 100% IBIRE - SR EF AT o ST T TERECAT © 100%
BAERE - FAXXIRALIENEGRSE - WRBRBRFERE -

Finished Product Inspection

FmIRER

In the finished product inspection process, we regard “100% Pass Rate of Finished Product Performance” as our
goal, and implement a 100% inspection of finished products. We own a 30,000KN hydraulic roof support inspection
H_HT'-"" bench and conduct a sampling inspection for each batch of hydraulic roof supports so as to guarantee the reliability of
%2._\ supporting intensity of the products.
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Market Responsibility (Continued)

Intelligent Coal Mining Machinery Equipment Sample
Factory

Against the backdrop of “Made in China 2025” and “Industry 4.0”, ZMJ
endeavors to establish an intelligent coal mining machinery equipment sample
factory, import globally advanced equipment, build up high-end hydraulic roof
support manufacturing base, and keep improving the quality of products.

We have a digitally controlled processing center with highest degree of
automation in the coal mining machinery industry in China, intelligent steel
cutting production line, intelligent robotic welder, automated painting line and
the most advanced hydraulic roof support inspection equipment in the coal
mining machinery industry.

We have replaced the traditional electroplating technology with laser cladding
technology. Using laser cladding technology can produce a durable and thick
coating with high bonding strength and corrosion resistance, which solves the
problem of rusting and surface-falling of electroplated coating during operation
and ensures the proper operation of coal mining machines.

In order to stabilise and enhance the quality of products, we have introduced
advanced technology such as robotic welding and cutting. The workload of one
robotic arm is equal to two skillful welders, and during the welding process,
robots can use the same welding parameter for each welded seam, and hence
we can improve welding quality and production efficiency. Based on the actual
situation on site, the pass rate for crack detection of robotic welding is 100%.
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An automatic painting production line of oil pressure levers in a smart factory
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Market Responsibility (continued)
Auto Parts Product Responsibility of ASIMCO

We have provided high quality auto parts with competitive prices for the China
and global automotive market after the completion of the acquisition of ASIMCO
Group, one of the biggest and most independent auto parts manufacturing
groups in China.

Production facilities of ASIMCO are found across several major cities of China,
which have comprehensive railway, waterway and highway transportation
capabilities and are able to deliver goods to Chinese customers timely and
effectively. Meanwhile, ASIMCO has established and managed various overseas
warehouses in the U.S. as well as Europe for offering JIT services from nearby
places to international customers.
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Global customer support and warehousing arrangement for our auto parts business
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ASIMCO provides auto parts and relevant warehousing and logistics services to various well-known automotive brands
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Market Responsibility (continued)
Auto Parts Product Responsibility of ASIMCO (Continued)

In 2018, ASIMCO auto parts business gained various accolades, some of which
are as follows:

e ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. (Shanxi) and ASIMCO Camshaft
(Yizheng) Co., Ltd. gained Dongfeng Cummins 2018 “Best Supplier Award”
and “Best Quality Continuous Quality Improvement Award”.

e ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. was granted the
“Quality Contribution Award” from JAC Motors.

e ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. was granted the “Best
Supplier Award” from SDEC for 14 consecutive years.

e ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. (Shanxi) was granted the “Quality
Contribution Award” from JAC-Navistar.

e ASIMCO Camshaft (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. was granted “Excellent Quality
Award” from SFH.

Engineering Technology Capacity of ASIMCO

ASIMCO produces various kinds of auto parts products, including start-stop
system motor, starter motor, electric generator, piston ring, valve seat ring,
noise and vibration absorber, rubber seal. For the auto parts using materials
application technology as their core, these include, cylinder head, camshaft,
different types of aluminum castings and powder metallurgy products.
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Market Responsibility (continued)
Auto Parts Product Responsibility of ASIMCO (Continued)

ASIMCO keeps enhancing its engineering technology capacity for securing new
product R&D and innovation. ASIMCO has the following engineering technology
capacities:

e 153 inventions and utility model patents including 27 invention patents
which have been authorised.

e Advanced computer-aided engineering method and simulation technology.
e Comprehensive ability for testing performance, durability and environment.

e  Standardised workflow for new product R&D and project management.
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ASIMCO has 5 separate R&D centres in different product areas to push forward
the innovation and development of auto parts business by the research and
development of product technologies. ASIMCO is exploring the transformation
in technology and product to gradually penetrate and deploy the new energy
vehicles and related businesses.
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Market Responsibility (continued)
ASIMCO Quality System

ASIMCO has adhered to the principle of “Let customers define the quality” and
all of its operating companies have gained IATF16949:2016 quality system
certification.

ASIMCO is devoted to combining its quality systems with Six Sigma so as to fulfil
the ideal of “Zero defect” and providing customers with their approved product
quality. ASIMCO introduced Six Sigma management tool in 2003. Six Sigma
is an organisational and data and fact-oriented management method, which
is applicable to various fields. We can keep improving our product quality and
customer satisfaction, eliminate wastes and enhance operation performance by
using Six Sigma projects. Currently, Six Sigma projects are wildly implemented
in the operating companies of ASIMCO.

In 2018, 19 students finished training courses and each of them completed one
Green Belt project, thus graduating from the ASIMCO Six Sigma training class.
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Graduation from ASIMCO Six Sigma Training Class
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Market Responsibility (continued)
ASIMCO Quality System (Continued)

In 2018, our subsidiaries continue to enhance quality management and
improvement. For example, ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. (Shanxi),
one of our subsidiaries, constantly promotes internal product quality, making
scrap rate being effectively reduced. Besides, our subsidiary ASIMCO NVH
Technologies Co. Ltd. (Anhui) not only held a quality principles conference, but
also organised “visits to and trainings at waste storage areas for frontline staff
and inspectors” in order to enhance all staff's quality awareness and improve
the quality management of the Company.
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A quality principles conference held by ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co. Ltd. (Anhui)  Frontline staff and inspectors are organised by ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co. Ltd.
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Market Responsibility (continued)
Customer Service

In order to improve customer satisfaction, the service quality and attractiveness
of ZMJ’s products to users, we have formulated a series of methods for
customer management methods and problem handling workflow. The above
management methods clarify assessment and punishment measures for
responsible departments failing to complete product return work according to
schedule to ensure that product return can be handled in a timely and efficient
manner. Regarding the privacy of our customers, we would sign confidentiality
agreement with our customers according to their requirements so as to protect
the privacy of our customers to the maximum extent.

8D Troubleshooting Procedures

The 8D procedures in our trouble shooting process has stipulated our process
of handling customer complaints. We have to offer tentative feedback to the
complaint within 24 hours, identify the root causes and improvement measures
within 7 days, verify the effectiveness of implemented measures within 14 days
and close case within 30 days.

Management of Major Customers

Based on the successful experience in export management, ASIMCO has
formulated major customer management department as a bridge between the
Company and customers. This fully utilises the strength and experience of major
customer department managers in communication with customers, project
management and their professional knowledge to maximise our competitive
edge in production, research and development with a view to establishing
effective communication and close cooperation with major customers and
working on the key projects meticulously. Meanwhile, we would expand our
product line for local and international major customers.

Coal Mining Equipment Website

To effectively solve the difficulty in turnaround of idle equipment and low
efficiency, we established a coal mining equipment website (WWW.CMEMC.CN)
in 2017. In 2018, this platform continues providing evaluation, announcement
and trading services for idle equipment. We endeavor to build up a one-stop
management platform for coal mining equipment in order to offer convenient
services to the relevant enterprises in the coal industry.
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Market Responsibility (continued)

A One-stop Management Platform for Coal Mining
Equipment

Exclusive Equipment EB&E < .

Establish personalised equipment management

and realise intelligent equipment and auto parts

purchasing

BUEMHCREER  BEREERER
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Purchase Enquiries $T#§53 < -

Follow standard parameters and make
response based on actual production

condition and intelligent matching
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Supplier Management

With the development of economic globalisation, the mutual growth in supply
chain is the key to an enterprise’s survival. We always adhere to the operating
philosophy and values of integrity and mutual benefit. While we are devoted
to working on our own environment and social risk management, we urge our
suppliers to fulfil their environmental and social responsibility.

We have formulated the “Measures for the Administration of Management by
Grading and Classification, Approval and Appraisal for Suppliers”. We regularly
evaluate suppliers based on environmental protection, production safety,
quality control, business ethics and other aspects. Our subsidiary ASIMCO NVH
Technologies Co. Ltd. (Anhui) requires its suppliers to submit their written form
of “Subcontractor’s Environment Assessment Form”, urging them to formulate
environmental management system, increase energy saving and gain ISO14000
environment management system certification. We cooperate with suppliers in
conducting development of new materials including steel materials and welding
materials in order to lower procurement costs, enhance utilisation rate of
materials and production efficiency and achieve a win-win situation.

At the same time, when selecting suppliers, we prioritise those who are in
close proximity to our operating locations. We advocate for local purchasing.
On one hand, it can reduce energy wastage and exhaust gas emissions during
delivering process. On the other hand, it can provide work opportunities for local
people and drive local economic development.
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Market Responsibility (continued)
Anti-corruption

We focuses on the construction of clean governance. Through specifying the
responsibility target and conducting works like the establishment of systems,
alertness education and special rectification and management, we strive to
ensure the implementation of each task related to anti-corruption and clean
governance building.

To intensify the construction of clean governance, we require staff from key
business departments including financial, product, infrastructure, equipment,
sales, and materials supply to enter into integrity commitment. We organised
leaders who are middle or higher level principal officers of the Company and
employees occupying positions to visit Jaonan Prison in Henan Province as an
alertness education on clean governance. We have also arranged for leaders
who are middle or higher level assistants to attend the sematic seminars with
the theme of “Supervision Law”, to procure the redemption from practical
examples through analyzing and studying typical cases of violation of discipline
and law.

In 2018, we amended the implementation rules of “decision-making on major
issues, important official appointment and removal, key project arrangement
and large-value funds” decision-making mechanism and formulated the
“Review Management Measures for Integrity* (Trial)”. At the same time, we
conducted integrity risk check-up to identify potential key integrity risk points
and dispatched the “Integrity Risk Notice” based on the check-up to further
standardise the corporate management. During major festivals and holidays,
we would launch notices related to promotion of anti-corruption for creating
righteous festive vibe.

In 2018, ZMJ has not initiated and closed any corruption litigation cases against
the Company and its employees.
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Environmental Responsibility

We care about environmental protection works and continue spending a large
amount of money on improving the standard of clean production and processing
environmental treatment in 2018. We formulated systems like “Environmental
Protection Management System”, “Operation Management and Supervision
System of Pollution Prevention Facilities”, “Emergency Plans of Environmental
Pollution Incidents”, aiming at protecting and improving the living environment
and ecological environment of staff and residents nearby.

We have passed the 1SO14001 Environmental Management System
certification. By organizing and launching internal environmental review and
external monitoring activities continuously and regularly in 2018, we can identify
and tackle problems in a timely manner, promote measures to save energy
actively and manage emissions effectively.

In 2018, we had not committed any incident of material pollution or serious
ecological destruction event.

Low Carbon Management

The energy used in business operating process mainly includes electricity,
natural gas, and small amount of diesel fuel and gasoline. By enhancing efficient
use of fossil fuel, reducing fossil fuel consumption, and adopting cleaner
energy and other measures, we are able to achieve an effective reduction of
greenhouse gas emissions.

In 2018, due to our larger production, the amount of greenhouse gases we
generated increased by 16,796.55 tons to 135,377.51 tons, whereas the
density of our greenhouse gas emissions decreased by 29% compared with
2017,

Total Gases Equi issions (tons)
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Total emissions

il 774

135,377.51

114,159.99 11858096

107,963.19 Scope 2 emissions
W BE-HR
Scope 1 emissions
10,617.77
2018 2017

Note:  Total greenhouse gas equivalent emissions include Scope 1 emissions and
Scope 2 emissions
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Environmental Responsibility continued)
Low Carbon Management (Continued)

We care about energy conservation during the production process and daily
office service. In daily office area, we replace bulbs that require larger power
consumption with sound controlled lights and LED energy saving lights.
Regarding the necessities in office area, we prioritise the purchase of energy
saving products. During office hours, we advocate for using both sides of paper
and reusing files and copy paper, and develop incentive scheme for reducing
energy consumption through OA, billboards, meetings and other promotion
channels.

We particularly care about energy saving during production process. In 2018,
we implemented the following energy saving schemes:

e ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd., one of our
subsidiaries, modified the air compressors and introduced contract energy
management. The electricity saved was approximately 50 MWh per month.

e \We followed scheduled operation time to turn on the machine for hot
forging so as to avoid wastage of electricity.

e \We modified the cooling system in 0zone generators and selectively turned
off ozone equipment during summer for reducing the use of electricity.

e \We changed the conventional water supply system to constant-pressure
water supply system to ensure the pressure of water supply can remain
stable. The electricity saved was approximately 17 MWh per month.

In 2018, we had an aggregate energy consumption of 256,092.32 MWh, in
which 185,998.37 MWh was attributable to electricity and 66,595.12 MWh
was attributable to natural gas.

Energy Consumption (MWh)

HERHER KR
mE
185,998.37 174.011.20 Electricity
W RAR
Natural gas

[ ISk
Diesel and gasoline

41,520.36

3,498.84 2,076.82

2018 2017

Note: Given the additional disclosure of diesel and gasoline consumption, the
total energy consumption for 2017 has been updated to ensure data
comparability

MhE © FEGINEERLEFDREEE - ME2017F R RS AT
REIER AT L1

Our packaging materials were mainly used in auto parts products of ASIMCO
segment. The decrease in ASIMCO’s production of auto parts products led
to a decrease in the total usage of packaging materials in 2018 compared
with 2017. In 2018, we used 854.22 tons of packaging materials, including
packaging cartons, packaging tie wire, bags, etc.
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Environmental Responsibility (continued)
Emission Management

We identify the emission sources of each pollutants carefully and strictly monitor
the management of the emission of pollutants including exhaust gases and
solid wastes in order to mitigate the damage to and impact on the ecological
environment.

Exhaust Gas

Our main sources of exhaust gases include exhaust gas from paint, weld, dust
and soot during the production process. The total exhaust gas emission reached
273.61 tons, in which the pollutants includes NOx, SOx, PM and VOCs.
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In order to reduce the level of pollution from exhaust gas emissions generated
from different craftsmanship production procedures, we adopt suitable
measures to deal with different kinds of exhaust gas:

e The main pollutants of welding exhaust gas from welding process is
soot. We adopted exhaust hoods, air duct, soot purification system, and
ventilation and dust removal unit, to achieve a soot purification rate of
99%, which enables us to meet the requirements under the “Integrated
Emission Standard of Air Pollutants”.

e The main pollutants of exhaust gas from spray painting and drying process
are paint dust and VOCs. The paint dust is discharged after coming into
contact with water and being absorbed in water in which the rate of paint
dust removal is 98%. After cooling off in cooling towers, the VOCs is
absorbed by activated carbon and discharged through the exhaust pipes or
treated by photo-catalytic oxidation equipment.

e Dust and soot, the main pollutants during casting process, are treated by
bag filter for dust removal.
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Environmental Responsibility continued)
Emission Management (Continued)
Exhaust Gas (Continued)

In 2018, ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. modified the
cleaners of the casting shakeout machine by adjusting the suction position
and adopting bag filters for dust removal to improve the emission condition at
workplace.

In order to manage the soot pollutants generated by its casting line, ASIMCO
International Casting Co., Ltd. (Shanxi) contributed over RMB15 million to
add 2 high-efficiency bag filters for dust removal in 2018, which can cut soot
emissions by approximately 180 tons per annum.
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Dust removal equipment of ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. (Shanxi)
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Regarding the exhaust gas from rubber mixing, rubberizing and vulcanisation
process, the main pollutants are VOCs, sulfur compounds and soot, etc. We
adopted various exhaust gas processing devices and ancillary air intake and
exhaust systems to meet the testing standardisation of exhaust gas emission.
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Environmental Responsibility (continued)
Emission Management (Continued)
Exhaust Gas (Continued)

In 2018, our subsidiary ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co. Ltd. (Anhui) conducted
special exhaust gas emission management and treatment for rubber mixing,
rubberizing and vulcanisation processes, and spent a total of over RMB6 million
to purchase various kinds of exhaust gas treatment equipment and ancillary
air intake and exhaust systems, to change the previous random exhaust gas
emission to systematic standardised emission.
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Solid Waste

We have put in place the “Management System for Hazardous Waste” to provide
clear regulations on the processes for treating the waste generated in the
course of production and operation. In accordance with the “National Hazardous
Waste List of the PRC”, the Company has classified and identified waste, set
up a dynamic management mechanism for hazardous waste, and persistently
monitored the sections such as the clean-up, storage and transfer of hazardous
waste.

We have engaged a qualified third party professional treatment firm to carry out
the treatment of hazardous wastes such as waste cutting fluid and chromium
slag so as to ensure that it is conducted in compliance with the law and
regulations. In 2018, our total amount of hazardous waste disposal was 2,046.81
tons.

We have put in place the System Related to the Processing of Scrap and Used
Articles to standardise the rules for the bidding of disposal and selling of scrap
materials from raw materials, such as scrap steel and scrap mixed steel,
ensuring and enhancing the efficiency of recycling raw materials. We recycle
the scrap metal and sweepings of metal generated in the course of production
and sell the scrap metal and sweepings of metal to professional firms, thus
significantly reducing the use of iron ore.
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Environmental Responsibility continued)
Emission Management (Continued)
Solid Waste (Continued)

Our non-hazardous wastes mainly include household garbage, scrap steel and
waste silica sand. We give priority to the reuse of non-hazardous solid wastes
and send unrecyclable wastes to professional organisations for centralised
treatment. In 2018, our total amount of non-hazardous waste disposal was
16,302.59 tons.

Amount of Waste Disposal (tons)
R (W)

| | ES22
Non-hazardous wastes

W 5EEEY
Hazardous wastes

16,302.59

9,276.26

2,046.81 1,887.57

2018 2017

Water Resources Management

We attach great importance to the management of water resources and
endeavour to reduce its consumption. Our water supply is mainly from tap water
and river water. In 2018, we used a total of 10.64 million cubic meters of water
resource, of which 8.89 million cubic meters was for recycled water and the
circulation rate reached 84%.
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Density of Waste Disposal (tons/RMB million)
BEYHRZE (M, BET)

| | E:=:3y)
Non-hazardous wastes
| | Kk E3]

Hazardous wastes

2018 2017
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Consumption of Water Resources (million cubic meters)
KERERAE(BEBILLXK)

10.64

2018

Our wastewater mainly comes from industrial wastewater and domestic
wastewater. Industrial wastewater includes wastewater from electroplating,
waste emulsion and wastewater from paint. The sources of domestic
wastewater are mainly water discharged from office restrooms and kitchens,
free of poisonous, hazardous or special substances.

HE 5kes

Total water consumption
B ERAK
Recycled water
7 ] K
Fresh river water

i B 2K

Fresh tap water

112 0,71

2017

BAPEENEKER B EERKMAEESKERK - &
ERERE BRI - BEILRANEZREEK - B EEK
TERFERRAFLERARBEIK  TEES  AF
BRI E PR

107



108

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited Annual Report 2018

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

Environmental Responsibility (continued)
Water Resources Management (Continued)

We adopt different treatments for the wastewater from electroplating that
contains different heavy metals and end up recycling all of the heavy metal
wastewater. For waste emulsion and cutting fluid, we would assign the recycling
work to qualified third party organisations. In terms of paint wastewater, we
have set up an integrated industrial wastewater processor next to our production
line, which utilises physicochemical treatment of coagulation sedimentation and
air floating to eliminate most of the contaminations such as suspended solids
(SS), chemical oxygen demand (COD) and petroleum. After the preprocessing
procedure, all of the wastewater from paint would be transferred to the sewage
treatment facility. During the production and daily life process, we focus on
reducing water consumption and the use of tap water. In 2018, we adopted a
series of measures for lowering our water consumption:

e The recycled water from water treatment center that meets certain
requirements is used for green irrigation such as cooling down air
compressors and electroplated air cooling.

e \We streamlined and replaced the water supply pipe network of the
Company to prevent leakage and wastage.

e The cooling tower of heat treatment plant, cooling tower of electroplating
workshop, pumping plant and spraying line etc. use recyclable water
to enhance the recycling of water resources and reduce waste of water
resources.

e We renovated the toilet sewerage system in factory area of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. and saved
water of approximately 15,501.3 tons.
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Responsibility towards Staff

We regard employees as our most valuable assets. We insist on equal
employment, pay five social insurances and one housing fund for our employees
in full, and provide career path development plan. Meanwhile, we launch
abundant and various staff activities for relieving staff stress from work and
enhance physical as well as mental well-being. We also value the occupational
health and safety of our employees, so we adopt measures to ensure the safety
of employees in the workplace.

Labour Standards

We formulated the Management Measures for Staff Recruitment and Admission,
and advocate for the principles of “open recruitment and fair competition”. We
strictly abide by the Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the PRC
and other laws, regulations and policies. We strictly prohibit employing child
labour and compulsory labour. We require candidates to show their valid identity
documents during the recruitment process to ensure that the candidates reach
the statutory working age. We enter into labour contracts and female employee
protection agreements with our employees, to ensure that employees will not
be subject to discrimination on the ground of race, gender and other factors. In
2018, we did not identify any employment of child labour, compulsory labour or
discrimination behaviour.

We strictly abide by The Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Regulations on the management of housing provident fund and have made
timely payments to the various social security programs for the employees,
including the premiums for medical insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance and contributions to the housing provident fund.

We pay high attention to the diversity of the structure of employees. In this
regard, we recruit employees from different background and encourage
employees to bring diversified thoughts and values to enhance the vitality of the
Company and employees.
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Responsibility towards Staff continued) BEISEE®
Labour Standards (Continued) 2 TR ()
As of 31 December 2018, we had a total of 8,657 emloyees, of which female HZE2018F12A318 + &HMH*EBEIT86574 + EfzlE
employees accounted for 26% of the total number of employees. ST ABUGEHEAZI26% ©
Structure of Employees by Age Group Structure of Employees by Gender Group
BIFREE BTIMAEIEE

26%
B 30 B Between 30 and 50 Over 50 B Vvae Female
305% 3057 2505% 50573 A £ B 4
Note: There is a slight discrepancy in the statistics of the structure of employees
by age group due to rounding.
WhE : BRKSD - B TFRAEBBIEAE T A100% °
Caring for Employees BT#=

We enhance the sense of bliss and belonging of our staff through different FMEASEEHIRS E TNERR  IERHEER -
activities. We support employees who are suffering from material disease and RMAsESEARGESENE TIRERENEDR - A
disaster in a timely manner, provide scholarships for the children of our staff ETFLUEHE R EHES - RIEHRETEES
and launch abundant and various activities for enriching the leisure life of our BEREBRLEE S THEMETE o

employees.
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Responsibility towards Staff continued)
Caring for Employees (Continued)
Staff Benefits

We offer paid maternity leave, marriage leave and retirement benefit plans
to staff members while providing staff members with a variety of subsidies
for transportation, lunch, communication, housing, heating, cooling, etc. and
holiday benefits. In order to solve the staff’s difficulty in renting house, we
had additional 52 staff departments in 2018; in hot season, we continuously
provided heatstroke prevention food such as green beans soup and watermelons
for the frontline staff working under high temperature to ensure a safe and
comfortable working environment; we have also amended the Management
Measures for Holiday Greeting Presents Delivering to improve the holiday
greeting presents for our staff members.

In 2018, we provided additional 52 rooms in our staff apartments
2018 FHAIFTIL 52 HE T RS
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We provided heatstroke prevention food such as green beans soup and

watermelons for the frontline staff working in hot weather
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BRI - HERERERE

Responsibility towards Staff (continued)
Caring for Employees (Continued)
Staff Help and Aid

Our hearts are with our staff members. We donate materials and money to staff
members in trouble, and help them overcome their difficulties. We have set up
a mutual aid fund for staff members to offer assistance covering clinical visits
and hospitalisation for staff members suffering from major diseases, and those
in particular difficulties to solve their everyday problems at the practical level.
In addition, we also have set up emergency relief found for staff members in
particular difficulties, to assist those staff members and their families facing lift
difficulties and help them improve their living conditions and health conditions,
and uplift their abilities. The emergency relief found offered hardship allowance
to 61 staff members in 2018.

We made donations to our staff in difficulty
BMAEBAREE TBN

Li Ke Ping Scholarship Fund

We attach great importance to the education of our staff’s children. We have set
up Li Ke Ping Scholarship Fund and provided subsidies for the qualified children
of ASIMCO staff members for 12 consecutive years in order to encourage them
to study wholeheartedly in science and technology field at universities and
prepare themselves for the future technology development. Prior to the polling,
the management members of ASIMCO consider and evaluate various factors
in comprehensive manner, including the result of college entrance examination
of candidates, the correlation between ASIMCO’s business and the study
disciplines of candidates, the needs for scholarship and will of candidates and
enterprise’s recommendation. In 2018, we offered scholarships to 12 children
of our staff members.
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Responsibility towards Staff continued)
Caring for Employees (Continued)
Work-life Balance

We help staff strike a balance between work and personal life through
organizing different leisure activities. In 2018, we set up 7 internal culture
and sports associations to provide our staff members with same hobbies and
interests a platform for making friends. We also held shuttlecock contest,
basketball contest, table tennis contest and other competitions. These activities
not only nourished their mentality, but also strengthened the relationship
between different departments.

We organised table tennis contests and shuttlecock contests to relieve the pressure
of our staff members
BEREERE  BNE  FEIERES
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We held basketball contests to help our staff members improve their health
BMAABEIRE  EoE Ta a2
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BRiR - HERERERE

Responsibility towards Staff (continued)
Caring for Employees (Continued)

Work-life Balance (Continued)

On “8 March” International Women’s Day each year, we organises different
activities with a view to building up a platform for female staff members to enjoy
the festival and improve interaction with workmates. Fun activities can make
female staff members enjoy the good vibe in the festival and help them develop
a healthy and joyful lifestyle.

BETI&EEwE)

BTZ®

T TAESRAEE ()

SEN[ =\ ERBLES  RSERASEIRAL
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Our female staff members enjoying “8 March” International Women'’s Day
RETEE [=)\] BERmEZE

Our subsidiary ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd organised
winter games, aiming at advocating an optimistic and healthy way of life among
our staff members. There were 27 teams from various departments, including
216 staff members taking part in the games. The hiking association and fishing
association of ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd (Anhui) held many leisure
activities for their staff. A total of 41 people from the hiking association went to
climb Jixi Luohan Mountain, while the fishing association held a fishing match in
Hailin Farm.

BN B A RET SNSRI EERERARMEET
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Winter games organised by ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd.
BERMBEREERAERD AL TEDS
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Responsibility towards Staff continued)

Caring for Employees (Continued)

Work-life Balance (Continued)
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Mountain climbing and fishing activities organised by ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd (Anhui)
DETRHE B ERB RN () AR A RAME LES EN T

Career Development

Adhering to the core values of “integrity and mutual benefit” and the
development philosophy of “keeping pace with the times, updating philosophy,
enhancing capability and continuous improvement”, we have set out clear
career development paths for staff members with different educational
background and at different job positions. We have been steadfast in building
a career development platform for staff members where individuals can grow
along with the Company.

Remuneration System

We have established Remuneration Management System that combines the
work performance, personal contribution, competence at work and experience
with performance in the position of staff members, thereby establishing a fair
and attractive career development path.

In 2018, our coal mining machinery business segment streamlined the
remuneration conditions and finished the job value assessment involving more
than 230 positions and 750 people. We compared the remuneration level and
structure of each level rank with those in the same industry to determine the
ranking standard, and formulated a plan and implemented to form a fairer and
more reasonable remuneration system.
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Responsibility towards Staff (continued)
Career Development (Continued)
Staff Training

We have formulated Staff Training Management Measures, established a
training organisational structure combining control of the Company’s senior
leadership, management of the human resources department and cooperation
from the grassroots units, and built up a team of experienced internal training
specialists, in which training is available at various levels, in various categories,
through multiple channels, in multiple forms, with an emphasis on results, full
of energy and open to all staff members. In 2018, the percentage of employees
trained reached 92%.
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Percentage of employees trained
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Responsibility towards Staff continued)
Career Development (Continued)
Staff Training (Continued)

In 2018, we conducted staff training through sending staff members to
external institutions for study opportunities, joint initiatives between schools and
enterprises and internal training. The training projects include:

e \We continuously selected and sent a certain proportion of management
staff at senior and middle levels and the core professional technical staff to
reputable universities in the PRC for education at the master’s and doctoral
level;

e We continuously selected outstanding grassroots staff members to
participate in the conversion education programs jointly organised by
universities and the Company to convert their technical education into
undergraduate education;

e  Based on the development needs of the Company, we continued to
arrange for all kinds of staff members to take part in various types of
continuous education and professional training offered by the private firms,
government and the industry;

e Within the Company and based on plans, the leaders at the senior level
and middle level, technical management staff, planning and scheduling
staff, supervisors in charge of work zones, squad leaders and team
leaders, technical workers, new hires and staff members who have moved
to different positions were continuously provided with position-related
training in areas such as technology, marketing, production, quality, safety,
corporate culture, computer, English and professional skills.

In order to strengthen the construction of the talent team, reserve the
excellent management team for the Company and build the talent base for
the development of ZMJ, we have developed a highly potential talent training
program. Combining the current actual situation of ZMJ and through a
diversified curriculum system and training format, the training introduces rich
management experience for highly potential talents and provides active and
effective talent training programs.
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Responsibility towards Staff (continued)
Career Development (Continued)
Staff Training (Continued)

In 2018, in accordance with the highly potential talents training program, we
launched a number of training programs, including The Seven Habits of High-
Efficiency People, and trained about 120 people. By the end of 2018, ASIMCQ's
first training program for highly potential talents was successfully completed,
which not only helped highly potential talents to extend their learning to work
and life, but also strengthened the reserve of key positions and core personnel.
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We organised highly potential talents for training

REEETEEAL
Health and Safety T EfEE

With the health and safety of our staff members as our top priority, we have
established rules and regulations such as Operation Environmental Inspection
System for Production Safety and Staff Health and Safety Management System
to keep refining our health and safety management system. Our principal
subsidiaries,, including Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electrical
Control Co., Ltd., Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment
Co., Ltd., Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Material Trading Co., Ltd.,
ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd., ASIMCO International
Casting Co., Ltd. (Shanxi), Hubei Super-Elec Auto Electric Motor Co., Ltd.,
ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd. (Anhui), have passed the OHSAS18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management System Certification. In 2018,
our subsidiary Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment
Co., Ltd. was rated level two of standardised corporate of production safety
by Standardisation Committee on Production Safety of Henan Province and
ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. passed the annual review
of EHS system.

We continue to monitor positions with the hazards of occupational diseases
including workers in the fields of power, natural gas, fire welding and oxygen
generation. Workers have already obtained the relevant certificates they needed
for their positions.

In 2018, there were no work-related fatalities and the number of lost days due
to work injury was 1,577,
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Responsibility towards Staff continued)
Health and Safety (Continued)
Health and Safety Education

To reduce the occurrence of safety incidents and occupational diseases, we
first need to enhance the health and safety awareness of our staff members.
In 2018, we continued to carry out health and safety education training and
emergency drills to improve employees' health and safety awareness.

We formulate plans for education and training about health and safety. Through
a number of formats, including experiential training, pre-work meetings, training
videos and professional training courses, we have actively launched a variety
of training, including the standardisation of operational safety and protection
against occupational diseases, to truly and effectively implement the production
safety philosophy at the workplace and achieve the production safety target of
“zero injury”.

In 2018, we held EHS experiential training in the EHS Experience Hall of
ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd (Anhui). The training achieved good results
by simulating the production work environment, sharing experiences in practice
cases and discussions.
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We conduct experiential training at the EHS Experience Hall
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Responsibility towards Staff (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)
Health and Safety Education (Continued)

For the areas with a high rate of major incidents and key locations and
equipment involved in the incidents that had occurred, ZMJ conducts the key
preventive work and contingency preparations, and update the contingency
equipment and medication in a timely manner. Also, we conduct emergency
drills on an irregular basis to ensure that, in the event of an incident; the
personnel on the spot can react to the incident quickly, and minimise personal
injury and loss arising from the incident.

'*'I.I_ 4
i} m

\\lﬂ‘

REREHE (B)

UNEBHENSEE  DHEFRNEREIMNRME
WA E N BRI BTN ER - RESEHE
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RIS ABRIRERE - ZAREHB D ABR G
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ZMJ carried out fire training and drills
PR OB I KR AR

Safety Precaution

Our safety hazards mainly relate to the use of special equipment such as cranes
used in the coal mining machinery product business, principally including
mechanical pinch, heavy object contact, lifting damage and vehicle damage. We
reduce safety hazards and improve security through the following measures:

e \We organise employees to watch the Mechanical Clip-related Accident
Highlights Video to help employees improve their safety awareness;

e \We carry out special hidden trouble check and replacement of unsafe
equipment shelves to reduce the latent safety problems of heavy objects
contact;

e |n order to reduce injuries caused by cranes, we require all air and ground
crane operators to be certified. We also conduct regular daily inspection
and maintenance for special equipment such as cranes, and assess the
performance of safety administrators of special equipment;

e \We have enhanced our investigation and rectification efforts to reduce
vehicle injuries in response to common vehicle violations.

Z2RhE
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Responsibility towards Staff continued)
Health and Safety (Continued)

Safety Precaution (Continued)

In addition, in order to prevent critical safety incidents, we continue to improve
the production environment of the factory. For example, we use welding robots
as the substitute for manual works to minimise the worker operation. Hence,
we can reduce the number of workers in direct operation and ensure that
safe production process. Another example is that we install air conditioners
in all bridge cranes and cold air equipment in the workshops to reduce the
temperature of the operating environment and improve the comfort of the
working environment to improve the accuracy of workers’ operation and reduce
the probability of accidents.

BRI e RERERE

AN BT HBEFAREEH  BIFHSERE TR
HERE - MEMIBBEAERERSASREAENTT
REASAEREATIER - BAOEREXENAR
BRLZ2EEIRNET - XOBRMEMEREDLE
> WHEBMPLETARREAREEZRZNR
E - RefEERENSFEEINES 8 TIERIRIELE
B R EHEER AR o

We use welding robots to replace manual work
B RIRERBARRRAENTF IEE
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Responsibility towards Staff (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)
Occupational Disease Prevention and Treatment

In according to the requirements of laws and regulations, such as the Law
on Prevention and Control of Occupational Disease and the Provisions on the
Supervision and Administration of Occupational Health at Work Sites, we has
formulated the Occupational Hazar Management System, and has taken a series
of measures to build up a healthy workplace for our staff members, effectively
preventing the harms of occupation diseases.

In 2018, we continued to identify potential occupational hazard factors by
detection of occupational hazard factors, and the major occupational hazard
factor of ZMJ is the dust produced from the welding process. In 2018, our
subsidiary, Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co.,
Ltd. has spent more than RMB2.5 million on upgrade and modification of the
dust removal system to reduce the harmful dust in manufacturing workshop
and the density of harmful dust that our staff members contacted and the
frequencies of contact. In addition, the coal mining machinery product business
segment has completely replaced normal oil paint with water-based paint
in November 2018, which reduced our staff members’ contact with harmful
substances such as benzene.

NC-cutting dust treatment for the structural components plant in the north area of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd.
BN R B R A B R A 0 IR B ) Bl &R R 18
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RECRERDAE)  (TIEBMBEHE LSRR
EVEEEERMEL - RS T(REREEES
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Welding dust control and treatment for the structural component plant in the north
area of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd.
EMNERGHBEERA IR ABEY REEEERE
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Responsibility towards Staff continued) ETI&ERw®
Health and Safety (continued) 72 B RR (4
Occupational Disease Prevention and Treatment (Continued) BEERmFA (&)

We organise annual health checkup for staff members, which includes checking SERMSEME THETEBR  BRBEEPRIEHBE
their occupational diseases, with the aim of helping staff members understand RREE - EEENETIERBREA S FEMRN - KFY
their own health status and offering staff members medical intervention for BTHETRETEUNREERERES -

mitigating potential diseases.

ZMJ organised annual health checkup for staff members
BT EESE TR
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Community Responsibility

While improving the quality of our service and pursuing growth in our company,
we insist on building up good community relations and are committed to giving
back to society. By providing assistance to educational development, paying
attention to the life of the elderly and the growth of children and helping people
in deep distress to improve their living conditions for a long period of time, we
have shared the result of our development with the public in fulfilment of our
social responsibility.

Assistance in Education and Teaching

We always keep our eyes on the development of education. In 2018, we
continued to conduct various charitable activities in respect of assistance in
education and teaching to promote education development. We continued
to raise money for out-of-school children to help them grab better education
opportunities. In 2018, the headquarter of ZMJ has participated in the donation
Action of Cares for providing assistance to teaching in Zhengzhou Economic and
Technological Development Zone and has donated RMB200,000. Our subsidiary
ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. has conducted a Project
Hope micro-donation, with a total donation of approximately RMB18,000.

We also focus on the quality of education and contribute to improving the
hardware and software facilities of local basic education. Our subsidiary ASIMCO
NVH Technologies Co., Ltd. (Anhui) has provided sponsorship of approximately
RMB180,000 to renovate the school environment and classroom buildings
in Zhongxi Kindergarten and primary and secondary schools. In addition, we
wish to light up students' passion for learning through a variety of educational
forms. For example, the headquarter of ZMJ participated in the Research Tour
for Primary and Secondary School Students promoted by Zhengzhou Economic
and Technological Development Zone, and organised about 3,600 primary and
secondary school students to visit the production lines, which led students to
learn scientific knowledge.

ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. conducted a Project Hope
micro-donation activity
BAESFHMEREERARATMES 2TRMIBREE
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EEREOARZEEGRESE TR - BERKREMS
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The headquarters of ZMJ organised approximately 3,600 primary and secondary

school students to visit our production lines
SRR AR EPAR AR A0 3,600 B/ NEELBRMMEER
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Community Responsibility (continued)
Assistance in Education and Teaching (Continued)
Improvement of People’s Livelihood

While being devoted to production operation, we continue to provide long-term
support and assistance for the underprivileged groups by participating in poverty
alleviation through various channels. For example, in 2018, our subsidiary
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd.
continued to donate RMB45,000 to the adjacent Huaixi Village, and delivered
rice and cooking oil to 50 households of villagers with difficulties in life to help
them improve their livelihood.

In 2018, our subsidiary ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd.
continued to hold a one-day donation activity and voluntary blood donation
activity, and donated RMB80,000 to Yizheng Red Cross.

Rk HERERERE

HESEFE
BEZEH @)
MEL

BAERIFEELZNRER - HEBESBRESHK
BEREX A eHnBERRERINFRER) -
AR PIE BT 2 B S0 SR AR AR i R B B TR A R12018F 4
BRI BRARK4SE T - LRSS LR
REERON RBEBAOKMR A - BB E 45T -
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Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. made donations to Huaixi Village every year
BRI RB AR AR GFRRANBTED
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Community Responsibility (continued)
Assistance in Education and Teaching (Continued)
Respecting the 0ld and Caring for the Young

Respecting the old and caring the young is a Chinese traditional virtue, retired
employees and elderlies are our target caring group. In order to advocate the
social customs of respecting the elderly and caring the young, we organise
community charitable activities for the elderly and children annually to express
our cares to them.

In 2018, we continued to organise activities for the elderly to express our
cares to them, and wished them to feel the warmth from society and the
positive energy of respecting and caring the elderly will be given full play. For
example, the headquarters of ZMJ visited elderly and retired employees in
adjacent communities at Spring Festival and gave them New Year’s blessing;
our subsidiary ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. arranged
staff members to visit the Nursing Home of Maji Village, where we not only
brought daily necessities to the elderly, but also helped them with their haircut,
manicure, and performed arts programs.

In 2018, we continued to organise activities for the children in welfare home
to express our cares to them, and wished them to always feel the cares and
attention from the big family of society. For example, our subsidiary ASIMCO
NVH Technologies Co., Ltd. (Anhui) organised employees to visit the Children's
Welfare Home of Ningguo City to express solicitude. They brought daily
necessities, toys, snacks to the children, communicated with officers there to
understand the children's living status and played games and chatted with the
children.

HESE T
BhEEZ &)
BEEY
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ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd. (Anhui) visited the Children’s Welfare Home of Ningguo City to express solicitude
DRI B EIRB RN (2R AR AFSEE M ZERFTHREMES
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Community Responsibility (continued)
Assistance in Education and Teaching (Continued)
Noise Management

The key noise from the Company’s operation includes the noise from machines,
the noise from compressed gas, the noise from audible and visual alarm
apparatus, traffic noise and the noise from ventilation facilities. In 2018,
we continued to invest on reducing the effect of these noise on surrounding
communities. Measures like basic vibration reduction, confinement and
insulation have been taken for those noisy equipment to reduce the noise and
maintain a daytime noise level of less than 65 dB and nighttime noise level
of less than 55 dB within the boundaries of our plants. Our noise satisfies the
requirements under Class 2 standards and limits of the Emission Standard
for Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary of the PRC in 2018, suggesting
minimal impact on surrounding communities.

Rk HERERERE

AREELBRPEANTBRBEUWNIRZE - BER
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Overview of Social Responsibility Data HEEEHBAE
Overview of Social Responsibility Data for the Year
FEHSEAHBERE
Emission B 2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Total greenhouse gas emission equivalent (scopes 1&2) (tons) B =Fae e 2 (& E1 & #E
2)(Wg) 135,377.51 118,580.96
Emissions of scope 1 #E— PR 21,217.52 10,617.77
Emissions of scope 2 & [E —HER 114,159.99 107,963.19
The greenhouse emission equivalent per RMB million in revenue & B/ & Tt AR = REBHINE S
(tons/RMB million) (Mg, BE) 11.28 15.81
Total exhaust gas emissions (tons) R ELE (M) 273.61 202.15
Total amount of hazardous waste disposal (tons) BEREEYEINES(HE) 2,046.81 1,887.57
Amount of hazardous waste disposal per RMB million in revenue & & & Tk A B ZREEMHEIKNE
(tons/RMB million) (Mg, BE) 0.17 0.25
Total amount of non-hazardous waste disposal (tons) mEREEEYHIES (F) 16,302.59 9,276.26
Amount of non-hazardous waste disposal per RMB million in FRETWAEEZEEEYNE
revenue (tons/RMB million) (W, EE&T) 1.36 1.24
Water Resources KEIR
Total water consumption (million cubic meters) IKEREREE (BN XK) 10.64 9.74
Fresh water FTER ALK 1.75 1.83
Recycled water TEIRA A HyK 8.89 7.91
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue (million cubic ~ & H & T AFEKE
meters/RMB million) (B8R BST) 0.00089 0.0013
Energy AEIR
Total energy consumption (megawatt hour) BEREFERE ORELE) 256,092.32 217,608.38
Electricity EW)] 185,998.37 174,011.20
Natural gas KRR, 66,595.12 41520.36
Diesel and gasoline SER AN 3,498.84 2,076.822
Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue (megawatt hour/ 5 & & Tl A LR EFEE
RMB million) kER E&T) 21.34 29.01
Packing Materials BEER R
Total volume of packing materials (tons) BEME A S () 854.22 1,268.73

The denominator for the statistical unit of density has been changed from the number of employees (headcount) in 2017 to revenue (RMB million).

RSB B H2017FRANEE ABMABOERABRAARBEET) °
FEHE AN BE S A URUEFRER - SR 2017 AL B R B AEREUR M AT LL I -

o = o

Given the additional disclosure of diesel and gasoline consumption, the total energy consumption for 2017 has been updated to ensure data comparability.
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Overview of Social Responsibility Data (continued) HESEEBAE @)
Overview of Social Responsibility Data for the Year
FEHESAREHE
Recruitment EE 2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Total number of staff member EEHAY 8,657 9,056
By gender R
Male 5 6,421 6,871
Female g4 2,236 2,185
By age group IRFERAA R
Below 30 305 A T 2,194 2,713
Aged 30 to 50 3088 25057, 5,491 5,422
Above 50 5057 A 972 921
Staff turnover ratio EEMALLE 15% 13%
Development BE
The percentage of employees trained ZIMEEE A
By gender ZER
Male 5 94% 80%
Female 4 87% 85%
By employee category ZEEEA
Senior management SREEE 95% 100%
Middle management RREEE 100% 93%
Ordinary staff THET 92% 90%
Average training hours completed per employee FREB KT IIN T EE
By gender ZER
Male 5 29 21
Female 4 33 29
By employee category ZEEEA
Senior management B EIRE 49 42
Middle management R E R 49 33
Ordinary staff TRET 29 17
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Appendix | — Content Index Based on the ESG Mgk | —CRIB - HEREARBEES])
Reporting Guide AR %S
Aspects Description Position/Remarks
Bm it vE
A. Environment
ARE
A1 Aspect: Emissions
[EEA1 : BER
General disclosure Information on: Environmental Responsibility
— MR TR (@) the policies; and BB ET
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to exhaust and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste
BREBERMRERBEHN - M/KERTAEES - BEREEEREY
MEESH :
@ BER: &
b) EFEEITABERZEAERER LR ER
A1 Types of emissions and relevant emission information Emission Management
PER R AR HE RS B PERE R
A1.2 Total greenhouse gas emissions (in tons) and (if applicable) density (e.g. per  Low carbon Management
unit of production volume, per facility) K&
BERBEABNE (UEEE) R(ER)EE (N EEERE
iz ~ BIERERTE)
A1.3 Total amount of hazardous waste produced (in tons) and (if applicable)  Emission Management
density (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility) PEE R
FELESEEYDLE AEE) R(ER)BE(MAEEER
BRI - BIERMEE)
A1.4 Total amount of non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and (if applicable) — Emission Management
density (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility) BEER
FrESERESEEYLE AEE) R(ER)BE(MAEEER
B - BIERMEE)
A15 Description of measures for emission reduction and the results achieved Emission Management
R B = 1R B R TS AR PEE R
A1.6 Description of measures for hazardous and non-hazardous waste treatment, ~ Emission Management
reduction initiatives and the results achieved BEE 18

WBEE A EMEEERYNE  BEELENEENAERR



N IR B AR (D B BR A A 20185 5

Appendix | - Content Index Based on the ESG
Reporting Guide (Continued)

Aspects
=gl

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRSE

NI

Description
Ht

figg | —(BR% - dERERBEESD

Position/Remarks
vE fEE

A2 Aspect: Resource utilisation
[BEA2 : EREA

General disclosure

— MR

A21

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials

BREABR(BIEER K REMEREMV R B

Total consumption of direct and/or indirect energy by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) and density (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)

RS ERE R SEEER(WE - Relh) BEE(UATE
TREAE) RBE(MAGES B - §AREAE)

Total water consumption and density (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility)

BKENRTE(WMAGES B - §IEREAE)

Description of energy usage efficiency initiatives and results achieved

Ha i B IR 150 A e 51 Bl S PRASBCR

Description of any possible problem in seeking available water sources, and
water efficiency promoting initiatives and results achieved

FACKEGE A AOR ER] B ERBRE - AREA ARS8 RS
ES

Total volume of packing materials for finished goods (in tons) and (if
applicable) volume attributable to per production unit

RN RETAREMENEE (UEAE) R(NER) BEEENGE

A3 Aspect: Environment and natural resources

[BHEA3 : RERXAER
General disclosure
—MH =

A3

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources

BIREITABRERRAERERERZENBER

Description of the significant impact on environment and natural resources
due to business activities and the actions adopted to manage relevant
impact

MM EBESHREIARAERNEAZENERREBGHTE
B1TE

Environmental Responsibility
REEME

Low Carbon Management
R E TR

Water Resource Management
KEIREIR

Low Carbon Management
EixE TR

Water Resources Management
KERETR

Low Carbon Management
R E TR

Environmental Responsibility
REEME

Environmental Responsibility
REEME
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Appendix | — Content Index Based on the ESG Midg | —(B1E - HEREARMREEDS])
Reporting Guide (Continued) AR ES| ()

Aspects Description Position/Remarks

=] i VB fEE

B. Society

BAE

B1 Aspect: Recruitment

BB : EfE

General disclosure Information on: Responsibility Towards Staff

— PR (@) the policies; and BTE

(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BRAESHRRE - BEREM TERE - B TEHRE %t

b~ RIBAR A R Bt 5738 S 4@ FJ Y

@ BER: X
b) BEFEHEITABERZEMEER LRI ER
B1.1 Total number of staff by gender, employment type, age group and region Labour Standards
MR - BFEER - FRER KR E D HEE B L TAR|
B1.2 The turnover ratio of employees by gender, age group and region Overview of Social Responsibility
TR - FhAER R RE D AR RKLE Data
HEETEBRLE
B2 Aspect: Health and safety
[EEB2 : REHEZZ
General disclosure Information on: Responsibility Towards Staff
— e (@ the policies; and BTI=E
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
FHERBLE2THERERREREEB2BELEEN
@ BER: &
b) EFEEITABERZEMIEMERE LR ER
B2.1 Number and ratio of work-related fatalities Safety and Health
E TIERAR ML T M A R L2 2 BEER
B2.2 Lost working days due to work injury Safety and Health
ATHBEATERH 3 B ER
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted and how  Safety and Health
they are implemented and monitored prge M iEL =I5
R PTER A B R R B e 80 - LA ARSI T REER 5 0%
B3 Aspect: Development and training
[EMHEB3 : #ERIEI
General disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties ~ Responsibility Towards Staff
— P at work. Description of training activities. BTE
BRI E S BT TIEBE MM KR BUR - g5
B3.1 Percentage of trained employees by gender and employee category (e.g.  Career Development
senior management, middle management, etc.) BEERE
ZHRREEER(IRRERE TREEES)IASNZIEE
Bkt
B3.2 Average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee  Overview of Social Responsibility
category Data

RIERNMEBERIBD - BREBTKE N TR HERTHEEE
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Aspects
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NI

Description
Ht

figg | —(BR% - dERERBEESD

Position/Remarks
vE fEE

B4 Aspect: Labour standards
[EMEB4 : & T%A|

General disclosure

— MR

B4.1

B4.2

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRI L E T oo hs5 T

@ X Rk

b) EFHEHETABERZENERERLRIINER

Description of measures for reviewing recruitment practices to avoid child
labour and forced labour

i R E HI R AR 2 B T Rsah 4 T

Description of steps taken to eliminate the relevant violations when
discovered

FTE B IR SUEURE ERR A B 1B S AT ERER A9 22 5%

B5 Aspect: Supply chain management

JETEBS - HEHEERE
General disclosure
—MH =

B5.1

B5.2

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

BIRMHEENIRE Rt & R ER

Number of suppliers by region

LRI NHEREHE

Description of practices relating to the engagement of suppliers, the number
of suppliers to which the practices are implemented and how they are
implemented and monitored

A AEAREENED - mERTARBENNHEREE - X
LA BEENRHITRERGE

B6 Aspect: Product responsibility

[ETHEB6 : EmET
General disclosure
—MH =

B6.1

B6.2

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress

ERARHERMBEORERLE - BS  ZEMABEEUR
R AR -
@ EER: R

b) EFHEHETABERZENERERLROINER

Percentage of recalled products for safety and health reasons among the
total products sold or delivered

EERDEXEMERTRAL T BRFIEAMAELKN TS

Number of complaints received for products and service and relevant
solutions

BRI fn RS VIR ER B B A S 5 0%

Responsibility Towards Staff
BIEE

Labour Standards
AT

Not Applicable
NiE A

Market Responsibility
TISEE

Not Disclosed
RIKER

Supplier Management
HERER

Market Responsibility
TI5EE

Market Responsibility
TISEE

Customer Service
B PR
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Appendix | - Content Index Based on the ESG
Reporting Guide (Continued)

ABES| @)

Bfsx | —(RE - HERER/HREESD

Aspects Description Position/Remarks
=] it NE =
B6.3 Description of practices relating to maintenance and protection of intellectual ~ Coal Mining Machinery Product
property liability
Tt B A T T RS AN EE R R 1B HmEREE
B6.4 Description of quality inspection process and product recall procedure Coal Mining Machinery Product
VS SARE B2 & E m BAR 7 Liability
HmEREE
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policy and how they are  Customer Service
implemented and monitored ZER

B7 Aspect: Anti-corruption
[BHEB7 : RES

General disclosure

— R

B7.1

B7.2

B8 Aspect: Community
[EEBS : ttE

General disclosure

—RE IR

B8.1

B8.2

WU BEEBRRERALBBE - ARBBERITRERTA

Information on:(a) the policies; and(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRANTIEBRER - R - MGFROEREN « @QBEK - Rb)ETEHET
ABERZENERER LRI ER

Number and results of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period

MRERAAHBEITAREERRE T D EENE) THRRGNHE
PEEN S

Description of precautions and reporting procedures and how they are
implemented and monitored

Haa by € b R R AR T - AT REEE A

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities interests

B E2 KBRS ER T RFENRREES TS ERE
oW AIE= o2

Concentrated contribution fields (e.g. education, environmental affairs, labour
demands, health, culture, sports)

FIEREB(NHE REFH - BTHEK - @F - Yt - BE)

Sources (e.g. money or time) used on concentrated fields

EHIEBMEAER(ING )

Market Responsibility
MSEE

Anti-corruption
RIE 185

Anti-corruption
RIE 185

Community Responsibility
HEREE

Community Responsibility
HEREE

Community Responsibility
HEREE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT E

e
pwec

To the Shareholders of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited
(incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 146 to 291, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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o HFAVBHRWE BRIZEIBRME -

ZAWER
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AD(TERPHREER DEEMTBHRR T EEH
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B REFEGMASRMAKEEEN LN &
BETER DEITER - HAEXSENTAENEE
BEEARRE ZBEVRERE M BRI AENEE IR
DR — R -

BIEE - BAIMESHENERERE NEE A
PIrERT BRI ERE -

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

IR KA O TS T - A R TR
% : +852 2289 8888 L : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwehk.com
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables
e |mpairment assessment of goodwill

e Purchase price allocation for a business combination — the acquisition of
SEG Automotive Germany GmbH

LE RV kS
RiEFEEHMASBEMIKEXSMBRTAN(E
EestaaR T D UATERE ) - RABINE
S8 YOETTARNEMERERAE -
FRREEITEER
RREFEERERMANERAE - REEARES
MBHRENBARREENETIER - GUEFHARERME

AEREAMBHmANLHAS RREITERIZN - 1T
SHELEREHEBNER -

BPIEERT R ER R E FEMAL T
o EEEIERUFIRNERER
o HERIEE

o %A OFHY UK ES (B 1% 9 B — UL B8 SEG Automotive
Germany GmbH
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables
EEE S ERRENGERE

Refer to notes 2, 3, 4 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
receivables were RMB4,907 million for which a loss allowance of
RMB853 million was provided.

Management assesses the loss allowance for trade receivables on a
periodical basis. Loss allowances for trade receivables are calculated
based on management’s estimates of the lifetime expected credit
losses, which is determined by taking into account: a) the customers’
repayment history, aging profile of their overdue balances, their current
financial positions and other relevant circumstances; and b) forecasts
of future economic conditions.

We identified the determination of loss allowance for trade receivables
as a key audit matter because the estimation of expected credit loss is
inherently subjective and requires significant management judgements
and estimates.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 B AR

FAREITEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMWETNARERRETEE

We performed the following procedures in relation to management’s
assessment when determining the loss allowance for trade receivables:

e Ve obtained an understanding and evaluated management’s
design and tested the key controls which management adopted
for the determination of loss allowance for trade receivables;

e \We assessed the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements and estimates, including:

i) Evaluated the customer’s repayment history by checking the
settlement evidence of the trade receivables to cash receipt
and testing the aging profile of trade receivables to sales
invoices and other relevant documents, on a sample basis;

ii)  On customers having a higher risk of default:

e Understood management’s process in identifying
customers having a higher risk of default;

e (Obtained and reviewed those customers’ background
information and their current financial position provided
by management;

e Reviewed transactions with those customers and
their respective collection patterns in the past, and
discussed with management to understand the
circumstances applicable to relevant customers; and

i) Evaluated whether the historical loss rates were appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions and
forward-looking information by making reference to market
data.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgement and
estimates adopted by management in determining the determination
of loss allowance for trade receivables are supported by available
evidence.

137



138

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B AR E

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEETER

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables (Continued)
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREETER

Impairment assessment of goodwill
BmEREENE

Refer to notes 2, 4, and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2018, the Group held goodwill amounted to RMB854
million, against which a provision of RMB109 million was made to
certain CGUs.

Goodwill was being allocated to different cash generating units (“CGUs”)
for the goodwill impairment assessment. Management has engaged
an external valuer to assist with the annual impairment assessment.
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were determined based on the
value-in-use calculations using cash flow projections, which involved
using key assumptions such as annual revenue growth rate, gross
profit rate, and discount rate.

We focused on this area due to (a) the magnitude of the carrying
amount of goodwill; and (b) the complexity and significant judgements
and estimates involved in the goodwill impairment assessment
process.

Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBENRE

FAREITEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RMMET O EEERETSE

We performed the following procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessments of goodwill:

e For those goodwill assessments that management has engaged
an external valuer to assist with the annual impairment
assessment, we obtained and reviewed the valuation reports,
and evaluated the external valuer's independence, competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

e \We involved our internal valuation expert to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation approaches adopted;

e Ve evaluated management’s key assumptions used, with the
involvement of our internal valuation experts and performed the
following procedures:

i) Compared the annual revenue growth rate and gross profit
rate with the Group’s historical results and the Group’s
approved business plan, taking into consideration market
trends;

i)  Assessed the discount rates used by benchmarking the
discount rates against external market data;

i) Evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis around the key
assumptions used, to ascertain the extent to which adverse
changes would result in goodwill being impaired;

e We tested the accuracy of the calculations applied in the
valuation models for the calculation of impairment provisions;

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
management’s judgement in the impairment assessments was
supported by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEETER

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)
AEREFE(E)
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREETER

Independent Auditor’s Report
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RMMET O EEERETSE

Purchase price allocation for a business combination - the acquisition of SEG Automotive Germany GmbH

¥KS O EEE S 5 # — U BB SEG Automotive Germany GmbH

Refer to notes 4, and 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

In January 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of SEG
Automotive Germany GmbH (“SEG”) (the “Acquisition”).

The Acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition method under
IFRS 3 — Business Combinations. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed were measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The determination of fair values involved significant
management judgement, in particular the valuation of acquired patent
rights and customer relationship that were determined using various
valuation models, which involve the use of key assumptions in cash
flows forecasts prepared by management. The Group has engaged an
external valuer to perform valuation and to determine the fair value of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed for purchase
price allocation purpose as at the acquisition date.

We identified the valuation of the acquired and identifiable assets and
liabilities as a key audit matter as it involves significant estimations
and judgements by management.

We performed the following procedures in relation to the purchase
price allocation by management:

e \We reviewed the sale and purchase agreement for the terms and
conditions;

e We obtained and reviewed the valuation report from the external
valuer. We evaluated the external valuer’s independence,
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

e \We assessed management’s identification of SEG’s identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition
based on investment contracts, SEG’s financial information and
the relevant accounting standards;

e \We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation models
adopted by management with the involvement of our internal
valuation experts; and

e We also assessed the reasonableness of the key assumptions
used in the underlying cash flow forecasts prepared by
management, by comparing these assumptions to SEG’s
historical performance, market data and approved budget of SEG.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key assumptions
used in recording the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed were supported by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEETER

BRREETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ETT O EEBRESNSE

Purchase price allocation for a business combination - the acquisition of SEG Automotive Germany GmbH (Continued)
#£SH VU EE B 2 # — BB SEG Automotive Germany GmbH (%48 )
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the chairman’s
statement (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Report of the Board of
Directors, Report of the Board of Supervisors, and Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, which are expected to be made available to us after that
date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
S0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Report of the Board
of Directors, Report of the Board of Supervisors, and Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and
take appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e (btain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBEnRHEMEEKAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET T ARETIT
Revenue ON 5 26,011,730 7,546,701
Cost of sales THE A 11 (21,159,849) (5,899,296)
Gross profit EF 4,851,881 1,647,405
Other income HAplA 7 106,060 112,116
Other gains and losses HAtvlzm &8 8 (174,503) (85,260)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HEAX 11 (1,044,119) (400,069)
Administrative expenses THFAX 11 (1,203,184) (709,650)
Research and development expenses s A 11 (1,030,195) (265,434)
Reversal of net impairment losses on financial &gt & A REERME
and contract assets B R F R 46,947 139,007
Share of (loss)/profit of associates FE(LE S N T(E1E), H5 A 21 (49,642) 18,399
Share of profit of a joint venture Eh—EEEERT 22 5,908 6,193
Finance costs BhE AN 9 (220,415) (39,681)
Profit before tax BRBADRR 1,288,738 423,026
Income tax expense TS BiFsZ 10 (349,830) (82,866)
Profit for the year FRER 938,908 340,160
Profit for the year attributable to: ITATEIEERRT
Owners of the Company PN/ )4 832,344 284,250
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R A 106,564 55,910
938,908 340,160
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEsRkAtEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARETT ARETTT
Other comprehensive income: Hih2mEUkES :
Items that will not be reclassified TERAEGRE T HE
subsequently to profit or loss: 1Eam s HE -
Remeasurement of post-employment EETERINENELE
benefit obligations (60,990) -
Changes in the fair value of financial assets AFERT 2 BEHES A
at fair value through other Hiv 2 EW A
comprehensive income EHMEEATE
s (17,585) -
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: — FJGEE# D IEE 1872 HE -
Exchange differences arising on translation MEEECERZE (6,249) (5,576)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AMEHEZSREE
financial assets N ERE - 13,290
Cash flow hedging BEMmEE A 2,279 (71,020)
Share of fair value gain on available-for-sale JEMh—REEE AR AT LS
financial assets of an associate, SREENFERE -
net of related income tax MR B BEFEH - 22,730
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FREMEEMAS
net of income tax MBATER (82,545) (40,576)
Total comprehensive income for the year E£R2EUKAELE 856,363 299,584
Total comprehensive income for the year UTATELEAR
attributable to: EHEURALREE
Owners of the Company ViN/NG Sz 749,799 243,674
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR RS 106,564 55,910
856,363 299,584
EARNINGS PER SHARE SREF
— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARESD) 15 48.04 16.67

147



148

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2018 A —ZE—N\FE+_-_A=1+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR 16 4,865,313 2,714,133
Leasehold land and land use rights HE L K A 17 440,964 508,559
Investment properties WEME 18 193,820 44,009
Goodwill EES 19 853,808 345,768
Intangible assets | EE 20 1,578,613 558,499
Investments in associates REFERT]ZIRE 21 393,472 449,089
Investments in a joint venture R—HEEEREIRE 22 40,006 34,099
Financial assets at fair value through WA EAE BHES A
other comprehensive income EfrHkarNerEE 23 31,540 -
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 23 - 50,580
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBE E 24 442,322 242,246
Finance lease receivables & TH B e U FE 25 28,508 38,476
Long-term receivables RAEWGRIE 26 422,235 152,354
Contract related assets ARMAEFEE 27 35,410 -
Loans receivable from associates EYEE AR R —HEERE
and a joint venture ZER 28 10,000 19,750
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary WE — M B AR 2 TE I8 43 - 3,345,626
9,336,011 8,503,188
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FE t ity N 3 (5 A4 17 = 11,551
Finance lease receivables, current portion REHE W IE(CREED) 25 24,958 31,475
Long-term receivables, current portion REEWZRECGRE S ) 26 131,926 141,857
Loans receivable from associates and EUEE AR R —HEERE
a joint venture ZER 28 9,750 34,000
Inventories PR 29 3,960,844 1,832,133
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A R IE 30 6,326,997 5,893,072
Transferred trade receivables DEZENE 5 EWRE 35 242,879 225,297
Financial assets at fair value through A EEAE BHEF A
profit or loss BEONSREE 23 355,539 -
Financial assets at fair value through AT EEBEEZEH:TA
other comprehensive income EfrHNENerEE 23 3,955,287 -
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 23 4,401 -
Other financial assets Hive@EE 23 - 62,000
Tax recoverable AU Bl R IR 29,661 17,374
Bank deposits FRITER 31 884,480 954,205
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREZEEY 31 2,746,038 1,745,177
18,672,760 10,948,141
Total assets HWEE 28,008,771 19,451,329
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBRRER
As at 31 December 2018 R —ZE— N\FE+_A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FiaE ARET T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Borrowings T 33 1,848,242 818,000
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBEE 24 341,611 142,683
Contract liabilities ERAE 27 39,790 -
Redemption liabilities EOaE 43 1,177,921 1,066,617
Provisions B 34 228,810 -
Employee benefit obligations EERFEE 36 280,903 -
Other non-current liabilities Hi3EREaE 95,934 43,902
4,013,211 2,071,202
GCURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMBENFRIE 32 8,130,550 4,432,701
Contract liabilities ERAE 27 1,390,874 -
Advance from customers ZERE - 814,717
Income tax liabilities FISfRiasE 147,150 27,888
Borrowings EBE 33 1,019,585 191,000
Provisions B 34 738,499 113,217
Liabilities associated with transferred B RN E SRR
trade receivables BEMAE 35 242,879 225,297
Derivative financial instruments TESmIE 23 35,179 -
11,704,716 5,804,820

Total liabilities

BEE 15,717,927 7,876,022
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mEMBMRRER
As at 31 December 2018 A —ZE—N\FE+_-_A=1+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —T—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE AR¥T R ARETIT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFEE
Share capital &N 37 1,732,471 1,732,471
Share premium R R (B 4,199,421 4,199,421
Reserves it 5,525,318 4,868,314
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN EIR R FE(h S 11,457,210 10,800,206
Non-controlling interests FEFEARE =R 38 833,634 775,101
Total equity EREE 12,290,844 11,575,307
Total equity and liabilities EERBEEE 28,008,771 19,451,329
The consolidated financial statements on pages 146 to 291 were approved and IR EVBE2N BENGEVBERER=E—NEF
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019 and are signed At RAKESSERRETE - WA TS
on its behalf by: ATREEE -
Jiao Chengyao Jia Hao
ERE =ik
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Statement of Changes in Equity
B ER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & — =&

—N\FtZA=+—RLLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADRFEL
Statutory ~ Cumency ~ Cash flow Non-
Sharg Share  Revaluation surplus ~ Translation ~ hedging Other ~ Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve ’STVe  MESEIVES  reserves  eamings Total  inferests equity
¥ERY KMEY  RiE R
e RAEE EhERE i B HARE  HtEE  RERA &5t i EaAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OOD  RAMB'O00  RMB'O0  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  AMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR RETn ARBTn ARBTn ARKTr ARETn AR¥Tn ARETn ARETR ARETR
(note ) (note ) (nofe )
(Kista) (k) ()
At 31 Decemoer 2017 NIE—tE
T2A=1-8 1741 4199421 62,348 569,775 2.211) - a8 414052 10800206 100 1575307
Change in accounting pofcy (ote 2~ &3t R EH(F423) - - (82,516) - - - - 0516 - - -
Restaed totel equiy at R=E-\&-A-H
1 Janvary 2018 EJlRReE 1741 4199421 19,832 569,775 2211 - a8 4183041 10800206 100 1575307
Profit for the year E@gH - - - - - - - 832,344 832,344 106564 938908
Other comprehensive income (eipense) ERE (2 B
forthe year (#x) - - (18579) - (6,249) 2219 - - (8245) - (8245)
Total comprehensive income (expense) M2 EES ()
forthe year bk - - (18579) - (6,249 2219 - 832,34 149,799 106,564 866,363
Transer ot ) 2% (M) - - - 6400 - - - A0 - - -
Transaction with minorty nterest BOIRRES 25 - - - - - - - (6172 (6172 6172 -
Dividends (note 14) GRS - - - - - - - (66,623) (86,623) (04203 (140,826)
At 31 December 2018 R=E-N
T-A=1-H 1741 4199421 (8743 633784 (6,460) 2219 8T 4858581 11457210 833634 12,200,844
At January 2017 AZE—tE-F-f 1621122 3400354 26,328 552,539 3360 71,00 8T 380568 9674173 837 9798530
Proft for the yeer E@gh - - - - - - - BB 20 5910 340,160
Other compreliensive ncome/foss) — ERE 2 EE /
forthe year (58) - - 3,020 - (5,076) (71,020 - - (40576) - (40.576)
Tota compehiensive incomelloss) ~~ £RZERA/ (B
forthe year g - - 3,00 - (5,976) (1,02) - 284,250 U374 5,910 299,584
Issug of A shares for acquisiton SNENEAR
of subsidiaries BNk %20 652,542 - - - - - - 746,762 - 745,762
Isse of A shares AR 18129 13752 - - - - - - 15560 - 1565
Acquiston of subsidiaries WENBAR - - - - - - - - - 68 63403
Tranfer o ) £ () - - - 1726 - - - (723 - - -
Dividends (note 14) T8 (1) - - - - - - - (19,067) (19,067) - (19,067)
At 31 December 2017 RIE-tF
T2A=1-H 14 4199421 62,348 569,775 2211 - a8 414052 10800206 100 1575307

Note a: In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the Articles of Association Mizta: BERARARERAATIREMETEWEBAGHNE
of the Company and all subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Company and AR - RNARIREZEN B ARR EASRTIE R
these subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the H10%EEERRFHER  ERATRBHEDEIES
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. AR M EAR0% AL o EITEEMNEERERS
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity BADIKIBAGETT o JAFERBFHE R BRI LR
holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous years’ FEREIE - BRRELEREARAT RZENB
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the NAEIMEEINED o
Company and these subsidiaries.

Note b: The other reserves mainly represent the contribution from the State—owned Miskb : HibfEEEEHRAR TE’JEW%I%IJH/—JF’T% BIFEAE
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s BEEBETEZESNHE » WHERAKNA T SIKRIE
Government, the ultimate controlling party of the Company, and is recognised as Ela) Zﬁ ‘o
contribution from the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

Note c¢: The cash flow hedging reserve presents the cumulative effective portion of gains Mizke : B mBY hFEEE ;M:Iﬂag ABREREENEE

and losses arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered into
for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gains and losses arising on changes in
fair value of the hedging instrument that are recognised and accumulated under
the cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the
hedged item affects the profit or loss, or is included as an adjustment to the non —
financial hedged item.

EZQ?L@“@JE’M& R EEN R AR o B
RENRSREL T HEE RO TAZ AFEE

@ﬁﬁ’]i%‘ﬂﬁlm&}éﬂééﬁﬁﬂﬂlﬁﬁ CEBRGRT T RE

MOBERS - KT AFMBEHRERBZA
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n _\éiﬁﬁjﬁii

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Profit before tax B B A 1,288,738 423,026
Adjustments for: -
Finance costs BEMA 220,415 39,681
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RITER - REEWGERBIERE
receivables and finance lease receivables JEW FIE 2 R B U A (53,928) (65,072
Interest income on debt investment ERIRE 2 FEWA = (13,142)
Share of loss/(profit) of associates FEIFEEE AR EE,CEF)) 49,642 (18,399)
Share of profit of a joint venture B —MEaeERH (5,908) (6,193)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEMEEZ
plant and equipment (Wzs),/ E518 (1,978) 5,883
Gain on disposal of financial asset at fair value HEURFENEEEEH:TA
through profit or loss BaremEER (3,041) -
Net fair value loss of derivative financial instruments eI AEATEFBIE 25,948 -
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale investment HEMHREERE 2 WS - (2,730
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRETE 796,019 249,275
Depreciation of investment properties BEMERE 1,589 1,589
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH 175,048 54,689
Release of leasehold land and land use rights FHE 3t N - s R T 12,728 12,275
Reverse for net impairment losses on R kEREERERBREFEELD
financial and contract assets (46,947) (139,007)
Impairment of goodwill EERE 109,125 -
(Reversal)/Accrual of inventory provision (Bm),/ fEst iz & B (11,164) 9,728
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ELEE) T8 40,473 70,789
Operating cash flows before movements in EBESEHA
working capital EEIRSRE 2,596,759 622,392
Increase in inventories FEM (696,742) (525,085)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables G R E M IER D (380) 2,113,138 (896,685)
Increase in financial assets at fair value AFEFE B HZEH A
through other comprehensive income HtzmkamemEELm (3,245,513) -
Increase in long-term receivables and finance lease REEWGCERBERE
receivables JFEUEIEIE N (208,972) (95,026)
Increase in trade and other payables E 5 KA R R IBE N 841,392 1,704,741
Increase in contract liabilities (advance from customer) A REE (RSB IENN 74,272 540,510
Cash generated from operations IREA IR ARSI S 1,474,334 1,350,847
Income tax paid [EARIIRE (401,592) (112,982)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ReEES
ACTIVITIES FBR& 34 1,072,742 1,237,865
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income on bank deposits, long-term
receivables and finance lease receivables

Interest income on debt security

Government grants related to assets received
Payment prepaid for acquisition of a subsidiary

Dividends received from associates

Proceeds on disposal of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Proceeds on disposal of derivative financial instruments
Proceeds on disposal of an available-for-sale investment

Proceeds on disposal of debt investment

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Payments for leasehold land and land use rights

Purchases of other intangible assets
Payments for structured deposits
Proceeds from structured deposits

Payments for loans receivable from a joint venture
Repayment of loans receivable from a joint venture

Payments for business combination, net of
cash acquired (note 43)
Payments for establishment of an associate

Placement of bank deposits with original maturity over

three months

Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity over

three months
Payment of pledged bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1T—BHLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
REEH
RITFER - REEBZIBERBERE
FEUGRIE 2 FI B M 53,928 63,873
EBSEH 2 FEMA - 16,009
B E WA BT 10,408 5,530
Wi — RN B AR 2 BN RE - (3,345,626)
B E=NET] 5] 7,686 5913
HEUATFEFEBEEET A
BENEREEMGHE 3,041 -
HETEL BT EMESE 15,913 -
HEHEEREMEHRE - 3,150
HEEBIRE TS KIE - 391,751
HEWE - BE RREEHRIE 60,661 32,511
HEEMHE  BERE (843,924) (414,887)
FAE 130 fe s fF R 2 15 50 (5,224) (15,217)
HEHMELEE (410,655) (2,148
HEEBETER AR (354,243) (3,412,000)
HEEETE RS RIE 62,000 4,435,000
Bl —HE S EER IR - (10,000)
Bl —EEEEERZENR 10,000 9,231
EBAEM
MR FTUE R 2 (B 5E43) (426,950) (1,428,063)
pavainli NI A S F - (1,748)
FHREBA=EA
LA EEERITIE R (30,590) (86,410
IREVRE IR EA =1 A
LA EEERITIE R 86,410 50,000
SR EEBIRITER (2,719,582) (2,104,696)
TR E BRI TR 2,733,487 1,494,728

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REZDFARSFE (1,747,634) (4,313,099)
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REBRERNER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Proceeds from issue of placing A shares BT EAMR TS FIE = 157,907
Payment of issue costs for placing A shares B ARSI TR AN 2 19 3% = (2,253)
Proceeds from non-controlling shareholders of iy &’é ELNEYNGIE 2 e
subsidiaries for joint investment Fri5 3 - 1,066,617
Proceeds received from the equipment leasing B 7F E YNC]
companies (note 35) P IE (M15E35) 124,445 149,975
Proceeds from new borrowings raised EEMSEUE 2,041,589 1,016,000
Repayment of borrowings BREE (206,000) (95,000)
Interests paid EATFIE (103,278) (40,271)
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders ERAR ﬂﬂ’i%ﬂﬁ 5\ (86,623) (19,057)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [SAREZdiig (54,203) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING RMETERE
ACTIVITIES (note 44) B FEE (HEFad) 1,715,930 2,233,918
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH REeRBLEEWEM (GRL)FE
EQUIVALENTS 1,041,038 (841,316)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ~ E=#8 > 5% (40,177) (45,900)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R—B—BZEERRLEEY 1,745,177 2,632,402
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER R+ —-—A=1t—HBZzHERERLZEY
represented by cash and cash equivalents (note 31) REFA2RBRESEM (M) 2,746,038 1,745,177
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—Z— \F+=-_A=+—HIFE

1 General information

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability
under the Company Law of the PRC after a reorganisation of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd., a state owned enterprise in the
PRC. On October 28 2015, 32.14% of the Company’s total issued share
capital held by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government (“Henan SASAC”)
were transferred to Henan Machinery Investment Group, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Henan SASAC. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
upon completion of the share transfer, the parent of the Company is Henan
Machinery Investment Group and its ultimate controlling party is Henan

SASAC of the PRC Government.

On 3 August 2010, the Company completed its initial public offering and
listing of 140,000,000 A shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange under
the stock code 601717.SS. The Company was listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock

code: 00564) on 5 December 2012.

The respective addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in manufacturing of coal mining machinery

and auto parts.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies ordinance
Cap. 622. The financial statements have been prepared on a

historical cost basis, except for the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative

instruments) — measured at fair value, and

e (defined benefit pension plans — plan assets measured at fair

value.

—RER

MR EERDBRAR ([ ADE DRPE
ARFMBE (T EDEALEEMNEEEMEES
BREFEARSEMAR  RETEARER_ZTNF
T A+ N\BEFERIABRNERARE - K=
Z-RAFE+AZTNAR  AmEARBNEEE
EEBEEZER((AEEEZ DRHAEZARRE
BITRABBENRVINERT IHEREZ 24
MEARIEEREERERE - RARESER
7 ERMEETRR - ARBERE SR
RERERE - H&REH T RHEBRGET 280
MAEEZ -

R=ZZF—FF )N\ A =8 K275 140,000,0003%
AR E R AFREENE DEESFI ST LW (IRHR
§%601717.8S) » ARBIR —E——F+_-_AHBEHE
ERBMAERIMBRAE([HRM])ER MR
124888 : 00564) °

AN AAERE M SRt hE J 3 B I B R
[RBER—EEE - ARREEMBAR (S
[AEE DR ERBEERM S TETEHHRERNAE
o,

FESTHBREE

REZFAMBRERAERNEZGHBORETIT
X e BREFRIGARSN - R EBRWERBERNAAN
2HFE - ZMBRE/NEEIHERE - A
REREMBAR -

21 kR B

iR SRR THIR IR B B 75 s 22 ) ([ B
B ELER ) AREE R BEDIFE622F 1)
BRERTERE - SREMEWMRIIRELRAE
EimBL o METHIRRIN

. ETSRAERAEDETETR) &
AFEHE R

o TEREMNEAESEE -FEBERATE

58 o

1565



156

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERAR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4 below.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

(@

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments
that are relevant to the Group for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2018:

— IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

— IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

—  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions — Amendments to IFRS 2

—  Annual Improvements 2014-2016 cycle

— Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Except for IFRS 9 and IFRS 15, other changes to accounting
standards do not have significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2018
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new standards
and interpretations is set out below.

BRERPHREERNER BV EHRRA
ERETERG A - ENMEREREERE
RAAKREN GBS BIEPITEEAE - PR

BE A B SREME - HERE

(CREaree

TG HRR B E AR EE T P E4BEE -

2.2 @ETHERE

(@

(b)

REBEC R RAEIERTER

AEBEDNR-F—/\F—HA—BRHKHSE
& B B R ER T EARE R
R R ELAE AT

— BERPBEHREENESR R T A

— BRMBREEREGRIEATF 2
B A RELEMRA

— UBROAERNNRZ SN DR RE
E BRI BEHmEERESRET A

— T NEEoE AEEBNEE
Bhit

— BEF22RINERHRIENRE]

ik [0 % B 75 3 5 R 55 9 55% % B8 R B 75
EERNF15HRIN - b ER B EE A
SENPBHRRWBEATZE

W ARV RT BRI R A28

AEEWERERBETOREMER_-F
—NF+ZA=+—BHREHE ARSI
2RI R ER KRR - REEERZ
SRR BB EFHENTX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEREBE®)

(Continued)
2.2 SETBUREE ()
(b) MHAREROFTERREZRE(E)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Continued)
IFRS 16 — Leases
Nature of change

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost all
leases being recognised on the balance sheet by lessees, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

Impact

The Group has set up a project team which has reviewed all
leasing arrangements over the last year in light of the new lease
accounting rules in IFRS 16. The standard will affect primarily
the accounting for the Group’s operating leases.

As at December 31,2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB794,663,000, see note
40.

The Group expects to recognise right-of-use assets of
approximately RMB699,517,000 on 1 January 2019, lease
liabilities of approximately RMB699,517,000 (after adjustments
for prepayments and accrued lease payments recognised as at
December 31, 2018).

Operating cash flows will increase and financing cash flows
decrease by approximately RMB140,861,000 as repayment of
the principal portion of the lease liabilities will be classified as
cash flows from financing activities.

The Group’s activities as a lessor are not material and hence the
Group does not expect any significant impact on the financial
statements. However, some additional disclosures will be
required in 2019.

The Group expects that net profit after tax will decrease by
approximately RMB6,743,000 for 2019 as a result of adopting
the new rules.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Continued)
IFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)
Date of adoption by the Group

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory adoption
date of 1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption. All right-of-use assets
will be measured at the amount of the lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expense).

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that
would be expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.3 Adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15

(a) Impact on the financial statements

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9
Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers on the Group’s financial statements and also
discloses the new accounting policies that have been applied
from 1 January 2018, where they are different to those applied
in prior periods.

The Group elected to adopt IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 without
restating comparative information. The reclassifications and
the adjustments arising from the new impairment and revenue
recognition rules are therefore not reflected in the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, but are recognised in
the opening consolidated balance sheet on 1 January 2018.

The following tables show the adjustments recognised for each
individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included. As a result, the sub-totals
and totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers
provided. The adjustments are explained in more detail by
standard below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ;& ==

—N\FtZA=t—RLFE

2 FESHHEBEH

2.3 Adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 (Continued) 2.3 B4R I E%,\ &3 f% @\'J £ 955 &
|§§T\ /ﬁ ?F 7 ﬁF 1:1 %1 (f8)
(a) Impact on the financial statements (Continued) (a) HUBBREROFE(E)
31 Dec Adjustment Adjustment
2017 on initial on initial 1 January
As originally adoption of adoption of 2018
Balance sheet (extract) BEAER(BE) presented IFRS 9 IFRS 15 Restated
“E-tF ERRMER  ERRGER “E-0\%
TZA=t-A  BBHREER  HEREE -A-H
WATSIE®  HORMBE  F5HMRE &5
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
fizE ARBTTL ARBTT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Financial assets at fair value through LA’AWEEEHE
other comprehensive income BEHALZA
LIﬁz INEREE ] - 49124 - 49124
Financial assets at fai value through ARTEFHERR
profit or loss %éﬂ%ﬂ\}éée‘\]
SREE (& - 63,456 - 63,456
Other financial assets HEeREE i) 62,000 (62,000 - -
Avallable-for-sale financial assets IHNESREE (8 50,580 (50,580) - -
112,580 - - 112,580
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables BARHMEYE (i) 5,893,072 (2,915,356) - 2977716
Financial assets at fai value through ALFEFERE
other comprefensive income BERTAEMEA
WS mEE (iv) - 2,915,356 - 2,915,356
5,893,072 - - 5,893,072
Total assets HEE 6,005,652 - - 6,005,652
Liabilities =1
Current liabilities nEaE
Contract liabilties /\H’EF ) - - 814,117 814,117
Advance from customers ZP2H ) 8147 - 814,717) -
Total liabilities BaE 814,717 - - 814,717
Equity R
Other reserve Hinfia (v 62,348 (42,516) - 19,832
Retained eamings REEH (v 4,140,525 42516 - 4,183,041
Total equity aEs 4202873 - - 4202873
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.3 Adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 (Continued)

(a) Impact on the financial statements (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments

and impairment of financial assets.

The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1 =it
January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting policies

2.3 DR AMER B B 755 3 o ZE BI S5 955 M X
XA S A RI B 1555 ()

() HUBHBROLE(E)
B G F HA ERE 955 2 A T A
BRI ISR EEFIRIA TR &5
ERIZESEAN S REEMT R B B

R DBEGE  SRMTARIHERES
REERENEERE -

—N\F— A — B RN B B 7550
SENFR B TA | EHE

SRR

and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial FHNEP B RRERSENRE - g
statements. The new accounting policies are set out in Note 3 TR E A T SCHIRES ©
below.
2017
—+F
Notes RMB’000
BitEE AREETIT
Closing retained earnings +TZA=+—BHRREEF
31 December — IAS 39 — RIS EREI9RHE 4,140,525
Impact of an associate reclassified its RZZE—\F—A—B—HERA
available-for-sale financial assets to H HafthESREEENHEEMN
FVPL on 1 January 2018 NFEFEEHEHTABEOTE () 42,516
Opening retained earnings —E2-NF-A—-BHIREEF
1 January 2018 - IFRS 9 — RIBEBR B R 2 RSB0 E 4,183,041
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ;& ==

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.3 Adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 (continued)

(b) Classification and measurement

()

(i)

(i)

)

Reclassification from available-for-sale to financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)

The Group held the equity securities listed in Hong Kong
with the amount of RMB49,124,000 on 1 January 2018.
Before 1 January 2018, the change of the fair value of
the equity securities listed in Hong Kong was recorded
in other comprehensive income. The Group has chosen
to still record the change of the fair value of those equity
securities at FVOCI.

Reclassification from available-for-sale to financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”):

The Group held the unlisted equity securities listed with the
amount of RMB 1,456,000 on 1 January 2018. Before 1
January 2018, the change of the fair value of the unlisted
equity securities was recorded in other comprehensive
income, which is immaterial. The Group has chosen
to record the change of the fair value of those equity
securities at FVTPL upon adoption of IFRS 9.

Reclassification from other financial assets to financial
assets at FVTPL

The Group held the structured deposits with the amount of
RMB 62,000,000 on 1 January 2018. Before 1 January
2018, the change of the fair value of the structured
deposits was recorded in profit or loss. The Group has
chosen to still record those instruments at FVTPL.

Reclassification from trade and other receivables to
financial assets at FVOC/

Certain notes receivable with contractual cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, were
reclassified to financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as the Group’s business model
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling of these assets. As a result, the amount of RMB
2,915,356,000 was reclassified from trade and other
receivables to financial assets at FVOCI on 1 January
2018.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.3 Adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 (Continued)

(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)

()

Z

(vi)

Reclassification from advance from customers to contract
liabilities

The balance of advance from customers is related with
non-cancellable contract. Thus the balance should be
recognised as contract liabilities under IFRS 15. As a
result, the amount of RMB 814,717,000 was reclassified

from advance from customers to contract liabilities on 1
January 2018.

Impact of an associate reclassified its available-for-sale
financial assets to FVPL

An associate of the Group held certain equity investments
which were reclassified from available-for-sale to financial
assets at FVPL upon adoption of IFRS 9. Related fair value
gains of RMB 42,516,000 shared by the Group were
transferred from valuation reserve to retained earnings on
1 January 2018.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has certain types of financial assets that are

subject to IFRS 9’s new expected credit loss model:

e trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments
to suppliers)

e long-term receivables

e finance lease receivables

e loans receivable from associates and a joint venture

e transferred trade receivables
e cash and cash equivalents

e bank deposits
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEREBE®)

(Continued)
2.3 Adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 (Continued)

23 N ERE BHIREE A Fo R E
BBt AR A 155 ()

(h) PERIEE)
i) BB ERE ()

(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)

(vii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For trade receivables, long-term receivables, finance
lease receivables, and transferred trade receivables, the
Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses (“ECL”) which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance. The restatement of the loss
allowance on transition to IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 was
immaterial.

While cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, are also
subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

For loans receivable from associates and a joint venture
and other receivables (excluding prepayments to
suppliers), the Group applies the IFRS 9 three-stage
approach to measuring ECL. Impairment losses are
measured as either 12-month expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk
of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. Other receivables comprise: other tax recoverable,
deposit, and others. Since the credit risk of other
receivables are considered not significantly increase since
initial recognition, therefore the impairment provision is
determined as 12 months ECL.

The additional impairment loss for loans receivable from
associates and a joint venture and other receivables was
immaterial upon adoption of the expected loss approach
under IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3 Adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 (Continued)

(©

IFRS 15 Revenue from Gontracts with Customers

IFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue standards: IAS 18
Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts, and the related
Interpretations on revenue recognition. IFRS 15 establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining when to recognise
revenue and how much revenue to recognise through a
5-step approach: (1) Identify the contract(s) with customer;
(2) Identify separate performance obligations in a contract; (3)
Determine the transaction price; (4) Allocate transaction price
to performance obligations and (5) Recognise revenue when
performance obligation is satisfied. The core principle is that
a company should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to the customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. It moves away
from a revenue recognition model based on an approach of
transfer of risk and rewards to an approach based on transfer
of control. IFRS 15 provides specific guidance on capitalisation
of contract cost and license arrangements. It also includes
a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from the entity’s contracts with customers. Under IFRS
15, an entity recognises revenue when a performance obligation
is satisfied.

The Group elected to use a modified retrospective approach for
transition which allows the Group to recognise the cumulative
effects of initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings in the 2018 financial year.
The Group elected to apply the practical expedient for completed
contracts and did not restate the contracts completed before
1 January 2018, thus the comparative figures have not been
restated.

IFRS 15 replaces the provisions of IAS 18 Revenue that relate
to the recognition, classification and measurement of revenue
and costs. The effects of the adoption of IFRS 15 are immaterial
on 1 January 2018, except for the reclassification of liabilities
related to contract with customers as disclosed in the table in
notes 2.3 (a).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

@

)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group. (Note 2.4).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised
at cost.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

©

@

Joint arrangements

Under IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy described in note
2.4,
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEREBE®)

(Continued)
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B RARERETERE(E)
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2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 TE=
Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

(e)  Changes in ownership interests (e

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 TESTHEREHE®)

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 2.4 FESFTER (#)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other
assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred
e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial
liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognized in
profit or loss. Amounts classified as equity is not re-measured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognized in
profit or 10ss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM”). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as executive directors of the Company.

Foreign currency translation

@

)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the Historical Financial Information of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The Company’s functional currency
is RMB as its key activities and transactions are denominated in
RMB. The Group’s presentation currency is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within “other gains and
losses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 TESTHEREHE®)

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 2.4 FESFTER (#)

Foreign currency translation (Continued) IMEBRE ()
(©)  Group companies © ZEEIA

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position

e income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognized in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified into statement
of profit or loss, as part of “other gain and losses”.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEREBE®)

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 2.4 EESEBUR @)

Property, plant and equipment

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

The above items of property, plant and equipment except for
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 2.71%-317%
Plant and machinery 9.00%-18.00%
Motor vehicles 18.00%-19.00%
Other equipment 18.00%-19.00%

Property, plant and equipment arising from business acquisition is
depreciated over the remaining useful life.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, and are recognized in “Other gains and losses”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

@

(b)

Gooawill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the aggregate purchase consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes at the operating segments.

Trademarks, patents and customer relationship

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks, patents and customer relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

©

@

Development cost

Costs associated with project development are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique
products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible
assets when the following criteria are met:

e it is technically feasible to complete the technology so that
it will be available for use

e management intends to complete the technology and use
or sell it

e there is an ability to use or sell the technology

e it can be demonstrated how the technology will generate
probable future economic benefits

e adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
technology are available, and

e the expenditure attributable to the technology during its
development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
technology include employee costs and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as development
costs in intangible assets and would be transferred to completed
development projects or patents, and amortised from the point
at which the asset is ready for use over its estimated use life.

Research and development

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do
not meet the criteria in () above are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
(e)  Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following period:

Trademark 10 years
Software 4-5 years
Patent right 5-10 years
Customer relationship 10 years

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, development cost not yet ready for use and intangible assets
that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018.

@

)

Classification

From January 1, 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets
in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit or
loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income
(OCI). For investments in debt instruments, this will depend
on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FvoCl).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flow from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains and losses together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEREBE®)

(Continued)
2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 2.4 EESEBUR @)
Financial assets (Continued) SREEE)
() Measurement (Continued) © &t=E(E)
Debt instruments (Continued) BEFTAE)

e FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains and losses. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains
and losses and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

e  FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains and losses in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets measured at FVPL
are recognised in other gains and losses in profit or loss as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

@

Impairment

From January 1, 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost, FVOCI and FVPL. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group has certain types of financial assets that are subject
to IFRS 9’s new ECL model. Please refer to note 3 for details.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected
not to restate comparative information. As a result, the
comparative information provided continues to be accounted for
in accordance with the Group’s previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories:

e financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

e |oans and receivables, and
e  available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification is determined on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade data basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation on convention in the marketplace.
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2 FESHHEBEH

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(d)  Impairment (Continued)

U

(i)

Reclassification

The Group could choose to reclassify a non-derivative
trading financial asset out of the held for trading category
if the financial asset was no longer held for the purpose
of selling it in the near term. Financial assets other than
loans and receivables were permitted to be reclassified out
of the held for trading category only in rare circumstances
arising from a single event that was unusual and highly
unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition, the Group
could choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet
the definition of loans and receivables out of the held for
trading or available-for-sale categories if the Group had
the intention and ability to hold these financial assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of
reclassification.

Reclassifications were made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value became the new cost
or amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair
value gains or losses recorded before reclassification
date were subsequently made. Effective interest rates for
financial assets reclassified to loans and receivables were
determined at the reclassification date. Further increases
in estimates of cash flows adjusted effective interest rates
prospectively.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement at initial recognition did not change an
adoption of IFRS 9, see description above.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, loans and receivables
were carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(@) Impairment (Continued)

(i)

i

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at FVPL were subsequently carried at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised as follows:

e for ‘financial assets at FVPL’ — in profit or loss within
other gains and losses

e for available-for-sale financial assets that are
monetary securities denominated in a foreign
currency — translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost of the security were recognised
in profit or loss and other changes in the carrying
amount were recognised in other comprehensive
income

e for other monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale — in other
comprehensive income.

Details on how the fair value of financial instruments is
determined are disclosed in note 3.

When securities classified as available-for-sale were sold,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
other comprehensive income were reclassified to profit or
loss as other gains and losses from investment securities.

Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting period
whether there was objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets was impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets was impaired and
impairment losses were incurred only if there was objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) had an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that could be reliably estimated.
In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost was considered an indicator
that the assets are impaired.

(i

(iii)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEREBE®)

(Continued)

24 TE SR @)
EWMEEGE)

(@  Impairment (Continued) @ EEE)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) JBE (&)

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss was
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that had not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
was reduced and the amount of the loss was recognised
in profit or loss. If a loan and receivables had a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss was the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group could measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreased and the decrease could be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in
note 3.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

If there was objective evidence of impairment for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — was removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that were
recognised in profit or loss were not reversed through
profit or loss in a subsequent period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increased in a subsequent period and the increase
could be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss was reversed through profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow
for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as
either:

e hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a
firm commitment (fair value hedges), or

e hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows of
recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEREBE®)

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 2.4 FEZFTESR (@)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

At the inception of the hedging, The Group documents the
economic relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging
instruments are expected to offset changes in the cash flows of
hedged items. The Group documents its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated in hedge
relationships are disclosed in note 23. Movements in the hedging
reserve in shareholders’ equity are shown in note 23. The full fair
value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset
or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more
than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when
the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.
Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability.

(@ Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in cash flow hedge reserve within equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss within other gains and losses.

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions,
the Group designates only the intrinsic value of the options
as the hedging instrument. Until 31 December 2017, the
Group classified foreign currency options as held-for-trading
derivatives and accounted for them at FVPL.

Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change
in intrinsic value of the options are recognised in the cash flow
hedge reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of
the options that relate to the hedged item (‘aligned time value’)
are recognised within OCI in the costs of hedging reserve within
equity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

(@@ Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting (Continued)

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast
transactions, the Group generally designates only the change in
fair value of the forward contract related to the spot component
as the hedging instrument. Gains or losses relating to the
effective portion of the change in the spot component of the
forward contracts are recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve
within equity. The change in the forward element of the contract
that relates to the hedged item (‘aligned forward element’) is
recognised within OCI in the costs of hedging reserve within
equity. In some cases, the Group may designate the full change
in fair value of the forward contract (including forward points)
as the hedging instrument. In such cases, the gains or losses
relating to the effective portion of the change in fair value of the
entire forward contract are recognised in the cash flow hedge

reserve within equity.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or loss, as follows:

e \Where the hedged item subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset (such as inventory),
both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the
deferred time value of the option contracts or deferred
forward points, if any, are included within the initial cost of
the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised
in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for

example through cost of sales).

e The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the
interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is
recognised in profit or loss within finance cost at the same
time as the interest expense on the hedged borrowings.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEREBE®)

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 2.4 EESEBUR @)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)
(@ Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting (Continued)

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred
costs of hedging in equity at that time remains in equity until
the forecast transaction occurs, resulting in the recognition
of a non-financial asset such as inventory. When the forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in
equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in profit or loss and are included in
other gains and losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. They
are generally due for settlement within a year and therefore are all
classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See note 30 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and note 3 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is
not due 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade payables and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2 FESHHEBE@

2.4 TESETHER(®)

RERKAESEEY

MEFRERERNS RekBReSEDE
FEFHERS  eREBEHER - EnEis
RBERE(RTIHEAE=FEAIIAT - k&
KA IR AR M BN EEEZSRRT
RE)UARBITES - RITEZZ2IINEESR
BERARBBEENEEERT °

B
TR e RS

BT B R E R R RATE R A S
= 25 RPEFIRAINR (HIFRFHIE) -

BEZREMENFIA

BIRNFIARN BB X PR AWM ER
BENE MRS T EVFIR « FRIEKIAR
BEHRIEANIE - SHNEZENRIES
WA AREEE -

5 N FR0R K B At (N SORIZ A BV P HE
R HRRABEBRNERIR B HK AT E -



EINREERMEBRN AR AR 201851

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Gurrent and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case the income tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the areas where the Company, its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

(b)  Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2 FESHHEBEH

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)  Deferred income tax (Continued)

©

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
joint ventures and associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from
the joint ventures and associates’ undistributed profits is not
recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-
employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits provided in various forms of consideration in
exchange for service rendered by employees or compensations for
the termination of employment relationship.

(@  Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits include employee wages or
salaries, bonus, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare,
premiums or contributions on medical insurance, work injury
insurance and maternity insurance, housing funds, short-
term paid absences, labour union running costs and employee
education costs, etc. The short-term employee benefit liabilities
are recognised in the accounting period in which the service is
rendered by the employees, with a corresponding charge to the
profit or loss for the current period or the cost of relevant assets.
Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.

(b)  Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes, including both
defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group’s legal or constructive obligation for the plan is limited to
the contributions.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEREBEw®)

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 TESEHBE @)

Employee benefits (Continued) EERR(E)
(b)  Pension obligations (Continued) b) ROELEEE)
Defined benefit plans AEEF S
A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined AERMFEIR —IEIERTHIEREET
contribution plan. gl o
Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension AERBFFT B — MR E R B R RRERER

benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service
and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of
defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension obligation. In countries where there is no
deep market in such bonds, the market rates on government
bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the
increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from
employee service in the current year, benefit changes,
curtailments and settlements.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited
to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the statement
of profit or loss.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit or loss.

MERS RIS FHESBEBESRT—
HRZRRAE - PINFER - RSFHRE
EE °

REEABERERNEITRIBKRSE
EEHEN B BEERSHARATEMELN
RERTEEERTE - RERINEEE
F B BEREATE) ﬁUﬁLM*,\ BEE
H - ATEMNEENRERUZNETR
WEETHE B BER ERER KSR T
HIRRAEE R EE D REHFNF R AR AT
RAGRE R MERE o EABREZEF LR
EmSHER - BIERABITESRN TS
o

AERAAZNEHRBRA(RIBEE
REEBBAFAL PR HEABE
A B BRAIN) RERA A F [ R B RIS M
EXMATRANETEM - EFE
RN AEE -

ILE;HW&F*”@““E& SEEMIEEIR
 MER R E 4 R E A 2 [ e B 42
IR ET AR ©

B PRFSRCARE NN B 2R R

F B AR R E (A
Rt SIAEHATE  BUREHY © %
RARIAR RS AMRE BN -



192

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i E PSR AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% — =

—N\F+tZA=+—HLFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

©

@

€

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide other post-retirement benefits
to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period.
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment using the same accounting methodology
as used for defined benefit pension plans. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Provision

Provisions for warranty are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

The Group recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace
for assurance type-warranty. This provision is calculated based on
historical experience of the level of repairs and replacements.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

If an entity has an onerous contract (the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it), the present obligation under the
contract is recognised as a provision.

A restructuring provision is recognised only when the general
recognition criteria for provision are met. The obligation for a
restructuring is often constructive. A constructive restructuring
obligation arises only when there is: (a) a detailed formal plan
identifying the main features of the restructuring; and (b) a valid
expectation in those affected that the entity will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its
main features to those affected.

A restructuring plan does not create a present obligation at the
balance sheet date if it is announced after that date, even if it is
announced before the financial statements are approved. A sale
or termination of a business might fall under the definition of a
restructuring. No obligation arises in respect of restructuring costs
associated with the sale of an operation until the entity is committed
to the sale (that is, there is a binding sale agreement).

Restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures
arising from the restructuring, which are necessarily entailed
by the restructuring and not those associated with the entity’s
ongoing activities. Any expected gains on the sale of assets are not
considered in measuring a restructuring provision.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Sales comprise the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from the sale of coal mining machinery, spare parts, auto
parts and rendering of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Sales are presented, net of value-added tax, rebates and

discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group also assess its role as an agent or principal for each
transaction and in an agency arrangement the amounts collected
on behalf of the principal are excluded from revenue. The Group
recognises revenue when the specific criteria have been met for each

of the activities, as described below.

Sales of products

The Group manufactures and sells a range of coal mining machineries
and auto parts to its customers. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and
either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied. The retention receivables which will be settled by
customers after warranty period, is included in trade receivables.

The Group does not recognise the warranty service as a separate
performance obligation in a single contract as the warranty service is
assurance type, and the Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the warranty terms is recognised as a provision, see

note 34.

Transportation and handling cost

As the transportation and handling activities occur before the
customer obtains control of related products, they are not separate
performance obligation, therefore, related costs are fulfilment costs
which are recognised as assets following the adoption of IFRS 15.
The assets are amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or service to which the
assets relate. Due to the short period of transportation, related assets

are not material at the balance sheet date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Significant financing component

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12
months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Normally, the collection period would be from 3 to 5 years.

Rendering of service

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. The service provided by
the Group is mainly related to the service for repairing service.

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers requires the
presentation of any unconditional rights to consideration as a
receivable separately from contract assets. The Group has therefore
reclassified its contract assets and contract liabilities upon adoption
of IFRS 15.

Contract liabilities are recognised as follows:

e Contract liabilities recognised in relation to advance received
from customers for non-cancellable contracts, were previously
included in trade and other payables;

e Contract liabilities recognised in relation to R&D reimbursements
— The Group recognised the related reimbursement payment
from customer as contract liabilities and recognise as revenue
over the expected production to customer in future period. The
related R&D costs are capitalised as contract fulfilment cost
under inventory and would be amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis consistent with the pattern of the transfer of
the products under production to the customer as part of cost
of sales. Any R&D cost which is not recoverable or when related
production is not proceeded by the customer is written off to
profit or loss directly. There is no cost written off during the
year.

RE M RARMIEE

—N\FtZA=t—RLFE

2 FESHHEBEH

2.4 FE@FTHBER (@)

LON G
BABES D
HaRBERERN)  REPRHEAREN
siB12ME A - B AR FETT 2 @R R

B 5 IR BRBRIR R BEIR 7 B WK TRIR (ERT
£ MABMARRZERFNZXEBRG - @
WHARR R3Z55F ©

FER IR

}%1 RIG AW AR R E RS 2 &5t B
o ARBERENRE T BEGERIEER -

BIEEFZRRE B BNEEREE

BB EENFE1SREEF 2 BaRE
AV A B SRRHE (AT SR GR AR ER (E OHE R 2
JI RN A R EEREYGRIA - Fit - K&
BN KA B B RS R B 1R R EH D1
HERBEERARERE -

BEERIOT

o BARBUHA RUYERRE P 2R FTRER R
ABREE W ERMBEENE S MEMENR
18

o HAMMEMEERNARAENS - &
SHEDKREFEFHARMAEEREERR
ABREE  AERARKRAEHEREZ SR
EPFETR A ENWA - BREFT ST
BERNMEAFEETHERBEARA - Wi
ERIHERARN — 3D RIEMEPEELE
EFERNEARAREERBRTHE
3 o RN B S A A EY KRR
PREETROTERAR BN EET
H3H - FRALBMIHRA

195



196

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERAR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers (Continued)

The Group also has the contract related assets, recognised in relation
to nomination fee. Nomination fee represents the fee paid by the
Group to the customers to participate in the tendering process, and
the fee is not refundable once the customer’s contract is secured.
Such payment to customer is capitalised as an asset and thus
amortised to deduct against the revenue over the contract life.

The Group has elected to make use of the following practical
expedients

e  Completed contracts under IAS 11 and IAS 18 before the date
of transition have not been reassessed.

e The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph 121
of IFRS 15 and does not disclose information about remaining
performance obligations that have original expected durations of
one year or less.

e The Group also applies the practical expedient in paragraph
C5(c) of IFRS 15 and the transaction price of the modified
contracts reflect the aggregate effect of all of the modifications
that occur before the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Interest income
Accounting policies applied since January 1, 2018

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Interest income is presented as other income where it is earned from
financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.

Accounting policies applied before January 1, 2018

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When the loans receivable are impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to their recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEREBE®)

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESEH K )

Government grants

Government grants are obtained free from the government in the
form of monetary assets, including tax refunds and/or financial
subsidies.

Grants from the government are recognised where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all attached conditions. If the grant is in the form
of monetary assets, it is measured by the amount received or
receivable.

Government grants related to assets are government grants which
are obtained by the enterprise for the construction or formation
of other long-term assets. Government grants related to income
refer to the grants other than those related to assets. Government
grants related to assets are recognised as deferred income, equally
recorded in profit or loss of corresponding period over the life of the
relevant assets.

Government grants related to income used as compensation for
business expenses or losses in subsequent periods, are recognised
as deferred income, and recorded in profit or loss when the expenses
are recognised; those obtained as compensation for business
expenses or losses that have occurred are recorded directly in current
profit or 10ss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 TESTHEREHE®)

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 TESEHBE @)

Lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of
property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the profit
attributable to owners of the company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s directors or shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders, where appropriate.
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Financial risk factors

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include loans receivable
from associates and a joint venture, other financial assets, finance lease
receivables, long-term receivables, debt investment, trade and other

receivables, derivative instruments, pledged bank deposits,

cash and bank

balances, trade and other payables, borrowings, obligation to acquire non-

controlling interests, transferred trade receivables and liabil

ities associated

with transferred trade receivables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

(@ Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to currency risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk and price risk. There has been no change in the
Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages

and measures the risks.

(i) Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various non-functional currencies.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial

transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is

primarily with respect to non-functional currency

bank balances,

and receivable (collectively “Non-Functional Currency ltems”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging certain foreign currency exposure by using
foreign exchange forward contracts when the need arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-functional currency

items at the end of each Reporting Period are as

Assets BE
Liabilities =L
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31 December 2018 31 December 2017

R-F-\§+-A=1+-R RZF—tF+-A=1-H
Usb EUR HKD USD EUR HKD
Y B BT e BT BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT ARETH [BNE SN v N:Y. S
601,578 42,020 40,935 204,941 46,030 398,013
(80,167) (14,380) - (28,597) (31,028) -

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign
between USD/RMB, EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB.

currency risk
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@ Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the relevant foreign currencies
against RMB5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of each
Reporting Period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates but
does not consider the effect of derivative financial instruments.
A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
for the year and a negative number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax profit for the year where the relevant foreign
currencies change 5% against RMB.

UsD
EYr
RMB'000
ARETR
If the currency strengthens WEBLAREFE
against RMB 26,071
If the currency weakens HERRARERE
against RMB (26,071)
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EUR

B
RMB’000
AR%TR

1,382

(1,382)

@

31 December 2018
R-EB-NE+-A=+-H

E¥RRGE)

TREFAEBHERINE L ARBHE
NEZESRHREFE - 5% HIAEEE
BABRNB2MINERLBURELLE -
WRKREEEHEESIE]REE BT
fl o BURE D ITE B IRAINEFIER 15 R
TREMIEE - WA SIRE R AERE
B)S%EIE X A% - RETRITESRT
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SEENSUEF - FARTIEHEFIEN - T
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31 December 2017
RZE—tF+-A=+—H
HKD Usb EUR HKD
B e BT BT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

IS \RETT ARETT ARETER
2,047 8,703 638 16,916
2,047) 6,709 638 (16916
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@ Market risk (continued)

(ii) Interest risk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E—ZF— \F+=-A=+—HIFE
3 SREREE®
(@) TSGR @
(i) FIEERR

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate borrowings (see note 33 for details). Currently,
the Group does not have a specific policy to manage its interest
rate risk, but management will closely monitor interest rate
exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate risk
should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for long-term borrowing at
variable-rate at the end of each Reporting Period and the
excepted changes in interest rates taking place at the beginning
of the financial year and being held constant throughout the
reporting period.

If the interest rates on long-term variable-rate borrowings had

been 50 basis points higher and all other variables were held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have decreased by:

/

Decrease in post-tax profit for the year FRBRBE R

REET BER (FHE2 M)A
REeRENERER - BRI - NEELES
EBREEEMEER - ERERKEY)
BENXERAAEEFTERHEELEITEKR
FE R

AT BURED T IIRET B RBEFNE
e BAR AR @R A K B R AR
BRI R B (R B ER SRR TE)
B -

4778 KR A0 FIE L FS0ER - 7
FB MBI - BIF R BEER
B

2018 2017
—2-N\F —FtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR ARETT

(7,153) (4,289)

The post-tax profit for the year would have increased by the
same amount as mentioned above if the interest rates on
variable-rate borrowings had been 50 basis points lower and all
other variables were held constant.

fidi 2 BERAOM KT E0EEE - MAE
HAS BT - BIFEARTREENRIZ
AR S FEIE 0
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@ Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and classified in the balance
sheet either as at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) (note 23) or at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) (note 23). To manage its price risk arising from
investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance
with the limits set by the Group.

The majority of the Group’s equity investments are publicly
traded and are included either in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
200 Index. The remaining part is unlisted companies.

With the 10% change of the price of those equity securities
including both listed companies and unlisted companies,
the Group’s other comprehensive income and profit before
tax would increase or decrease by RMB3.2 million and
RMBO0.1 million respectively (2017: the other comprehensive
income and profit before tax would increase or decrease by
RMB4.9 million and 0.1 million respectively).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivables, long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative
assets, loans receivable from associates and a joint venture, financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, pledged bank deposit, cash
and cash equivalents.

To manage the risk with respect to pledged bank deposit, cash and
cash equivalents, structured deposits and derivative assets, the
Group placed them in or entered into the contract with the banks with
high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and an appropriate percentage of down
payments. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation of credit
limits to individual customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business
of manufacture of coal mining machinery, the Group generally
receives advances in the form of notes receivable or cash from
customers (which approximate 30% of the contract price) before
delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts,
normally a credit period of 0 to 90 days is granted to its customers.
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain
notes receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with
full recourse. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk
of the default in payment of the endorsed notes receivable is low
because all endorsed notes receivable are issued and guaranteed by
reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 3 years and
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the counterparties’ ability to meet its
obligations

e Qactual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of counterparties

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments
of counterparties

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour
of counterparties, including changes in the payment status of
counterparties in the Group and changes in the operating results
of the counterparties.
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

The Group has the receivables from different customers and debtors
operate in different industries. In the meantime, customer portfolio
basis are also different between China and other countries. Thus, the
Group classify above assets into below category:

e Category 1: trade receivables — coal mining machinery group

e (ategory 2: trade receivables — ASIMCO group

e  (ategory 3: trade receivables — SEG Automotive Germany
GmbH (“SEG Group”)

e  (ategory 4: notes receivables — commercial notes
e (ategory 5: notes receivables — bank accepted notes

e  (ategory 6: finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

e  (ategory 7: loans receivable from associates and a joint venture

e  (ategory 8: other receivables

e  (ategory 9: transferred account receivables
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Trade receivables

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HIL&FE
3 LRERER®)
b) EERRE@E
)y EBZEWRE

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a period of 12 to 36 month before 31 December
2018 or 1 January 2018 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the CPI of the countries in which it sells its goods and
services to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
and the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets
are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.
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3 SREREZE#®
b) EERE@®@

B REWRRE(E)

3 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i)

RZF-N\F+ZA=+—BTREHH
H B EBGEIRAT -

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables of different
categories as at 31 December 2018 are listed as follows:

FH - RIEE

Category 1: Coal mining machinery group

Over Over Over Over
90 days 180 days 1year 2 years
Within ~ butwithin ~ butwithin ~ butwithin  but within Over
90 days 180 days 1year 2years 3Jyears 3years Total
ERNX EBX BB-F BERE
KR B180RR  B-FR  BRER  B=FR  #B=E @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR - AREFTL
Trade receivables EARENEE
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=1-H
Expected loss rate i)t 0% 2% 5% 20% 50% 100%
(ross carrying amount (excluding SEAE(TEEERR
receivables assessed individuall) RaGL:lE )] 953,184 237,359 320,388 21,478 2113 28250 2,143,432
Loss allowance provision EERE - 4741 16,019 54,296 36,225 268,250 399,537
Individually impaired receivables BRI ERNsE 10,884 19,799 16,737 97,173 0015 238159 412,767
Total loss allowance provision BRAELE 10,884 24,546 32,756 151,469 66,240 526,409 812,304
Trade receivables EARUNEE
At1 January 2018 WZE-N\F-F-H
Expected loss rate EHEER 0% 2 % 2% 0% 100%
Gross carrying amount (xcluding FEAE(TREERR
receivables assessed individually) At EkEIE) 470,600 330,547 458,814 310,569 86,087 323898 1,980,515
Loss allowance provision EEEE - 6,611 22941 62,114 43043 323,898 458,607
Individually impaired receivables EERHEREYEE - - 696 17175 252,683 %0772 531326
Total loss allowance provision BRRELE - 6,611 23,637 79,89 295,726 584,670 989,933
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 sEEAEBEZEG

(b) Credit risk (Continued) b EERE@
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) )y BEZrWEEE)

Category 2: ASIMCO group

Fp2 - BATHEE

Over Over Over
90 days 180 days 1 year
Within but within but within but within Over
90 days 180 days 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
BiBOX BiBISX BB-F
0XK  E180KKH  B-FA ERFR  BEME st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBEFT ARETr ARETE ARBTT ARETR
Trade receivables g5 RN
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N§
+=A=1+-H
Expected loss rate jit il g 0% 1% 29% 9% 99%
Gross carrying amount (excluding — BREAS(E (T B IR (ER)
receivables assessed individually) EMELEIE) 121,925 124,164 21,603 4,572 7,463 885,727
Loss allowance provision EERE - 1,005 6,172 3,599 7,463 18,239
Individually impaired receivables EVNERIEL e e 280 18 874 1,553 679 3,404
Total loss allowance provision — EiEM {5458 280 1,023 7,046 5,152 8,142 21,643
Trade receivables B RN
At1 January 2018 R-E-N§-A-H
Expected loss rate EHEEX 0% 0% 25% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding  BREAME (MR EERER
receivables assessed indiidually)  FEMEAIMEMRE) 719,841 116,270 8,233 2,880 854,933
Loss allowance provision EEEE - - 2,058 1,440 11,208
Individually impaired receivables BRI G ERTE - . - - - _
Total loss allowance provision iR fEA%E - - 2,058 1,440 7,710 11,208

Category 3: SEG group and contract related assets.

KR53 : SEGEE R & FIEHEEE

The account receivable balance of SEG group and contract
related assets are mainly related with SEG group’s customers,
who are the global OEMs in auto industry. The Group assessed
the credit losses of account receivable balance of SEG
individually using simplified approach. As of 31 December
2018, RMB27 million has been provided as life time loss
allowance for account receivables.

SEGEE B [2 & [FIAE 8 & FEE M FE W AR R R R
DHSICRENESAR  EAENA
BITEMFIARERERN - ASEHEAG
(b5 HSEGIE W BR SRR R ) (S BB 183 TT
BRI - B2 T \F+_A=+—
H #EBESRKFEETREATER G
BREEAARBIEET
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Notes receivables
Category 4. notes receivables — commercial notes

The Group assess the credit losses of notes receivables —
commercial notes individually using three-stage approach. As
of 31 December 2018, RMB6.8 million has been provided as
12 months loss allowance for notes receivables — commercial
notes. As of 1 January 2018, there is no loss allowance
provided.

Category 5. notes receivables — bank accepted notes

The Group assess the credit losses of notes receivables — bank
accepted notes individually using three-stage approach. As
of 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, there is no loss
allowance provided.

finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

Category 6: finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

Finance lease receivables and long-term receivables are mainly
due from the customer of coal mining machinery group. The
Group provide financial leasing or long term payment plan to
certain customers because these customers are mainly state
owned companies or guaranteed by third parties. The Group
grant a relatively long repayment plan to the customers based
on the credit assessment. The Group assess the credit losses of
finance lease receivables and long-term receivables individually
using simplified approach. As of 31 December 2018, RMB106
million has been provided as life time loss allowance for finance
lease receivables and long-term receivables. As of 1 January
2018, RMB 78 million has been provided as loss allowance for
finance lease receivables and long-term receivables.

Loans receivable from associates and a joint venture

Category 7: Loans receivable from associates and a joint
venture

Loans receivable are due from the Group’s associates and a
joint venture. The Group assess the credit losses of related
balances individually using three-stage approach. As of 31
December 2018, RMB 64 million has been provided as loss
allowance for loans receivable from associate and a joint
venture. As of 1 January 2018, RMB 40 million has been
provided as loss allowance for loans receivable from associate
and a joint venture.

3 SREBREER®

(b)

.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

5 = A e
= B2 E)

FEWRE
B4 JEWEE - B ERE

AEBRB=_ERBEHEREE —H%
ERNEEFHEETEMFG BE-T
—N\F+ZA=+—H E#EKRRE—-
REREAR 128 A BEEEARKES
BETL -BE_T-)/\F-A—H #E
sHEERRYE -

BRI : JEMSEIE — IRTT IR

AN E A = PR EBUAE R E U I — iR
TERAZENEEER -BE-Z—N\F
+ZA=+—BEKk=ZE—-/N\F—HF—H"
WEERTHRES B -

BMERERRFER RMEKRHRE

ARG - FE T EJEWIE R RATEW A
H

BEHERMRALEHRKFIREIER
RUREEHEBRETS - ARETERPE
EREAEFEERBE=TER - MAE
EmzEEPRHBEHERTBMNRE
g - AEBRBEEEFEMEFR LA
BEHEREE - NEERAGORE B
B THE R YRR K & R R OR 1T {E
AEEBRTE R N\F+_H
=t+—R CHREEERKFBELES
EURIEF R BB RBEARE1068
BT -B82_Z-/\F—HA—R Fr5£H
E LR E BB R R R H A GR IR ET
REBRBARKSEET

EWBE AR R -—EMEEREEN

A7 EUHERFIR e SRR

o
A

RUWERBERRAEEBEARL—BE
EE - REBRMA = ERBELERE A
SETEBEEBRNE - R=FT—N\F
T-A=1t—8  AEEEHEKHER
Ak—REELENERIREREE
ARBGIBET - BE—F—\F—A—
B AEECHRERBEARR—HE
BEENEFGHEBERBBARROEE

JC ©
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(v) Transferred account receivables
Category 8: Transferred account receivables

Please refer to note 35 for the detailed description of transferred
account receivables. The Group assess the credit loss of
transferred account receivables individually using simplified
approach. As of 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018,
related loss allowance is immaterial.

(vi) Other receivables
Category 9: other receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 three-stage approach to
measuring ECL. Other receivables comprise: advances to staff,
deposit and others. Since the credit risk of other receivables are
considered not significantly increase since initial recognition,
therefore the impairment provision is determined as 12
months ECL. As of 31 December 2018, RMB97 million has
been provided as loss allowance for other receivables. As of
1 January 2018, RMB 14 million has been provided as loss
allowance for other receivables.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade and notes
receivable:

In the prior year, the impairment of above categories was assessed based
on the incurred loss model. An allowance for impairment is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indication that the receivable is impaired.

The impact on transition to IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 (date of
adoption of IFRS 9) as a result of applying the expected credit risk
model was immaterial.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilization of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

3 sEEAEBEZEG

b) EERRE®E

(v) BEZENEVRERER
FEG : OB ENCAR L

R EENEURIGFS - F2HKF
35 « ANEERAMCA D Eim IR
FETEBEEEENE - RZE—N\F
+ZA=+—HERZZE-\F—HF—H"
RS IERBIUTERX

(vi) HEAbREWRIE
AERG - Bt fEWFIE

7R ES B e R B R A 7 s 5 R R S 95 RTE
M=EBEAGTERSEEEE - HiE
WA B - ME T8N - mekH M -
A MR Y5 B R B 1)5R HER
NRBARBL NEA - Bt (EREE
ERREAEREERR - R-_F—/\F
TZA=1+—H  EREMRKFER R
BRABARBIIBEEL -BE2_Z—N
F-A—H  AEECBEMEYRIAR
REEERBARB4EST -

BRESERERARERERRENBES
B

EF 0 PBIRETIRECD ELBEEE
1TRHE o FEMGIRR ERHEIN L3R T B E B
RN B EA IR R UGRIA R R U = P
BRI RRETE

BEBALRBEMEEREE - EEARS AT RERE
ST AR A R KV SE RS SRR S
WoRR BB ERI TR

RZZB—NF—A—H RN GRS 24
AIFER AR - EAEMEERREREBE
ERRMBEREENEIRNTEALTEK o

MBE TR

REEEEREFEEERREURNAEE
LEMR ERFNRERREFED - R
EReRENPNTE - EREERRITEER
HERIER - HERE T BN -

TERFAVAKEREREEEGERNOIETES
BAGEHTARZIEA - RIETIRIBEERAE
B BRI &E AN R B ERBRRA
ERERE - RIEBENEMASRENE -
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3 SREBREER®
(© mEBESRER @)

3 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Weighted  On demand Total
average  orless than 3 months 1yearto 2years undiscounted Carrying
The Group AEH interest rate 3 months to1year 2years  to5years  cash flows amount
g RERSD 3f8A 15 B KRR
Fi9H%= 38R E3k:3 ey BE REAE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+ZR=1-H
Non-derivative financial liablites ~ 3EATE 2 BAE
Trade and other payables B REMENTIE - 1,207,848 916,760 - - 8124608 8,124,608
Liabilties associated with HBEEENE SENUR
transferred trade receivables EBHNER - 242,879 - - - 242,879 242,879
Borrowings e 3.05 15750 1,061,254 763288 1,167,406 3,007,698 2,870,800
Redemption iabites (ofe 43) BB & E(MizE43) 10 - - - 1425284 1425284 1,177,921
Derivative financial liabilities TEEREE
Not designated as TEEARHRIA
hedging instruments - 35179 - - - 35,179 35,179
7505221 1,978,014 763288 2592690 12839213 12,454,952
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+&
+-F=1-8
Non-Cerivative financial liabiiies ~ 3EAT4 2 BBE
Trade and other payables B REMENTE - 3132619 982,591 - - 415210 4115210
Liabilities associated with BREENE ZREGA
transferred trade receivables EENAG - 225,297 - - - 225,297 225,297
Borrowings ®E 4.54 120,402 11,373 116,497 744390 1,092,662 1,009,000
Redemption liabilities (note 43) b=t RR)) 10 - - - 1421291 1421291 1,066,617
3478318 1,093,964 116497 2166081 6,854,860 6,416,124

R BRI B R R R A R A
2 - Al I SMAEIDHEIAS
FATED -

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the Reporting Period.

B EXFTESN - ANERE A& HRE B HERR
—FAIRBESRR  AREEAFEEH
BRENEBERERE  MRERERLZ
RITRBEBITHEME  FIRELNRABER
BERt - FI5H20KE42 -

In addition to the above, the Group is also exposed to liquidity risk
in the next one year from each reporting date in relation to the
maximum loss and cash outflows that may result from the Group’s
endorsed notes receivable with full recourse should the issuing banks
of these notes fail to honour their obligations, please refer to note 42
for details.
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3 sEEAEBEZEG

3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each Reporting Period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at
31 December 2018
RIB-NFE+ZA=+—-HZA¥E

Financial assets
SREE

Financial assets at Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

fair valug through — Coal industry RMB31,540,000

0Cl, non-current (2017: RMB49,124,000)
WATEMEREEY REBH ERAES —BRITE

FARMZE AR 31,540,000

BRI REE (ZZ—t5 : AR49,124,0007T)

E/E)]

O SMIAZATMENE

M EREARENAEESHEREERS
MAEBERATEZER -

RIBEEUHEERATEAEZAEEERE
ENTRAEZATE -

TRUGEERED I EAFEFIENSHT
B o FABMEENT :

F1 WERMSEESR T AN FEM
WAMBEENITETARRAES) RIZRE
HIRFT R EME © AEREPTH & mEEM A
AR mERERNEANE - ZZTANAS
14 -

S - WIFNERMISEEN SR T A(DIMN
SIMTETR) R FEDMBMBETEERE
ZEEDEEENRAUBEMSEIRL R AR
A BB EMETOEE o Wit ETART
EfROMEEABABER SRR A
ZTADIAZE24R

FIE - M-S EBRBARBLIFRE
ABETISEERME - AR TA AR (B
N EMRARES) ©

BEHEMR
ZETEE
LEZE

HEMA

AEEFDEREERTRA BN
BRAFEFTE o TRATHERHA
EReRAEQTEEETA(
ZEENERBABE) -

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

DFESH

Level 1
F18

HETEREERARE

Quoted bid prices in an active market
RERMSHME ERE
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Financial assets
SREE

Derivative financial
instruments
TESRMIA

Derivative financial
instruments
TESRMIA

Derivative financial
instruments
TESRMIA

Financial assets at
fair value through P/L
UAFEHREARD
FABRNEREE

Fair value as at
31 December 2018

RZB-NE+ZA=+-B22YVE

Forward foreign exchange contract
designated as hedging instruments
—RMB3,113,000 (2017: nil)

BE AT IANEH
SNESR - AR3,113,0007T
(Z2—t5: §)

Forward foreign exchange contract not
designated as hedging instruments
- RMB1,288,000 (2017: nil)

TET B TANRINE
AR- AR®1,288,0007T
(Z2—t5: &)

Forward foreign exchange contract not
designated as hedging instruments
- RMB35,179,000 (2017: nil)

MEE AP TAMERINE
AR— AR¥35,179,0007C
(Z2—t5: &)

Structured deposit
- RMB354,243,000 (2017: nil)
EREEER - AR%354,243,0007T
(Z2—t5F )

3 SREBREER®

d €mIAEZAVET=w)

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

DATEEH

Level 2
EpE

Level 2
EpE

Level 2
EpE

Level 3
ERE

HEAEREZRABE

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flow are estimated base on
forward exchange rate (from observable forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting date) and contracted
forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit
risk of the counterparty.

EMBRESTNE - ARBLRENBENEREEH
EX(REREHRNTEREHER) AR
EERR - BRURBEFANEERR
HILLRAEH o

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flow are estimated base on
forward exchange rate (from observable forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting date) and contracted
forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit
risk of the counterparty.

EMRESTE - ARBLRENBENEREEH
EX(REREHRNOTEREHER) AR
EERR  BRURBEFANEERR
HILLRAEH o

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flow are estimated base on
forward exchange rate (from observable forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting date) and contracted
forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit
risk of the counterparty.

EMRESTNE - ARBLRENBENHEREEH
EX(REREHANTEREHER) RaRE
HFE - BRIRMEFAOEERRK
L& BEE o

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flow are estimated base
on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate that
reflects the expected return rates ranged from 2.4% to
3.9%. The higher the expected return rate, the higher the
fair value.

EMBRESTNE - ARBERENBREENEE
b5t BRI RMEHEREA L ZER (N T
24%%39%) - BEEREME - ATEYS -
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Financial assets
SHEE

Financial assets at
fair value through OCl
WA BEHZE
FAEMEE
WEmemEE

Financial assets at
fair value through P/L
AT EFEAHEY
TABRMEREE

Fair value as at
31 December 2018
R-BE-NF+-A=+—-HZA¥E

Notes receivables
—RMB3,955,287,000 (2017: ni)
U — AR ¥53,955,287,0007T

(ZF—+5F: &)

Equity interest in unlisted company with
no open market price guota
- RMB1,296,000 (2017: RMB1,455,800)
WERARTZRENIE LM ARRE
= — AR1,296,0007C
(ZZ—tF : AR%1,4558007T)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the year.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of current financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

3 sEEAEBEZEG

d €®RMIAEZAYET=@w)

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

DPESR

Level 3
R

Level 3
R

HEREREERARE

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flow are estimated base
on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate of 4.14%.
The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.

BHBRENE - AR RENRELNEE
A3 BRI R - BRERS - AT
{EHE -

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flow are estimated
base on expected volatility, discount for lack of
marketability (‘DLOM"), and discount rate. The higher the
expected volatility, the lower the fair value. The higher the
DLOM, the lower the fair value. The higher the discount
rate, the lower the fair value.

BHBRENE - ARESREDBEEHRE
(B Z s mBt AR ((RZ @ EaR]))
REBEEE - BEREEA - ATEWE - T
miEnAtAEES  ATEWE - BREES
AFEMIE o

FREREFE 2R 2 B R
BERR - REREMTIEHMER AR EHKATR

ZRBEHEENSRABENREERZEAY
(ELEES
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources 4 ERESTTHERGFTFITERERZZE

of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting
estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of
applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Estimation of the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in these assumptions and estimates could materially
affect the respective fair value of these financial assets.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates (note 3). The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward — looking estimates at the
balance sheet date. In making the judgement, management considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such
as actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of
customers, actual or expected significant adverse changes in business
and customers’ financial position. At every reporting date the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed by the Group’s management.

ERIR

REMTEMRAMB AR - MEFHERIEE
BER HREREFHRERERER - ERERNE
AR B S 5T BORES IR/ATTEFIET

lEt RA B SR EETTAE o k- HRIBEE L LR
REMRZRGE  BESEBAREEMREERE
BRBR NEEREFEMARREFHITAR -

S RbEE(RTON  THERHEAERE
ERERNSHBCRBIETAMEL - BRMBHRRK
R CREBRREATE -

MEENMERBEQHENG

k>
J30)

N

ANERTHEENSRMTANDFEFRBER
MEE - ARERBHENE RSB - WiEhE
RENRERPRETROBRE - ZFRE LM
MEBNBREYEZSEREENHERATE -

B 5 RIGRIER (AT RIE

REERBER QR R IR HEE R (M 5E3) A
RIEREFLEE - AREEBHE - RIEHLEHE
B - BRETALEERBERANAELER £
EHZ SRR IEERETENBABRRERH
B - WEHHIERR  BEREEETPEERENE
RATEREAED  EEREPUBIRANERK
FEMERTNEEHEASEBEBAEILEER - K
ERER  AEEEEECENELBRENRR
DITRIRE MR EE) -



EINREERMEBRN AR AR 201851

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGUS”) to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of goodwill at
31 December 2018 was RMB965,119,000 (2017: RMB345,768,000).
Further details are set out in note 19.

Estimated useful live and impairment of intangible assets

The intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over estimated
useful lives. The management assessed the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets annually. This estimate is based on the management’s
experience of the actual useful lives of the intangible assets with similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and actions of its competitors.

In addition, the management considers the potential impairment based
on the recoverable amount. The intangible assets with finite useful lives
are reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate
the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors that would indicate
potential impairment may include, but are not limited to, the significant
change in technology associated with the intangible assets. Determining
whether intangible assets is impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the CGUs to which intangible assets belong. The
recoverable amount of CGUs at the end of the Reporting Period is based
on the value in use calculation which requires the management of the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise.

Estimated useful lives and residual values of property
and plant and equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation charges for its items of property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the management’s experience of the actual useful
lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and actions of its competitors. The Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are less than previously estimated.
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of defined benefit pension obligation

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of pension obligations. Details of key assumptions and impact of
possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in note 36.

Estimation of provision

The Group makes provisions for product warranty (only assurance type),
onerous contracts and restructuring cost. Management estimates the
related provisions based on contract terms, available knowledge and past
experience. The Group recognises provisions to the extent that it has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and that the amount can be reliably estimated.

As for onerous contracts, the Group assessed at balance sheet date
on whether unavoidable costs of meeting contractual obligations have
exceeded the economic benefits expected to be received, and made
provision for these onerous contracts based on the estimated least net
cost of exiting from the contracts.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, and
prepaid leasehold land and land use right

As described in Note 3 above, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its property, plant and equipment, and prepaid lease payment for lands to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. Determining whether property, plant and equipment,
and prepaid lease payment for lands are impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value-in-use of the assets
and the fair value less costs of disposal. The value-in-use calculation
requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of the assets and from its ultimate disposal and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise.
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets is measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the Reporting Period. The Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Company received the High and New Technology Enterprise Certificates
(the “Technology Certificates”) and are entitled to preferential tax rate of
15% during the terms of respective Technology Certificates (see note 10
for details). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these entities
will be able to receive the renewed Technology Certificates and continue
to enjoy preferential tax treatments after the respective expiration dates,
and pass the required annual assessment to qualify for preferential tax
treatments, therefore the tax rates for measurement of deferred tax
assets of these entities are expected to be 15%. If the applicable tax rates
are higher than the expectation, changes in the deferred tax assets are
recognised in profit or loss as deferred tax income.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing, the applicable tax rates, and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details
are set out in note 24.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for under acquisition method.
The determination and allocation of fair values to the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed is based on various assumptions and
valuation methodologies requiring considerable management judgment.
The most significant variables in these valuations are discount rates, royalty
rate and attrition rate, as well as the assumptions and estimates used to
determine the cash inflows and outflows. The Group determines discount
rates to be used based on the risk inherent in the related activity’s current
business model and industry comparisons. Terminal values are based on
the expected life of assets and forecasted life cycle and forecasted cash
flows over that period. Although the Group believes that the assumptions
applied in the determination are reasonable based on information available
at the date of acquisition, actual results may differ from the forecasted
amounts and the difference could be material.
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5 Revenue

Year ended 31 December 2018
ZE-NF+-A=+—HILEE

Manufacture
of coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUEREME RESETIN st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR®T
Sales of auto parts BT HE - 17,658,657 17,658,657
Sales of hydraulic roof supports BB R HE 5,107,137 - 5,107,137
Revenue from steel and other e R Ha R E 5
materials trading ZUWA 2,052,719 86,294 2,139,013
Sales of spare parts for coal R 2 SHE
mining machinery 868,332 - 868,332
Sales of other coal mining equipment  EL{hEREL R 2 $HE 136,959 - 136,959
Other revenue E U A 101,632 - 101,632
8,266,779 17,744,951 26,011,730
Year ended 31 December 2017
BHE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HIEE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture
machinery of auto parts Total
SUES RN, RIERET Y #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTFT AREBTTT ARETTT
Sales of auto parts BT HE - 2,712,699 2,712,699
Sales of hydraulic roof supports BB HE 2,957,150 - 2,957,150
Revenue from steel and other R EMREAE S
materials trading ZUWA 1,034,462 76,566 1,111,028
Sales of spare parts for coal TR D (2 S
mining machinery 557,610 - 557,610
Sales of other coal mining equipment — EL{hEREL 55 2 $HE 144,138 - 144,138
Other revenue HAA 64,076 - 64,076
4,757,436 2,789,265 7,546,701
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Segment information

Information reported to the chief executive of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (CODM), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. Specifically, the Group’s reportable
segments under IFRS 8 are (i) manufacture of coal mining machinery;
and (i) manufacture of auto parts. No operating segments have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

CODM primarily uses a measure of segment net profit to assess the
performance of operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable and operating segments. The Group prepare the segment
reporting for net profit excluding the impact of a) impairment of goodwill b)
interest expense of redemption liabilities and c) central expense in relation
to acquisition expenses. All of these 3 items are related to manufacture of
auto parts segment.
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i E PSR AR Y EE

—N\F+tZA=+—HLFE

6 oHER@E

Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
BUERESRE RESETIM #5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARBT T
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-N\F
T=ZA=+—HLEE
Segment revenue D EBUA 8,266,779 17,744,951 26,011,730
Segment net profit excluding DECFEFE - K@?ﬁ
impairment of goodwill, interest EEEAER
expense of redemption liabilities a&ENEH 35 )53
and central expense in relation to W EEBRA R E
acquisition expenses. 893,600 245,254 1,138,854
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZE—+t4F
+-A=+—HIEE
Segment revenue D aBUA 4,757,436 2,789,265 7,546,701
Segment net profit SESEF)E 335,254 207,001 542,255
As of 31 December
BE+-H=t—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Segment revenue and consolidated revenue DEB AR EEE A 26,011,730 7,546,701
Segment net profit excluding impairment of goodwill, DECERE - TRIERERE -
interest expense of redemption liabilities and S & &R SR R
central expense in relation to acquisition expenses. AR E A 1,138,854 542,255
Impairment of goodwill EERE (109,125) -
Interest expense on redemption liabilities EEEENEMAXZ (90,821) -
Central expense in relation to the acquisition U g MRS & = (202,099)
Consolidated profit for the year FERLEE 938,908 340,160

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable and operating segments. The Group prepare the segment
reporting for total assets and liabilities, excluding the impact of a)
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary, b) goodwill, c) redemption
liabilities and d) payables in relation to the acquisition. All of 4 items are

related to manufacture of auto parts segment.
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6 DIER@E

—N\FtZA=t—RLFE

At 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
SEGMENT ASSETS DHEEE
Manufacture of coal mining machinery BUE R 14,518,380 11,125,351
Manufacture of auto parts RIS R E T IR 12,636,583 4,634,584
Total segment assets excluding prepayment for DEEEMERE - Wgﬁqyﬁg
acquisition of a subsidiary —EM B A BRI TR T 27,154,963 15,759,935
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary UeEE—RIH B A ETE‘EH?XIE = 3,345,626
Goodwill Sl 853,808 345,768
Consolidated assets REEE 28,008,771 19,451,329
SEGMENT LIABILITIES pan:i =Rt
Manufacture of coal mining machinery B TR 6,415,742 4,944,718
Manufacture of auto parts Bl R B T IR 8,124,264 1,661,998
Total segment liabilities excluding redemption liabilities DEBELLRE  TEEED
and payables in relation to the acquisition BEEEBWENENZIE 14,540,006 6,606,716
Redemption liabilities EOaE 1,177,921 1,066,617
Payables in relation to the acquisition B ERENRIE - 202,689
Consolidated liabilities me8E 15,717,927 7,876,022
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6 Segment information (continued) 6 oEER@®
Geographical information Hbig &
The analysis of revenue by geographical location of customers is as WARREPHER ST -
follows:

2018 2017
Sl = F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
The PRC =8 14,830,433 7,183,622
Germany == 5,507,551 -
Other countries EMBER 5,673,746 363,079
26,011,730 7,546,701
The analysis of investment in associates and joint ventures accounted DEZREABRRBE NG RALEDENRE  IBR
for by the equity method, and additions to non-current assets other than PEE(CRITAKREHIBEEERIN) - HHIEM
financial instruments, deferred tax assets, net defined benefit assets by BEHWATRMNEEFENRESTOT ¢

geographical location is as follows:

2018
—E-N\F
The PRC Germany  Other countries

i) =E HitE=x
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®ETR AR®T R

Investment in associates and LA 2 A A BR AR E A A)

joint ventures accounted for EREDEMNRE

by the equity method 433,478 - -
Non—current assets other than financial JERENIEE (2 Fl T A&

instruments, deferred tax assets BEERIBE ERRIN) 1,758,040 2,732,006 2,588,664

2,191,518 2,732,006 2,588,664

Majority of the assets are operated in China in 2017. RZE—LF  KEHEEEHBIZE -
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6 Segment information (Continued) 6 oEHER®E
Information about major customers FERPER
The following illustrates the revenue from customers which contributing ITBRRERP BEARE B AU AFEE10%H 4
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group: A
2018 2017
—B-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Customer A ZEA 3,348,294 AN FANA
Note (a): The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total BT (a) : FEFEUL LG 2 B 4R U0 A iR HB10% o
revenue of the Group.
7 Other income 7 Huug A
pik 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Government grants (note) BT E (MEE) 52,132 33,902
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term receivables  $R77772k « & HifE W R IEFN
and finance lease receivables BhE A B FEYGRIE 2 F B A 53,928 65,072
Interest income on debt investment BEBEE ZFBIA - 13,142
106,060 112,116

Note: Government grants mainly represent government grants received from the
local government for compensation of research and development expenses
incurred, and in respect of construction of the Group’s new plant, which are
transferred from deferred income to profit or loss when related expenses
incurred or over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

M BR#BEIEEREEMEENEERARAAS
BT T B 4 77 BURF R ERA B B - 2
HERXELRREREERBHREREEA
AR -
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8 Other gains and losses 8 HW=ERERE
2018 2017
ZB-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value HENAFEFEBEE
through profit or loss FFAEEz emEERE 3,041 -
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BENREFEUAR
equipment, and intangible assets EREER (&) 1,978 (5,883)
Net fair value loss on derivative PTEEMITARTEBIEFHA
financial instruments (25,948) -
Net foreign exchange losses [E 2618 (40,473) (70,789)
Impairment of goodwill (note 19) EERE (FIFE19) (109,125) -
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale investment & —IE 7] it H & 7 188wk Es - 2,730
Others H (3,976) (11,318)
(174,503) (85,260)
9 Finance costs
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Interests on bank borrowings IRITERAOFE 113,567 39,681
Interests on redemption liabilities EE aEnF e 106,848 -
220,415 39,681
10 Income tax expense 10 FRSHAX
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Current income tax BIERFTIS % 387,377 95,473
Deferred income tax EEFTSHL (37,547) (12,607)
349,830 82,866
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10 Fr88ix(#)

10 Income tax expense (Continued)

(@)

PRC corporate income tax

The corporate income tax (“CIT”) is calculated based on the statutory
profit of subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and the applicable
tax rate in accordance with the PRC tax laws and regulations, after
adjustments on certain income and expense items, which are not
assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

In accordance with the PRC tax laws, standard corporate income
tax rate is 25%. Certain subsidiaries are qualified for new/high-
tech technology enterprises status or Chinese western development
enterprises status and enjoyed preferential income tax rate of 15%
during the year.

Germany profits tax

Applicable profit tax rate of Germany is 29%. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, no profit tax has been provided due to
accumulated losses (2017:Nil).

Others

Applicable profit tax rates of the Group’s other subsidiaries are
between 9% and 34.94%, for the year ended 31 December 2018.

)

REREMED

R (T RERMEN ) RREHERHK
ERERE NP BEEMAK LA B R RHEE
EMBBERRERETERES - B RAEHR
s BAFHKT A HBAE TR B (FH
BTG -

RIBREIRE - REDEEHER25% ° &
DHBEARNERHEIMEEER P ETEE
AABLEER  REAZIEBEREHE
B 7%15% ©

BRI

EEERN RSB ER20% RBE-T—)\
F+-A=+—BILFE - mRREBERG
RSB (=2 —tF B

HAth
REE-F-\FT-A=+—RALEE &

EEHMMNBARERNFISRENTI%E
34.94% 2 f& o

2018 2017
—B-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Profit before tax PR A v A 1,288,738 423,026
Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate of 15% zrh Bl 2 FT{5 R R 15%:51 & 2~
T8 193,311 63,454
Tax effect of share of result of associates and FEIGEE AN TS G RSN
joint ventures s E 6,560 (3,493)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose /BRI 2 Fi T 522 (26,893) -
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible TR 2 g2
or tax purpose 51,697 1,752
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary differences kiR IB/E 18 N2 s =58 2
not recognised Mg 105,589 47,649
Utilisation of tax losses and temporary differences 1| FB 5 BT R FEsR i TH 5 18 &
previously not recognised S RE (4,966) (6,419
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries B AT TR E w2 76,143 (9,812
Additional deduction for qualified research and ~ ZBAMNOR A 1R E IR RI L
development expenses (53,254) (13,973)
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (RRERE),BET R (7,906) 3,455
Effect of change in tax rate during the year FRHEES) 9,549 253
349,830 82,866

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 24.

FRRETR IR IR E NI EE24
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11 Expense by nature

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Raw material costs R B AN 17,099,619 4,934,161
Employee benefits expenses (including directors) EERAAZ(BREES) 3,755,210 1,000,590
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment ME - BEMREITE 796,019 249,275
Service Fee IS %= 361,993 280,576
Freight charge BEE 319,416 190,678
Amortisation of intangible assets A R 175,048 54,689
Tax and surcharges IE R M e B 103,380 70,366
Rental e 85,786 8,118
Release of prepaid lease payments FENAEFRIERED 12,728 12,275
Auditors’ remuneration ZEATEN & 21,020 7,410
— Audit service —BZRT 6,120 5,510

— Audit of overseas subsidiaries —FINIE R R EIZIRTS 7,800 -

— Other audit related service — Bt Az AR R RS 1,000 -

— Non-audit services —FEBEZRTE 6,100 1,900
Depreciation for investment properties REMEINE 1,589 1,689
Others Hith 1,705,539 464,722
24,437,347 7,274,449
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12 EX RETHRAEBRESZ#HE

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’

remuneration

Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as follows:

REBEAZ ETRARARUEPIRE 2 FRNEE R

EEMemT

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-E2-\F+-A=1t-HLFE

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement
and other incentive benefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments  contributions fee Total
H5&-I% ERR RINER
REMEN AHHEs STEIHR =N @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT AR¥ETRT ARETRT AR%TRT AR%TR
Executive directors: BHTEE
Mr. Jiao Chengyao (notes 1, 2) EEELE (I 2) 529 685 87 - 1,301
Mr. Jia Hao Ediyes 2,431 1,782 50 - 4,263
Mr. Xiang Jiayu RRWELE 530 685 87 - 1,302
Mr. Fu Zugang AR EE 584 724 14 - 1,449
Mr. Wang Xinying (note 2) T4 %4 (M) = - - - -
Mr. Wang Bin TELE 2,442 1,619 55 - 4,116
Mr. Zhang Haibin ROEM LA 420 500 111 - 1,031
Mr. Guo Haofeng HRELE
(resigned in Feb 2018) (R=—Z—)\E-FE) 78 82 2 - 184
Sub-total S 7,014 6,077 555 - 13,646

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company

and the Group.

BRARTEEME IR BEH AR A RAEEER

ZERMRRZRE M AT o

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-2-\E+-A=t-ALEE

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement
and other incentive benefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments  contributions fee Total
H& 18 BRA BHREF
REMER  AfHnRe HEGE -tk @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AR¥TR AR%ETR AR¥ETR AR%ETR
Independent non-executive directors: B TTEE -
Ms. Liu Yao Y=L+ - - - 158 158
Mr. Jiang Hua TELE - - - 140 140
Mr. Li Xudong B - - - 140 140
Sub-total et - - - 438 438

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were
paid for their services as directors of the Company.

LB IERTEEME IR R EFREEARBIZE

=Rt RIEM AT o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

— =

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12 EE - BETRAEBREEZME 5
remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B2-Z-\F+-A=t+-HLEFE
Salary, wages  Performance Retirement
and other incentive benefit scheme Directors’

benefits payments  contributions fee Total
He I8 BERA RINER
REMERN  #HHHES AT EIfR EEne @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR%Tx AR%¥Tx AR%¥Tx AR%Tx

Supervisors: o
Mr. Liu Qiang Seg 384 482 68 - 934
Mr. Cui Leilei ERERE 307 165 64 - 536
Mr. Ni Wei Ve 1,446 780 55 - 2,281
Mr. Zhang Yichen RAIRTE 275 154 38 - 467
Mr. Yuan Shaochong e 185 286 55 - 526
Mr. Wang Yue TREE - - - - -
Mr. Zhou Rong |EEFa 375 487 52 - 914
Mr. Ni Heping (AL

(resigned in Feb 2018) (RZE-N\F_REHE) 53 64 15 - 132
Ms. Xu Mingkai BeAg Lt

(resigned in Feb 2018) (R \FZ_REMT) 28 32 6 - 66
Mr. Zhang Zhigiang RERTE

(resigned in Feb 2018) (RZE-NF_RFHT) 3 18 3 - 24
Mr. Zhang Jun RELE

(resigned in Feb 2018) (RZE-NF_RFHT) 2 36 7 - 75
Mr. Li Chongging FERERE

(resigned in Feb 2018) (R=ZF—N\FZREHT) 33 pl! 19 - 76
Mr. Liu Fuying ANERE

(resigned in Feb 2018) (R=ZF—N\FZREHT) 49 72 16 - 137
Sub-total et 3,170 2,600 308 - 6,168

Total et 10,184 8,677 953 438 20,252
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’

remuneration (Continued)

1285 K

BITHRAEREEME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z 5T A=T—RILFE

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’
henefits payments contributions fee Total
e IE BRI RIKEER
REMEF BN STEIfER EEvien o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors: BiTEE
Mr Jiao Chengyao (notes 1, 2) FAERAE(E - 2) - - - - -
Mr Xiang Jiayu BEG %S 378 114 97 - 589
Mr Wang Xinying (note 2) Fare g (i) 68 - 80 - 148
Mr Liu Qiang Dlea ki 299 76 65 - 440
Mr Guo Haofeng BRELE 347 290 114 - 751
Sub-total e 1,092 480 356 - 1,928

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company

and the Group.

LR ITEEME IR EFE AR R B RAEEER
ZERMERHZ RIS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 tFt-A=t-ALFE

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’
bengfits payments contributions fee Total
¢ 1B HRR RINER
REMET] bElipesn BEG5 EEikn et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Independent non-executive directors: B IR 7TEE
Ms Liu Yao Y=L+ - - - 161 161
Mr Jiang Hua STEES A - - - 140 140
Mr Li Xudong ES RS - - - 140 140
Mr Wu Guangming REeBEE
(resigned in July 2017) (RZZ—tFtAET) - - - 140 140
Sub-total Nt - - - 581 581
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’

remuneration (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were
paid for their services as directors of the Company

12 E - BETRABRESEME @)

PRBIIFRATEFWS IR ERERARCE
Eifmeft 2 lR% s+

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+F+-A=1-BIFE

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments contributions fee Total
He IR BRA RINEF
REAEF] xSl HE 5 EEMS st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Supervisors: 2%
Mr Ni Heping RRMFRE 351 226 92 - 669
Ms Xu Mingkai Gl L 265 2 41 - 328
Mr Zhang Zhigiang REBRLE 118 - 20 - 138
Mr. Zhang Jun RELE 274 30 41 - 345
Mr Li Chongging TEERAE 283 - 74 - 357
Mr Liu Fuying ARELEE 350 194 9 - 635
Mr Zhou Rong BA&EE 327 33 49 - 409
Sub-total et 1,968 505 408 - 2,881
Total Bt 3,060 985 764 581 5,390

The supervisors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

Note 1: Mr Jiao Chengyao is also the chief executive of the Company and his
emolument for the role as chief executive is also included above.

Note 2: All or partial of these directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2018 were borne by the parent of the Company.

The performance incentive payment is mainly determined on the basis
of the Group’s and individual performance for years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017, respectively.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors or supervisors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office in the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. None
of the directors or supervisors has waived any remuneration in the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

PREEHE IRREHARRIAKEEHCE
iRz RIS AT o

Ml AR ETRAARARNRSITRAL - MEE
EREITRABNHFMITE A LR EA -

M2 BE—Z— N\F+_A=Zt+—RALFENMESR
BOEEMNEARARR A RARE -

HRREMNES T ERAEERERAESRIR
HE_Z-N\ER_ZT—+F+_A=+—HIF
BZRREE °

BEZZ—)\FRZFE—tF+=ZA=1+—HILEF
B AEEVENESIESINEAME - EA
EBEsk AN B AL ER 2 AR BERAEE - HE
- N\FRIE—+HFFTA=+—HLFE -
WEEENEEHETWINE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

13 Employees’ Remuneration

Of the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the Group,
four (2017: None) was directors or supervisor of the Company whose
remuneration is included in the disclosures in note 12 above. The
remuneration of the remaining one individuals (2017: five) was as follows:

13 EEME

AEBEREZRRFALZY  OR(ZF—LF:
B)RARBERHES  RENMEFBR LX
BIEH12RE c R T —R(ZF—+F : AR)ALH

BT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits TEREMBEF 1,724 1,799
Performance related incentive payments RIS 504 2,780
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRIRREFIFT B3R 51 611
2,279 5,190

The number of five highest paid individuals whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

MENFTIBEzAEESHATHBELT

2018 2017

—=E-N\F —T—+F

[ [VRGTGET TSI No. of employees

EE®E EEHE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7c 21,500,000/ 7T - 5
HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 3 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 3,000,0017%8 7T 25,000,000/ 7T 2 -
5 5

231



232

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE
14 Dividends 14 RE
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETF T
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year FRERDRATRE
— 2017 Final (RMBO0.050 per share) —ZZE—tFRB(ERARE0.050T) 86,623 -
— 2016 Final (RMB0.011 per share) —ZE—NFRE(SRARE0.0117T) = 19,057

86,623 19,067

Subsequent to the end of the Reporting Period, a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2018 of RMB0.145 per share (2017: final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 of RMB0.05
per share) in an aggregated amount of RMB251,208,348.65 has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

15 Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

15

WMEHKRE  ARREZCREMRBEE_ZT—N
FH+ZA=-+-HLEFERNAEREETRAR
BT (ZE—+F i E_FT—tF+=
A=+—BLEFERNKHREFHRAREE0OS
JT) - #A%E A A RH5251,208,348.657T © BIEFERERN
FESERFEF KRG - HAIMER -

FRABF
ARARRFEAE N FREARBRMRA TR -

2018 2017
—B-N\EF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Earning for the purpose of basic and MEREARBEERNME

diluted earnings per share (profit for the year ZBF (AR RREEEFREH)

attributable to owners of the Company) 832,344 284,250
Weighted average number of ordinary shares MEREARNTE 2

for the purpose of basic earnings per share LmAR e T8 1,732,471,370 1,704,634,000
Earnings per share (RMB cents) SRATN (ARESD) 48.04 16.67

The diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 as the Company
did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. Please also refer to note 43 for the
consideration of redemption liabilities in the calculation of earnings per
share.

HREE— T N\Er_FT—+F+-_A=+—H
EFEARRRHEAMNEETRETEEEERD
LTER - WEE - N\FEkZT—tF+=A
=+ —HLEFENERESRFEGRERZFIHA
[ - BEGTESRENNER S ERE - TE26
B5E43 o
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16 W% - WERRE

16 Property, plant and equipment

Plant and Motor Other  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles ~ equipment in progress Total
BT HBERMSE HE  HteRféE EERIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR%®TT AREBTT ARETT ARETT
COST B
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—t5—H—H 1,108,290 922,414 30,734 85,114 32,088 2,178,640
Additions NE 18,396 199,311 11,103 11,078 162,747 402,635
Transfer 23 951 124,067 - - (125,018) -
Disposals HE (5,774) (123,250 (6,043) (6,138) - (141,205)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  UxB&BHE 2 B (F3T43)
(note 43) 347,435 789,376 8,218 8,004 55,348 1,208,381
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+H+-F=+—H 1469298 1,911,918 44,012 98,058 125165 3,648,451
Addition NE 29,144 213,832 4,440 194,704 433,838 875,958
Transfer 23 15,351 343,755 2,616 119,065 (480,787) -
Disposals HE (24,640) (116,668) (3,849 (62,743) (11,527) (219,427
Acquisition of subsidiaries IEHB AR
(note 43) (P15E43) 11,782 1,234,876 - 381,252 452,102 2,180,012
Transfer to investment ERRRENE
property (note 18) (PFr3E18) (107,976) - - - - (107,976)
Currency exchange Bl (418) 8,955 - (14,898) 4,907 (1,454)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-\E+-A=+—H 1492541 3,596,668 47,219 715,438 523,698 6,375,564
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZFHFE
At1 January 2017 R-_E—+F—HA—H 200,487 483,838 25,930 77,599 - 787,854
Provided for the year FNEE 51,622 184,137 8,283 5,233 - 249,275
Elimination on disposals HER (2,821) (89,299) (5,124) (5,567) - (102,811)
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tF+ZA=1—H 249,288 578,676 29,089 77,265 - 934,318
Provided for the year FNEE 64,648 462,435 4,778 264,158 - 796,019
Elimination on disposals HER (9,976) (99,524) (3,391) (47,877) - (160,768)
Transfer to investment ERREENE(H8)
property (note 18) (23,612 - - - - (23,612
Currency exchange G 702 (28,073) - (8,335) - (35,706)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F+ZA=1—H 281,050 913,514 30,476 285,211 - 1,510,251
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+HF+-/F=+—H 1220010 1,333,242 14,923 20,793 125165 2,714,133
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-\E+=ZRA=+—H 1211491 2,683,154 16,743 430,227 523,698 4,865,313

The Group was in process of obtaining the relevant property ownership
certificates for buildings with a net book value of RMB81,138,000 as at 31
December 2018 (2017: RMB30,876,000). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the relevant property ownership certificates can be
obtained in due time without incurring significant costs.

AEBDHGFERR-_Z—\F+_A=+—HE
MmFEAARES1,138,000( —E—+F : AR
30,876,0007T ) FIEFIHBAM E B SR - ARAEIE
ERBAERERSHEBYEMERER  MTEEL
BEAKA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16 ¥ - BERRE®
The Group has pledged property, plant and equipment with a net book RZZE-—N\F+ZA=1+—H0  AKECEHE
value of approximately RMB142,942,000 as at 31 December 2018 (31 EEELANRE142,942,0000 (- B —+F+— A
December 2017: RMB108,447,000) to secure banking facilities granted to =1+—H : AR¥108,447,00070) 2 W% - BE K&
the Group. B AAEEERARITRIE AR o

17 Leasehold land and land use rights 17 HE TR T b fE ARE

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Analysed for the reporting purpose as: MERMBEOITHET
Current portion mENEL D = 11,551
Non-current portion FEMENEL 440,964 508,559
440,964 520,110
Land use rights
=+ i fE R
RMB’000
ARETT
CoST A
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+E+=-A=+—H 598,752
Addition NE 618
Transfer to investment property (note 18) BB EIE Y (MIFE18) (77,200)
At 31 December 2018 R \F+=ZA=+—H 522,170
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION -Gt
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=+—H 78,642
Addition NE 12,728
Transfer to investment property (note 18) SR E Y2 (BI3E18) (10,164)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+ZA=1+—H 81,206
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=+—H 520,110
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—\F+=ZA=+—H 440,964
The Group has obtained all relevant land use right certificates for the AREERB_F-N\FER-_F—tF+A
leasehold land as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. =+ —BMAMRE T+ E R -
The Group has pledged leasehold land with a net book value of R=ZF-\FT=A=+—H  AREEHFE
approximately RMB79,340,100 as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 3B #) AR 79,3401007T (= — L5+ = A
2017: RMB48,460,000) to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. =+—8 : AK®48,460,0007T) 2 HE L - 1R

REEBEWRITRENER -
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18 REWHE

leasehold land

and land
Buildings use rights Total
HEL K
BF T b fE FARE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T AREETIT
COoSsT R
At 1 January 2017 and RZZE—tF—A—AK
31 December 2017 —E—+Ft+=-A=+—8 50,179 - 50,179
Transfer in from property, plantand ~ B¥%¥ - BE&
equipment (note 16) HfEeE A (PrE16) 107,976 - 107,976
Transfer in from property, leasehold B -  HELH
land and land use rights (note 17) N At PR s A (FI3E17) - 77,200 77,200
At 31 December 2018 R-_Z—)\F+=-A=+—H 158,155 77,200 235,355
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2017 R-ZTE—+F—HA—H 4,581 - 4,581
Provided for the year FNEE 1,589 - 1,589
At 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+E+-_A=+—H 6,170 - 6,170
Transfer in from property, plant and BYE  BEKL
equipment (note 16) BGEUNGIERD) 23,612 - 23,612
Transfer in from property, leasehold B  HELTHK
land and land use rights (note 17) Tt FARESE A (BRE17) - 10,164 10,164
Provided for the year FE N 1,589 - 1,589
At 31 December 2018 R \F+=—A=+—H 31,371 10,164 41,535
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2017 WN-_ZE—+FE+-A=+—H 44,009 - 44,009
At 31 December 2018 R-E—)\F+=—A=+—H 126,784 67,036 193,820

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was RMB218,875,000 (2017: RMB58,250,000). The fair value
has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by the management
of the Company. The fair value was determined based on the direct
comparison approach, which the directors of the Company are of the view
that it is the best estimate of the fair value of these investment properties.
The direct comparison approach reflects recent transaction prices or
current asking prices for similar properties. In estimating the fair value of
the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current

use.

R-T—N\F+_A=1+—8 KEBEREMED
N EBARE218875000T(ZE—+F : AR
#58,250,00070) ° ZAFEEBBEARTEIREE
HEEESE - 22 TESBRBEERLEAHES
- ARBEZR AN NEEREREMENAT
EMSERE - ERLEBUARMIEUMENTAR
SERKERHRE - MEEMEZATFER - H
HERBABESS MEARERR -

235



236

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERAR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

18 BEWHE ()

18 Investment properties (Continued)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Investment properties located in Zhengzhou, the PRC

(LA BIEB M IR E W) 5

RIB-N\F+ZR=+—H TEENKREWX
MEBRFESFEOFBNT

Fair value as at
31 December
2018
R-E—N\F

Level 3

+=A=+—-AH
HWATE
RMB’000
AR®TR

F3R
RMB’000

AR¥T T

218,875 218,875

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Land use right 2%
Buildings 2.71%-3.17%

All the buildings are located in the PRC. The Group had not obtained
the relevant property certificates for buildings with a net book value of
RMB4,478,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB4,840,000). In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant property ownership
certificates can be obtained in due time without incurring significant costs.

19 Goodwill

The Group carries out its annual impairment test on goodwill by comparing
the recoverable amounts of cash generating unit (“CGU”) to the carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount of a CGU was determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations used pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period with a terminal value related to the future cash flows
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below beyond
the five-year period. The accuracy and reliability of the information is
reasonably assured by the appropriate budgeting, forecast and control
process established by the Group. The management leveraged their
extensive experiences in the industries and provided forecast based on
past performance and their expectation of future business plans and
market developments.

19

FAEE AN H R -

B ERA R R R R A EE O E AT
- RAEERDT

b {5 FA A 2%
BF 2.71%%3.17%

FIEEFHIURPEIEN - AEEHKRERR_-F
—N\F+ZA=+—HBEMFEAARE4478,000
T(—EB—+5 : AR¥4,840,0007T) VI FEEY
EFTEHEE - ARAESBRA - ALENEIUERE
EFTEEEM T BREARRA

e

AEEEBLEReELEM([REEEFEM )R
FREEHHEBETFERENR - REELFEMA
RS EREEBEENE - ZFFTEEBIREE
32 E FTHL /& RO R E DL IR OB IR EAS H MORR TR
AIRERETRA - MEZRIRESREFFNRE
BEAZEAT XM OFHERGERERE
H o ZERERE LA FESIAKESIENE
EEE  RARZESIRFNAERE - BEEER
TRENSETELR  URBBERBERKRES
Xt B RSB RERATRRME TR -
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19 Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)
identified. The following is a summary of goodwill allocation for each CGUSs:

Opening

F14

Year ended 31 December, 2018 RMB’000
BE-Z-N\%

t-A=+-ALEE AR¥T T

ASIMCO Camshaft (Yizheng) Co., Ltd.  Zo# R} amEh (EAF) BIR AR

19 &)

BENEEASEDBRINRCELEM - TR
ERTELBUNEIRME

Currency
translation
Addition Impairment difference Closing
L
nE HE BEER X
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT  ARBTRT ARETR  ARETR

("ASIMCO Camshaft”) ([TaFrRtCReh ) 22,552 S (22,552) - -
ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd.  ZasrRIBIE & (1L 7)) B IR

(Shanxi) (*ASIMCO Shanxi" A ) 104,516 - - - 104,516
Hubei Super Electric Auto Motor Co., Ltd. it i#E 58 EH AR

(“Super Electric’) AR(HE)) 43,844 = = - 43,844
ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring BITHNEREERER

(Yizheng) Co., Ltd. (*ASIMCO AR([EHRER])

Shuanghuan”) 88,283 - - - 88,283
ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd.  Za¥ffRlg R EIREIEMT (L)

(Anhui) (*ASIMCO NVH") BRAR([ZHENH]) 86,573 S (86,573) - -
SEG SEG - 613,626 - 3,539 617,165

345,768 613,626 (109,125) 3,539 853,808

Impairment review on the goodwill of the Group has been conducted
by management as at 31 December, 2017 and 2018, according to IAS
36 “Impairment of assets”. For the purposes of impairment review, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. The value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections
based on business plan for the purpose of impairment reviews covering a
5-year period. After taking into consideration the competition in the market
of the products of ASIMCO Camshatft (Yizheng) Co., Ltd and ASIMCO NVH
Technologies Co., Ltd., the Group has adjusted down the forecast and their
cash flow projection. Accordingly, an impairment of RMB 109 million has
been provided for the goodwill.

EREEN_Z—tFR_ZT—\F+-A=1+—H
RAR R S5 ERISE 365 EERE Y AL B mE
EITRER - BURERIME - BENTTRES
EIRBFEAGBENEET - MRS AFHHENRE
BEWME  FREETEEAENERTENES
METER o Lat REFEH B (EE) AR AR &
DIENRE RIRE T (2R AR A RNERT S
BE - AEBEEBEARERSRETBATHE -
I EREEHEREARBEI09E5E T -
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19 Goodwill (Continued) 19 BE )
The key assumptions and discount rate used in the significant CGU value- BEARCEEBUGAEETETFTABRRE
in-use calculations are as follows: BRIRZE AT
As at 31 December, 2018 R-ZE-N\FE+=ZA=+—H
Revenue Gross
growth rate profit rate
(%) (%) Discount rate
WA 18 R 2 (%) ERIE(%) R &
ASIMCO Camshaft o TR R B 0% - 3.5% 29% - 33% 14.95%
ASIMCO Shanxi TEFTRhLEE (15%) - 3% 22% - 24% 15.58%
Super Electric 1HE (9%) - 0% 24% - 25% 15.58%
ASIMCO Shuanghuan TRRTRIEER 0% - 5% 35% - 37% 15.58%
ASIMCO NVH ZEETEINVH 0% - 15% 19% - 20% 14.71%
SEG SEG 2% - 9% 15% - 17% 16.20%
The budgeted gross margins used in the goodwill impairment testing, AR EREAENEEENEHEREREBE
were determined by management based on past performance and its REREHTISEROTBERE - BB AERE
expectation for market development. The expected revenue growth rate RENFKBARARSENFESETE o AR XM
and gross profit rates are following the business plan approved by the HREREE LR TERERR TS o

Company. Discount rates reflect market assessments of the time value and
the specific risks relating to the industry.
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20 Intangible assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

20 BLEE

Development Patent Customer
Trademark Software costs right  Relationship Total
[:]:3 B BB MA =P EFER @t
CoST A

At1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—HA—H - 16,529 - - - 16,529
Additions = - 2,148 - - - 2,148
Acquisition of subsidiaries YEEMB R A 77,860 123 - 265,504 265,293 608,780
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=+—H 77,860 18,800 - 265,504 265,293 627,457

Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHRB AT
(note 43) GETY) - 104,157 46,213 337,992 311,327 799,689
Additions RNE - 18,568 379,300 12,787 - 410,655
Disposal & - (1,194) - - - (1,194
Currency exchange {3781 - 780 (19,076) 2,048 1,796 (14,452)

At 31 December 2018

R_E-N\F+-A=1-H

77,860 141,11 406,437 618,331 578,416 1,822,195

AMORTISATION B
At1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—f—H - 14,269 - - - 14,269
Charge for the year FRMB 6,187 1,208 - 25,186 22,108 54,689
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tF+-A=+—H 6,187 15,477 - 25,186 22,108 68,958
Charge for the year ERNHRB 15,672 31,400 - 72,948 55,028 175,048
Disposal HE - (1,170) - - - (1,170)
Currency exchange BB - 258 - 291 157 706
At 31 December 2018 R-Z—-\F+-A=1+—H 21,859 45,965 - 98,425 77,293 243,542
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+=-A=1+—H 71,673 3,323 - 240,318 243,185 558,499
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+=ZA=+—H 56,001 95,146 406,437 519,906 501,123 1,578,613
Total research and development expense incurred during 2018 was RZE- N\FEENBMERINAEARE
approximately RMB1,410,072,000, among which RMB379,300,000 1,410,072,0007T - AR BE BT HEHRMEBE A
related to auto parts technology project has been capitalised as R #379,300,0007 T E AL AFZEKA - RZZ—/\
development costs. As at 31 December 2018, related development F+ZA=+—H ' \BEMZIEE E1#T -

projects were in progress.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE
21 Investments in associates 21 RBtERRIZRE

2018 2017
—E-N\F =T tfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT

Cost of investments in unlisted associates RIEETHE AT 2R ER A 381,972 381,972
Share of post-acquisition profits and DEUEE1E ST R E A 2 RS -
other comprehensive income, R B WA B
net of dividends received 11,500 67,117
393,472 449,089
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had interests in the RZB—-)\FR_ZE—+F+-_A=+—H A%
following associates: BERUTEEAREEER
Proportion of
Place of nominal value Proportion of
Name of entity registration of registered capital voting power held Principal activities
ERZH it hEMERHEELH ERBERAELH TEEK
2018 2017 2018 2017
TE-\E gl —T-\F ekl
BNERRER T REERAT The PRC 31.48% 31.48% 31.48% 31.48%  Aftermarket services
ZMJ Suda Parts and Services Co., Ltd. o ERRHB
EH (LF) REREESERRA The PRC 49.18% 49.18% 49.18% 49.18%  Equity investment and
Hua Xuan (Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd. H financial management
BARE REBEE
RETHEABENERAR The PRC 47.5% 47.5% 47.5% 47.5%  Manufacture of mining
Heilongjiang Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd. e machinery
ERBERRE AR A ([ EEEEY ) The PRC 22,6% 22.6% 22.6% 22.6%  Manufacture of mining
Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. (‘ZMJ Shun L")~ & machinery
The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of FREVN RN T ESRAAEEHRNERXESNEERAR
the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of BAFEBOEE AT - ARTEERAMFYEA
the Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the B AT BEFEERERNERBE -

directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.
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21 Investments in associates (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates th
individually significant

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

21 REEERT2RE (&)
BRI s W R"EAZEE NR4GEaE

NN
N

at are not

2018 2017
—B-N\E —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
The Group’s share of (loss)/profit REEE(EE),5F (49,642) 18,399
The Group’s share of other comprehensive income 7%= & 95 E th 2 E W & - 22,730
The Group’s share of total comprehensive AeE@NE2mE (), WAL
(expense)/income (49,642) 41,129
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests AN [E A2 SH & N FIHER 2
in these associates HEmEEEARE 393,472 449,089
22 Investments in a joint venture 2 R—EEeEL¥RE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Cost of investments in unlisted joint venture RN—EEELEZRE 27,906 27,906
Share of post-acquisition profits and other PEUREE S ST & i 2 mE ks -
comprehensive income, net of dividends received 1Bk 2 Uk f% 2 12,100 6,193
40,006 34,099
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had interest in the following joint RZZE—N\FF+ZA=F+—8 *EBRUTEE
venture: ERAER
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of Proportion of
Name of entity registration registered capital voting power held Principal activities
ERZH it fhEMEREELA ERERARELH FEER
2018 2017 2018 2017
U T tF el — T +F
BUEARTHRM RS EEERAR The PRC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%  Manufacture of
NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing e auto-parts
(Yizheng) Co., Ltd KEABTHNF

NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. is a joint

venture of ASIMCO Shuanghuan that was acquired by the
2017.

Group in March
i o

BIALRREMBI R S REBR AR RRHTIE
RNAEDE  REAAKER-_FT—tF=A%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —N\F+-_A=+—HIFE
23 Financial asset at fair value through profit or UAFEFEEHSEH T ABENE
loss/Financial asset at fair value through other MEE AR EFEAESETA
comprehensive income/Available-for-sale Htt2MWENESMEE A HEE
investments/Other financial assets RE HtEMEE
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at fair value ~ &S E MR AES (R A FE) - 49,124
Unlisted equity securities JEEMBRAZS = 1,456
- 50,580
Analysed for reporting purposes as MEME N IERBEE
Non-current assets - 50,580

Under IFRS 9, the equity securities listed in Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Market with a fair value of RMB49,124,000 were reclassified
from available-for-sale to financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income; and unlisted equity security with a fair value of
RMB1,456,000 were reclassified from available-for-sale to financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss. Please refer to note 2.3 for details.

Other financial assets

Structured deposits EEETT R

RIBEEREA B RELERNESR  REBRSREE
Frmiss B B A FE A AR 49,124,000 7T B fE AR
BEENOEAUATFEFEEEEH T AEME
AfmmrHEEeREE MATEARARE
1,456,0007CHFE E IR AEH B AL ECREE
EHBENAFEFTEAEEH T BRSNS
BEE - BHFIS - B2EME23 -

HEMher&EE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT
— 62,000

Under IFRS 9, the structured deposits were reclassified from other financial
assets to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Please refer to
note 2.3 for details.

REBER S B REERIEN - SR KAEM
EREESMOREURFEFELRETT AR
ST REE - BRIFHS - F2MHME23 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

23 Financial asset at fair value through profit or 23 UAFEFEEHSHT ABZNE

loss/Financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income/Available-for-sale
investments/Other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

BEE, LATENEEESHA
HttzEWENEemEE WHEE
RE HitEREE®)

DATENEARESHALMLEE
lozseh s puE 2

2018 2017
=EB-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Non-current assets IEREEE

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE TR ARE S 31,540 -
Current assets MENEE

Notes receivable A EE 3,955,287 -

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Y

NAFEFEEHES G ABRNE
BLE =

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFTT

Current assets MENE E

Structured deposits EREETR 354,243 -

Unlisted equity securities IEETIRAES 1,296 -
355,539 -

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as
speculative investments. However, where derivatives do not meet the
hedging accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for
accounting purposes and are accounted for at fair value through profit or
loss below. The Group has the following derivative financial instruments:

Derivative financial assets

Not designated as hedging instruments TEERHHIA
Designated as hedging instruments (note) ¥EE AT A (M)

ITESmIA

PTETAERREELE AR - TRREIER
B o il WOTETERT AL ERE B3t
BIRIEENME D BAIFKIEER] - WX
AR EFEBEZET AR - AREHAT
FINTESRTA :

TESRMEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
1,288 -
3,113 -

4,401 -

243



244

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —N\F+-_A=+—HIFE
23 Financial asset at fair value through profit or 23 LUATEFER E@EJJ BENE
loss/Financial asset at fair value through other MEE LA FPEFEAHEEHTA
comprehensive income/Available-for-sale Hih2mEss E’J%mﬂﬁ AHHE
investments/Other financial assets (Continued) RE HitheBMEE =
Derivative financial liabilities TEEmARE
2017
=B-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
Not designated as hedging instruments NMEE AR IE 35,179 -
Note: The Group’s hedging reserves followed hedging instruments: MisE © AN T A
2017
—T—tF
RMB’000
ARET T
Closing balance at 31 December 2017 RoB—+E+-A=+—HANERER -
Add: Change in fair value of hedging instrument i ERREM 2 EUEEZRES
recognised in OCl for the year T AN FEEE 3,097
Currency exchange B H 16
Closing balance at 31 December 2018 R \F+-A=+—HWERE 3,113

24 Deferred tax assets/liabilities

24

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purposes:

EEREEE A
ROTERE TS -

EET BSOS

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Deferred tax assets to be recovered 15U E R EETR B A =
— within 12 months 128 A ™A 69,897 49,005
— after 12 months -12@ /1% 387,405 193,241
457,302 242,246

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled B EMNREREARE
— within 12 months -12E AR (42,083) (15,271)
— after 12 months -12f@ A& (314,508) (127,412)
(356,591) (142,683)
Deferred tax assets, net EERIBE EFAE 100,711 99,563
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n _\%Eji%iﬁﬂja% Bﬂ-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE
24 Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued) 24 BEBBEEE BF@)
The following are the major deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised and RN EBREHBEE, AEREESHNOT ¢
movements thereon:
Property,
Trade plant and Revaluation Revaluation
receivable Accruals equipment  intangible ~ onprepaid  Revaluation of Property,
loss ~ Write-down and  Unrealized fax  assets tax lease ofintangible plantand  Revaluation
allowance ofinventory ~ provision profit  difference  difference  payments assels  equipment  of Inventory Others Total
EREN ES
FERE BB HERRE BVEE BREE  EVEE W% EE

BF FEME RER AERAR HEE  WeE  uEM Bff RRREH  AEEM i it
RUBOOD  RVBOOO  RVBODO  RWBOOO  RWBOOO  RWBOOD  RWBOOD  RWBOOD  RWBOOD  RWBOOD  RMBOOD  RWBOOD
ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARMTL ARETR ARETr AR¥TR ARETR ARMTT ARMTL ARETR ARETR

The Group T£E
At1 January 2017 RZE-t£-A-H 183,173 6,638 2450 303 - - - - - - 26 197742
Acquisition of subsidiaries AR

(Note 43) 2153 3284 3984 - - -7 (0459 (39144 (8.299) 6298 (110,789)
Crect charge) o proftor loss (21674 (1,044 10041 6999 - - 588 8310 2169 8,25 (B4 12860
Fffectof change in tax rate 21 - - - - - - - - - @ (259
At 31 December 2017 e d

T2A=1-4 163441 9078 5075 10034 - - (3619 @089 (3697) - 7618 99963
Roquiston of subscres — UEMBAF(Hi3E4)

Moo 0665 818 5B 4m B0 T - s @ AV I )
Chggloedtopotoross  EROIR) /A0 087 05 @8 (0) (549 pIs9 S8 oM 179 A
Hiectofchangeintaxrate.  HEEEZ2 04 26 [ - (1850 - - 1.201 1467 - -0
Clrrency exchange ik (8.546) 3212 0317 - 074 (143%) - 1434 (715) - (1) 69,19
At 31 December 2018 WI3-N\&

t25=1-A 157,731 16847 106,867 107%6 37538 a0 (19816 24124 (62280 - 912 100,711
The net balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities after offsetting are as FREREEE N BB REERNEHFREIT
follows:

2018 2017

—EB-N\E —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Deferred tax assets, net RIERIEEEFE 442,322 242,246
Deferred tax liabilities, net EETIB & EF58 (341,611) (142,683)

100,711 99,563
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

24 Deferred tax assets/liabilities continued) 24 BEBBEE BFw)
At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group has the following REEHR - REBEE NIIRBR 2 ABATIEE
unrecognised unused tax losses: B

2018 2017
—E-N\F =T tfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR ARBTT

Unused tax losses REYATHIEER 1,619,665 294,182
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the above tax Rt i IEE B RRIE R B A E YRR AR
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. HRIOHEFRA ©
The expiry dates of the above unrecognised tax losses are as follow: PR @RBIEEE EWMB AT

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT

31 December 2018 —ET-N\F+=ZA=+—H = 1,547
31 December 2019 —E-hFt+=-A=1+—8H 9,897 15,531
31 December 2020 —E-FEF+-_A=+—H 24,369 26,901
31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-A=+—H 19,381 36,855
31 December 2022 —E-F+=-A=+—H 1,317 12,108
31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-A=+—H - -
No expiry date g m B 2 1,564,701 -
1,619,665 92,942
25 Finance lease receivables 25 FiEFHEREWFIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Finance lease receivables due from customers FEWEFrmETE YA 53,466 69,951
Less: Finance lease receivables due within 1 year 3 : MM ER B HAM g & TH E FETIE (24,958) (31,475)
Non-current finance lease receivables IERE R A TE & FE U R IA 28,508 38,476
Certain of the Group’s equipment are leased out under finance leases. Al AEEETREREREHEEHRME - FIEHEENUA
leases are denominated in RMB. The term of finance leases entered into REHE pEHEFHAE=—SRF -

ranged from 3 to 5 years.
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RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

25 Finance lease receivables (Continued) 25 FEHEEERFEG
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease receivables lease receivables
RIEHEEEKRRE REHEEKRFIERE

31/12/2018 31/12/2017 31/12/2018 31/12/2017
TE-N\F el T )\F et
+=A +=A +=A +=A
Er=1 == =+—H ==
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T NS AR%Tr NS

Within 1 year 1FER 25,848 33,195 24,958 31,475

Over 1 year but less than 2 years BB EBDR2F 28,706 15,898 28,508 14,241

Over 2 years but less than 5 years B2 DA - 27,045 - 24,235

Less: unearned finance income A RER RS W (1,088) 6,187)  TEFN/A 35 FANA

Present value of minimum lease wIEEERE

payments receivable W RIERE 53,466 69,951 53,466 69,951

The interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract date for HEMBzEEXREARBET  BRANEEAEE
the entire lease terms. The weighted average effective interest rate is HY o INAETF I EIRENELRE.38%(ZE—+F :
approximately 5.38% (2017: 5.70%) per annum. 5.70%) °
Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the leased storage BhE T S FEGRIB AR AT R T SR (EEIR ©
equipment. The Group is not permitted to sell or pledge the collateral in EENEEAT AL B E LR & s B R R
the absence of default by the lessee. an °

Please refer to note 3 for the loss allowance of finance lease receivables. EHER AR ERRFIBREEEE - BRHNE3 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

26 Long-term trade receivables 26 REIE S EWFIEA

2018 2017
—B-N\F =T &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETIT

Long term receivable due from customers FEWE B R B e U Fk 18 554,161 294,211
Less: Long-term receivable due within 1 year B —F R ER R ER R G E (131,926) (141,857)
Long-term receivable due after 1 year —F BB HR R EAE U R 422,235 152,354

The amount is expected to be received as follows:  FXIBTE BRHA LA T i ULER -

Within 1 year 1R 135,730 163,802
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BB R DR2E 210,548 65,174
Over 2 years but less than 5 years HBiE2 {2 DR 214,110 147 596
Less: unearned finance income W AREERE W (6,227) (82,361)
554,161 294,211

Note: The balance represents long-term receivables from customers arising from MisT : ZERIERERIHEMEKRER 2 RIAEKK

sales of goods. The amount is interest free, unsecured and repayable in 2 B ZHRBARE  BERKRARMERFANE

to 5 years. Deemed interest income of RMB2,609,353 calculated based B RIEREBRMNSEFTEZFNERAARE

on effective interest method was recognised during the current year (2017: 2,609,353 L I AFEARBER(ZT—tF : AR

RMB23,627,000). #23,627,0007T) °
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27 Contract related assets/Contract liabilities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

27 AEHBEE ARAR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Contract related assets AREBEEE
Customer—related assets — nomination fee EEHEEE—IREE 35,410 -
Contract liabilities aRAaE
Contract liabilities, current — advances from REERABE-EFE20
customers (a) 1,390,874 -
Contract liabilities, non-current ERBARAE - BEEFEE
— R&D reimbursements from customers 39,790 -

Advances from customers are mainly from coal mining machinery group
for non-cancelable contract, and normally would be recognized as revenue
in next 12 months. RMB30,430,000 in the balance on 31 December 2018
is carried forward from 2017.

—t Y -

D REBREERETAFHEE RAEERRESR
—MRZEB12EARERBEAN - R —\F
+ZA=+—BMNEHRARNES0,430,000t—RE =T
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

28 Loans receivable from associates and a joint

28 BUBEATR—MABEEER

venture
2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AREETIT
Loans receivable from an associate (note a, c) e — R AR B (FisEa ~ o) 64,000 64,000
Loans receivable from a joint venture (note b, c) B —REELErEER(FIEED o) 19,750 29,750
83,750 93,750
Loss allowance (note d) EsE R (T Ed) (64,000) (40,000)
19,750 53,750
Analysed for the reporting purpose as: REMBEMATAOT -
Current portion RENEE D 9,750 34,000
Non-current portion IEmENE S 10,000 19,750
19,750 53,750
Note (a): The balance represented loans receivable from an associate, Heilongjiang Mitk() : sZAERRTE R & A P BEe T EPRE R B A IR
Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd., which was unsecured and NAZER  ZEREER - WIREKEE - K

repayable on demand. The Group has individually provided additional
allowance of RMB24,000,000 (2017: RMB40,000,000) for this loans

receivable during the year.

Note (b): The amount of RMB 9,750,000 will be repaid on 30 November 2019, and

IV

the amount of RMB 10,000,000 will be repaid on 30 June 2020.

Note (c): The balance is unsecured, carrying interest rate of 1.45%-2.16% per

MIEEE) -

annum and repayable within two years by instalments.

KB RN F A KA R K E R E R AR
24,000,0007T (= F —+4% : AR#¥40,000,0007T)

HVEEIMER ©

BR-_ZT—NAE+—A=-F+HEBARE
9,750,000t MR ZE =T FANA=THEEA

FR#10,000,0007T °

ZEEHREIRE R FEFIEA45%E2.16%% 5B

WAMFERDHEE -

Note (d): Please refer to note 3 for loss allowance. MHEE() - BB IERE - E2 RIS -
29 Inventories 29 &

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
AREBTIT
Raw materials and consumables R E R 1,411,969 381,474
Work in progress F K M 679,219 414,443
Finished goods B 2,018,100 1,097,796
4,109,288 1,893,713
Inventory provision FaRE (148,444) (61,580)
3,960,844 1,832,133




EINREERMEBRN AR AR 201851

30 Trade and other receivables

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE
30 E5 R H M EWRKIE

2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARETTT

Notes receivable FEUNE I - 2,915,356
Trade receivables 2 5 FEWRIA 5,760,750 3,526,510
Less: loss allowance VER St (853,294) (1,001,141)
4,907,456 5,440,725
Prepayments to suppliers M e R TR A 507,566 357,503
Deposits HE 24,197 38,344
Other tax recoverable Hhal g O Fi 18 880,090 11,259
Staff advances EE8 7,363 2,364
Others Hitb 97,493 57,067
Less: loss allowance B IR (97,168) (14,190)
1,419,541 452,347
Total trade and other receivables B o5 REMEWRIESET 6,326,997 5,893,072
The following is an aged analysis of notes receivable and trade receivables UTASRERARIZEEARZS| 2 RKEERE
net of loss allowance presented based on the invoice date at the end of SRBGRIBNGREEBEER ZRE ST

each Reporting Period:

Within 180 days

Over 180 days but within 1 year
Over 1 year but within 2 years
Over 2 years within 3 years

2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

180K A 4,255,933 4,063,119
HEB180RE1FER 351,338 942,271
1 E2F A 228,364 272,255
B2 EF{E3F N 71,821 163,080

4,907,456 5,440,725
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30 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The trade and other receivables denominated in foreign currencies, are
expressed in RMB as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 as

30 EFREMEBEWFIE %)

SN EHENE 5 R EMERRIER T —\F
+ZA=ZTBHRZZE—+tHF+-A=+—HHUA

follows: REHRIAT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F =T tfF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
EUR BT 809,741 25,376
USD e 527,588 80,028
INR HEEL 156,762 -
BRL OEEEA 79,310 -
MX BETHER 11,070 -
JPY = 6,313 -
ZAF RS 5,369 -
RUB BT E 2,828 1,456
CAD il 504 533
Others Hith 47 84
1,599,532 107,477
Movement of loss allowance for doubtful debts on trade B 5 RHE A W EIE 2 RARE 1B R
and other receivables 2H)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT

Opening balance FHER 1,015,331 1,195,323
Reversed during the year FREM (58,006) (179,007
Write off sy (3,724) (985)
Currency exchange B HR (3,139) -
Closing balance FRES 950,462 1,015,331

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had litigations against overdue
customers with trade receivable balances of RMB379,580,000. Among
those litigations, for trade receivable balance of RMB105,094,000
had been reached settlement. Litigations relating to trade receivable of
RMB171,142,000 were on-going. Litigations relating to receivable of
RMB49,222,000 were terminated.

RIZZE-NF+ZA=+—0 FAEEHEHET
FilREFR  FHEZRUFBERABARYE
379,580,0007T ° ZEFAF © B H UGBS
AR¥105,004,0007t 2518 - B S RKFIRESRR
ARME171,142,000TTHRF AR IEEERITH - URE S
JE W R T A i A R #549,222,000 T R FAE A2 LE
AT -
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31 Cash and cash equivalents/bank deposits

31 RERREEEY RITEN

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—t5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Cash and cash equivalents RERBLEEY
Cash He 358 252
Bank deposits with original maturity within [REIEA B A3(E A =k
three months or less AT Z8RITIER 2,745,680 1,744,925
Cash and cash equivalents BERMEEED 2,746,038 1,745,177
Bank deposits RITER
Pledged bank deposits EHEBIRITIFR 853,890 867,795
Bank deposits with original maturity over [REIE A A31E A
three months A 2 8R1T1E 0 30,590 86,410
884,480 954,205

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure bank
acceptance bills and letters of guarantee and are therefore classified as
current assets. The pledged bank deposits carry interest at market rates
which range from 0.20% to 3.26% per annum as at 31 December 2018
(2017: 0.35% to 3.15% per annum).

BHEIRRITERARAE T RITERRITANIES
RIRHZRES  ARESIEARDEE - BK
HETEREMSAR;E R N\F+=
A=+—8  FEMENF020%E3.26%( =T —+

F 1 FHE0.35%ZE3.15%) °

253



254

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERAR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

32 Trade and other payables

32 ESNRHMEMSTE

2018 2017
—B-N\F =T &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETIT

Notes payable (note a) eI (M 5Ta) 1,882,103 1,288,089
Trade payable (note a) B SN RE (M 5E) 4,988,510 2,684,708
6,870,613 3,972,797
Salary and bonus payables BT EEES 612,802 261,367
Deposits (note b) HEAGEED) 82,134 27,939
Deferred income to be recognised —FNERZ
within one year (note c) EEUW A (M 7EC) 5,942 3,994
Interest Payable FERTF & 11,719 203
Other taxes payable H b e F18 222,410 53,111
Accruals and other payables (note d) TR N H 0 FE A< 5138 (T 3Ed) 324,930 113,290
8,130,550 4,432,701

Notes:

@

The following is an aged analysis of notes payable and trade payables
presented based on invoice date at the end of each Reporting Period:

Fiat

@

UTARSHRERARERBERAH2I 2 BNRERLK
B 5 RN BRI -

2018 2017

—2-N\F —Z=—tfF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT

Within 1 year S 6,576,168 3,748,516
Over 1 year FRIB1E 294,445 204,281
6,870,613 3,972,797

Deposits represent the deposits received from suppliers for transportation and
other services.

Deferred income to be recognised within one year represents the government
subsidies received by the Group towards certain research projects. The
amount has been treated as deferred income and will be transferred to profit
or loss over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

Accruals and other payables mainly consist of payables for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment, rental payables, sales rebate and payables for
other services.

R RERmEEES R EMREZATE o

R —FRNERZEERANEREEE THRIER
B TR AT 8B » SRR (EEE A AR
BEEREAFHAEHEEES -

BIRNEAMENFTRIZBERANBENE  BE
REZENFOR - BNES - HEENREAMR
T2 RN KA ©
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equipment as at 31 December 2018.

33 Borrowings 33 B8
2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Non-current: JEBNER -
— Bank borrowings — secured (Note a, b, ¢) —IRITEE —FEFE(FisFa b~ c) 1,177,097 -
— Bank borrowings — unsecured —IRITIEE — KW 816,000 898,000
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings W SERNERE EMBNERE (144,855) (80,000)
1,848,242 818,000
Current: BNER -
— Bank borrowings — secured (Note a, b, ¢) —RITIEE—-BEB(KisFa b ¢) 874,730 111,000
Add: current portion of non-current borrowings on o SERNARE BRI BIEARE 144,855 80,000
1,019,585 191,000
Total borrowings EE®5 2,867,827 1,009,000
Secured (Note) AHHEE(FIF) 2,051,827 111,000
Unsecured e i 816,000 898,000
2,867,827 1,009,000
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 886,000 960,000
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 1,981,827 49,000
2,867,827 1,009,000
Notes: MI3E
@@  The balance of bank borrowing amounting to RMB6,000,000 was secured by @ RZTE-—NFF+ZA=+—10 ROTBEHHAR
the pledge of bank notes as at 31 December 2018; #6,000,0007T F #R1 TSR AR E FRVEIE IR
(b)  The balance of bank borrowings totally amounting to RMB84,000,000 b RZF-NF+_A=1+—R0 RTEEEHRLE
were secured by the pledge of the land use rights and property, plant and A #£84,000,0007C A + bR FRRELA R W2 - R I

R E R -
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33 Borrowings (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©)  The balance of RMB1,961,827,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil) © RZETE—-—NF+=ZA=+—H

mainly represented:

SMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings SARL, a subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a facility agreement of EUR 300 million with the lenders, of which
Bank Of China Limited, Luxembourg Branch and Bank Of China Limited,
Frankfurt Branch acted as mandated lead arrangers and book runners.
The Group has drawn down two loans under the above mentioned facility

agreement:

()  EUR 150,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,177,097,000), with the effective i
interest rate of 2.6% per annum, and is repayable from July 2019 to

January 2023.

(i) EUR 100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB784,730,000), with the effective
interest rate of 2.5% per annum, and is repayable in January 2021.

Both of term loan and the facility loan are guaranteed by the Company and
the letter of credit issued by the Company, EUR 734 million (equivalent
to RMB5,761 million), and are secured, inter alia, by one or more of the

33 B8w@
MeE : (5B)

CREBARE
1,961,827,0007C( = F—+F : T)EBR

7N 45 @ B /B /2 7] SMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings
SARLEE AR ARTIZ300 8 BRUTH B & 1 - Hhp
BRTTARID AR D RIERED 1T R PERITIRN A
BAREMRRITIERRBEEAETHITLEEE
BA  REEDRE HREE RRIRIRMERR

150,000,000 B 7T ( #8 & 7 A & ¥ 1,177,097,000
L) BEEMERE2% IR -_ZE—hE+t
AE-Z-_=F— AHHEE -

(i) 100,000,000 B T ( #8 & # A R ¥ 784,730,000
TT) c BREERER A% WAR T - —4F
—AEE -

B EMEEFTIHARRARAARIEAZ®
HAMAEBEBIT(EENRARBS 76158 T) 22H
ARVEER WA (EPEE) AT —ERZEETER

following: A

(@ Share of certain subsidiaries (SEG Automotive Germany GmbH, SEG @ FTHERFRG - (SEG Automotive Germany
Automotive Components Brazil Ltda., Starters E-Components Generators GmbH + REMETEIBHEFEAR AR + Starters
Automotive Hungary Kft., SEG Automotive Mexico Manufacturing, S.A. E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kft. ~ 22
de C.V., SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U, SEG Automotive North America BIgAREREFHERRAR  REKTER
LLC and SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd.); MFBRAF - REBAEILEERAFRR

BRRAE(RBDBERRAR)

(b)  First priority security over the assets, including all land and leaseholds, b HHESPHMBAREEZEXERE BEMB
plant, equipment, intellectual property rights, receivables, accounts and T RAE T - FE - RE - AERE B
other contract rights of certain subsidiaries. The legal procedures of the Wk -~ RB REMARER - HBEEZE
assets to be secured is still under processing; ERRFANEITF

(c) Assignment and subordination of any shareholder loan made to the ©  #5E XA E mSMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings
SMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings SARL and the SEG Automotive SARL ) SEG Automotive Germany GmbH{E i 2 {E1a] %
Germany GmbH. RER -

As at 31 December 2018, the secured assets in SEG Group were as following: RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—0  SEGEEMEERFE

EWT :

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 486,430
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E At FENRIE 1,993,815
Inventories FE 845,631
Property, plant and equipment LEN = 552,953
Investments in subsidiaries B ARIRE 1,254,611
Intercompany loan NAIBER 407,390
Others Hy 219,724
5,760,555

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s debt ratio does not meet the
requirement of certain covenant included in the above mentioned facility
agreement. In 2019, the Company entered into an amendment to the facility
agreement which modified the definition of the debt ratio. According to the

amendment, the requirement of the loan covenant has been met.

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—0 FEBBEHLEXR
BENALURERHSE TRENRE - R_F—N
F o ARRAERILEBE BRIERT A AMERTEB LR K
EE - RIEZEFTA  DHAEREHNER -
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33 Borrowings (Continued) 33 EE@®
Notes: (Continued) MIsE : (48)
©  (Continued) © (8

At 31 December At 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZB—N\F RZZT—tF
+=—B=+—H +=A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Carrying amount repayable: AR T B (E3E 2 AR A -
Within one year —FER 1,019,585 191,000
More than one year, but not exceeding two years 38— {8 BB E 730,000 82,000
More than two years, but not exceeding five years — #23@ M4 {8 BB A E 1,118,242 736,000
2,867,827 1,009,000
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities B OmEBBABEE TN REEE 1,019,585 191,000
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ERBBEEE NI REEE 1,848,242 818,000

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the AEEEERREEN THIINERHE

following currencies:

At 31 December At 31 December
2018 2017
RIT—tF
+=A=+—AH
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREF T
RMB AR 906,000 1,009,000
EUR BLT 1,961,827 -
2,867,827 1,009,000
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted REBREEZ ERME(TESERERNE)GEMNT :
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows:
At 31 December At 31 December
2018 2017

R=ZB—N\F RZT—tF
+t=A=t+—8 +=—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREBFIT

Effective interest rate per annum B FER X
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMEE 4.10%-5.00% 4.10%-5.00%
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 2.31%-4.75% 4.35%-4.57%
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34 Provisions

34 BB

Onerous Restructuring

Warranty Contract provision Total
R1& BEaRE BHEBE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t5F
+—A=+—8H 113,217 - - 113,217
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43) Uk BB A 7 (P 5143) 78,818 478,187 637,057 1,194,062
Additional provision in the year FRREIMNEE 81,904 112,247 - 194,151
Utilisation of provision FIFR S (107,932) (222,028) (209,463) (539,423)
Currency Exchange B M 473 2,206 2,623 5,302
At 31 December 2018 RZE—\F
+—A=+—H 166,480 370,612 430,217 967,309
Current portion BNEREE 5 166,480 210,118 361,901 738,499
Non-current portion JERNERER - 160,494 68,316 228,810
166,480 370,612 430,217 967,309

The warranty provision which represents management’s best estimate of
the Group’s liability under warranty periods granted to customers (who

purchased auto parts), based on prior experience relating to defective BHRNaEZ &EG -

products claims.

Onerous contract provision represent management’s best estimate of the
expected contract loss, based on the forecast performance relating to the

contract.

Restructuring provision represent the costs relating to the restructuring

relating to the spin-off of SEG from the former group.

REBREREEBRBATRBREERFRAM
2B HAKBERTEER

TEHzEPR

BEraRREREEEERIEGHEAR 2 EARE -
HIEMAREE KERE

BHRBEIERHSEGE AT EB DI EAEKA
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35 Transfers of financial assets 3B cHEESE

The Group entered into agreements with certain equipment leasing
companies and end-user customers, pursuant to which:

i) the Group sold hydraulic roof supports (which were designated to be
used by end-user customers) to the equipment leasing companies
and received the payments from leasing companies;

i) the equipment leasing companies lease the hydraulic roof supports to
the end-user customer;

iy the Group are obliged to settle the unsettled leased amounts due
by the end-user customers to the leasing companies if the end-
user customers defaulted on repayments to the equipment leasing
companies in the manner as specified in the agreement.

Given the substance of the transaction, the Group continues to recognise
receivables to the extent of outstanding lease obligation of the ultimate
end-user of the equipment in its consolidated statement of financial
position until full settlement of such lease obligation by the ultimate
end-user of the equipment and proceeds received from the equipment
leasing companies are recorded as financing arrangements.

During the year, the Group has received approximately RMB124,445,000
from the equipment leasing companies (2017: RMB149,975,000). The
transferred trade receivables and associated liabilities were offset to the
extent of the settlement by the ultimate end user of the equipment.

ARFEEFREEERNREHASET RS
Bt

) AEERREEHEARHEREBER(EEH
#wom AP A) RAEE R FHET R

i) REBEERAFEEREBXRTFEmAS

i) A% P PARK iR R ] BR 2 07 SV R A AR R
BERREN  AEEAAEENKRAPEN
HERARZASENEESSE

ENXH2EE - NEBBRKRME 2 RERHE
ERTHRENESAMBRRTHEREETR &
ERBZEBAFPEBFEZSHEERE  BBR
BHRE R BWEZ TR AR E R -

FR ALEEERXBEHEQRRAKRHARE
124,445,000 0 ( ZZF —+F : A R % 149,975,000
T0) o BB mAE 2 EEmE  DERESE
WRE R A B EE DI -

36 Employee benefit obligations 36 EEENEFE

Defined benefit pension plan (a) TEREE TR IREFTE@)
Other employee benefit provisions HAhiE B e

2018 2017
—E-N\F B e S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT
123,813 -
157,090 -

280,903 -
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36 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan

The Group’s post-employment benefits include defined contribution
plans and defined benefit plans. The defined benefit plans are funded
or unfunded pension systems or systems financed by insurance
premiums.

The major pension and post-retirement medical care plans are
described below. These plans are subject to actuarial risks, such as
longevity risks, interest fluctuation risks and capital market risks.

Germany

The pension scheme SEG VORSORGE Plan (former Bosch VORSORGE
Plan), which was introduced on 1 January, 2006, is a defined
benefit including interest with salary-based contributions. The SEG
VORSORGE Plan is partly funded via an external pension fund. The
value of the assets of the external pension fund is offset against the
pension obligation calculated using the projected unit credit method.
During the vesting period, employer and employee contributions are
added to the assets of pension fund up to the tax-allowed ceiling.
Contributions that exceed the tax-allowed ceiling are allocated to
the unfunded obligation. The benefit amount rises in line with the
performance of the pension fund. Grandfather provisions were
transferred to the former Bosch VORSORGE Plan. For a constantly
decreasing number of members of the workforce in the vesting
period, a transitional arrangement guarantees a fixed rate of return
on the defined benefit obligation. On reaching retirement, or in the
event of occupational disability or death, the earned benefits are paid
out in the form of a lump-sum payment, pension payments, or a
lifelong annuity.

India

The Gratuity Plan in India provides a lump sum benefit to employees
upon leaving for any reason. The benefit is 15 days of the final
base salary for each year of service upon retirement or termination
provided the employee has worked for the company for at least 5
years. In the case of death or disability during active employment,
there is no minimum service requirement to receive the benefit, and
the lump sum amount is 30 days of the final base salary for each
year of service plus 21 days of the final base salary for each expected
future year of service had the death or disability not occurred. There is
a benefit ceiling of one million Indian rupees except for management
employees hired before 7 May 1998 who have no benefit ceiling.

36 EESFET®
(@) TEEBFIRIKEETE

REERNE RN B E BT 8 R E R
FEHE] o EEEBAET B SHEIFHFARIK
EEREARBBEHORL

T BRAEFRNREBRREEFEZIBENH
AT o ZEVEEBERR(FIIMERFE
B MERBEARMEATIZER) o

=]

SEG VORSORGE &t I & &k & & #I ( A7 Bosch
VORSORGEFTE ) N —ZZ NF— A —HI#EL -
BLAGBEHR(BIEF L) R ERFI - SEG
VORSORGEETZI /MNP RN H SR —F 5
B o INBRAEES 2 EEBEUERIEN
BUERATEZ2 RIS E TR - REEBH
N BEMEEZHAEMAERKEES ZE
EEZFEMNERF LR - BHEMESHFLER
ZRFEDEERERET - B CHERAER
hE&EES 2 RIBEI - TEHIEXE BE =/
Bosch VORSORGE=T &/ - FLH ERE HA N 45 B) Ak
BRERLZBRME  BEBELTHRET
HRAECZETERE - REARFHEATE
BOREIR ol B iR - FTBRELZ B A LA — IR I
FoORRENRRERIFE 2 AR -

BE

ENE Z R 25 &8 R EEA R AR 2 B B 1
H—RENZ @A - HBERRARMIE
ELRE - BHRNEREIRIEAREE IR
BEERZRRES 2158 HH - W ERUeE
FAEAR & e AR - SRR M Y AR (K
RISFMESR - M—RUENHERE AT R
BEEAZRRESH <308 HH - S0 &
SIS EREL 2 G- R RRREFEANZ
REEF 221 BFHB - &8 LR A1 BBEHE
EL - RN NN N\FRAERREEZE
EEREM S WEREN LR
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36 EEBAEE®

(@m@mﬂ RAREE B ()
EERNE R EFENRRN TR :

—NF+=A=1+—RALLFE
36 Employee benefit obligations (continued)
(@ Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

The development of the net liability of the defined benefit obligation is
presented in the following table:

Impact of
minimum
Presentvalue  Present value funding
Fair value of funded of unfunded requirement/
of plan assets obligations obligations asset ceiling Net Value
REHRER/
TEEEL HRER FHRER BELR
ATE RE BE % #E
At1 January 2018 RZE-N\§-A—H - - - - -
Current Period: AR 8,216 (67,064) 269 - (58,579)
Current service cost REB RS - (51,400) 62) - (51,462)
Interest expense/(income) FERZ/ (W) 11,439 (15,664) (16) - (4,24)
Past service cost and gains and BERBAAUR
losses on settlements EENFENER (3,223) - 347 - (2,876)
Remeasurements: EEtE (29,366) (32,154) (135) - (61,655
Return on plan assets, excluding SHEIBELR(TEETA
amounts included in interestincome ~ F| B4\ 2 £38) - - - - -
Loss from change in demographic BADBREHES 2 EHE
assumptions - (1,527) - - (1,527)
Loss from change in financial BHEESESEE BB
assumptions - (33,660) (15) - (33,679)
Experience gains eI - 3,033 (120) - 2913
Change in asset celling, excluding BEFREH(TRETA
amounts included in interest expense A BFEZ 7 £5) (29,366) - - - (29,366)
Currency translation differences BEHHEEE 3,005 (4,436) () - (1436)
Contributions: g 9,242 - - - 9242
Employers EBE 9,242 - - - 9,242
Plan participants HEREE - - _ _ _
Payments from plans: PERERER - - - - -
Benefit payments BRE® Z _ Z . =
Settlements ©TE - - - - -
Acquired in a busingss combination ~ MEXKAHIE 585,892 (596,256) (1,021) - (11,389)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1+—H 576,989 (699,910) (892) - (123,813)
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36 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 36 EEEANET @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) () EREEMERARESEE (@)
For the key regions, the present value of the defined benefit obligation MEMEM S - EFEENEEAIRE ] EE
can be reconciled to the provision as follows: BEERNT

At 31 December 2018
R-ZE-N\F+=-A=+—H

Present
value of the Unrecognized
RMB‘000 obligation  Plan assets Other assets asset Provision
ARET T BEERE FHEIEE HitEE ARIEE Bfh
Germany = 533,161 (126,616) - - 406,545
India ENE 33,971 (28,235) - - 5,736
567,132 (154,851) - - 412,281

The Plan assets comprised the following components: FIEIBERENNTIER ¢

As at 31 December 2018
R-ZE—-N\F+=-A=+—H

Germany India
=E EE
Percentage Percentage
figures figures
BALEF BALLEF

Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEEY
Equity instruments AT A 48% -
Debt instruments EEITA 42% 86%
Other Hih 10% -

100% 100%
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36 Employee benefit obligations (continued)
(@ Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

The significant actuarial assumption were as follows:

36 EESFET®
(@) TEEARKREETEIH

TEREERET

As at 31 December 2018
R=ZB—N\F+=-HA=+—H

Germany India

=H EHE

Percentage Percentage

Figures Figures

ARLLEF BALEF

Discount factor ITIRRE = 2.00% 6.75%
Projected salaries growth rate TERI B I R R 3.00% 12.00%
Projected pension growth rate TERERARESIERE 1.75% N/ATEH

To determine the discount factor in the Euro zone, reference was
made to bonds rated AA by at least one rating agency. This was
reviewed as of the reporting date. In all regions the discount factor
was determined in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits.

Projected salaries are future salary increases estimated on the basis
of the economic situation and inflation, among other things.

For the key regions, the present value of the defined benefit obligation
can be reconciled to the provision as follows:

RENBTENMRER  22E&IHA—
RIRF AR BT BARIES - LENHRE BB
R&ER - RERMERERIREEER SR
ERF195REBRMNETE -

TR TR IR (R R B4R BN BB AR i
SHHR R PG IR o

MEHMETE - ERENEEAIRE R 5
HH RN

The significant actuarial assumption were as follows: FERERROAT :
Germany =E
As at 31 December 2018
R=Z-NF+=A=+—H
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
(EEE 4] R 38 B0 BRER D
Percentage Figures  Percentage Figures
BoLEF BOLEF
Discount factor BRER 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 6.1 Increase by 7.3
0518 E 2 T76.1 7.3
Projected salaries growth rate FERIE NG R & 0.5 percentage points Increase by 0.1 Decrease by 0.1
05EE DB L70.1 T70.1
Projected pension growth rate AR RS RE 0.5 percentage points
0518 E 2 2 = =
Life expectancy LT One year Increase by 1.3 N/A

—fF E#E1.3 TEH
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e EmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE
36 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 36 EEEANET @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) () EREEMERARESEE (@)
India E

As at 31 December 2018
R=ZB-NF+=-A=1+—H

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
R 2 B &R 12t R
Percentage Figures  Percentage Figures
BALEF BALEF
Discount factor BRI % 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 6.1 Increase by 7.3
05EE 2B T#6.1 L#@73
Projected salaries growth rate FERIE B R R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.1 Decrease by 0.1
0.5 B2 & L0 T#0.1
Projected pension growth rate ARSI RE 0.25 percentage points
0.25(EH 2 % = =
Life expectancy EHED One year Increase by 1.3 N/A
—& L£#13 ~ER
37 Share capital 37 B
Listed A Shares Listed H Shares Total
LHAR LHHRK @t
Number of Number of Number of
share Amount share Amount share Amount
RIDEE it ROHE it ROHE kx|

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR AR%T:

At 31 December 2016 RZZT—"F+=A=+—0 1377888 1,377,888 243,234 243,234 1,621,122 1,621,122
Issue of A Share for acquisition ~ FLULEE B2 AIEE1TARR ()

of subsidiaries () 93,220 93,220 - - 93,220 93,220
Issue of placing A Shares (o) ELTREAR(D) 18,129 18,129 - - 18,129 18,129

At 31 December 2017 and 2018 R=-ZT—+EF-Z—N\F

+-F=1—H 1,489,237 1,489,237 243,234 243,234 1,732,471 1,732,471

(@: Inyear 2017, the Company has acquired equity interests of six entities in the @: RZZE—tF  AARBKREABZHMHITEAN
auto-parts industry. On 3 March 2017, the Company issued 93,220,338 A REB RE - RZT—tF=A=H ARQAEMH
Shares to the sellers as part of the consideration. The lock-up period for these B J781793,220,338ARMERBNRE 2 —& 5D « LF
consideration shares is 12 months from the close of share issue. RERD 2 L EHARMNEITRIERB Z12(EA -

(b):  On 22 March 2017, the Company issued 18,129,032 A Shares with the b): RZFE—EF=A=+=H  ARARRETESR
issue price of RMB8.68 per share to certain qualified targets (include the ARM88ITLMETAEREZ(REARAES
Company’s employee share ownership scheme in which the directors, EERGERITBAE2M 2 AAFE THERETE])IE
supervisors and chief executives of the Company participated) on a non-public NFIBE1T18,129,0320% AR » LERER N 2 L EH
basis. The lock-up period for these placing shares is 12 or 36 months from BRRDEITRIEE R 21208 A k36 A -

the close of share issue.
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38 Non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

38 FEIZIRRER
T&RIIRAEAIEERIER Y AEEIEREHBA

Group that have significant non-controlling interests: A2 G
Place of Proportion of
establishment equity interest held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interest non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business  Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
FEREEREZ PREFERER 2
RIBER RAEZE I aH(E58) R EERER
HEARRE TEEENY HE+T-A=T+-HLFE BET-A=+t-HLFE HE+-A=T+-HLFE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\E el —T-/\F Emksugial T\ ekl
4% PRC 49.00% 49.00% 41,106 19,980 278,849 274,578
Super Electric th
TERlER PRC 36.46% 37.00% 38,322 14,774 348,176 269,173
ASIMCO Shuanghuan H
R PRC 37.00% 37.00% 10,294 8,080 99,307 88,037
ASIMCO Camshaft H
Individual immaterial subsidiaries with N/A N/A N/A 16,842 13,076 107,302 143,313
non-controlling interests TEA TEH i
AR 2 R ERZ B AR
106,564 55,910 833,634 775,101
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Super Electric

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERAR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

38 FEIEMRRERS ()

HE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Current assets BB E 682,882 644,800
Non-current assets IEMEBEE 338,809 360,942
Current liabilities mEEE 372,634 398,460
Non-current liabilities JEmEAE 42,922 47,262
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RN TR R RS 327,286 285,442
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R R 278,849 274,578
Revenue A 854,493 646,296
Expenses Hx 774,754 599,812
Profit and total comprehensive income A R 2R AL 79,739 46,484
Profit and total comprehensive income RAEIIR R FEMRET R 2 ABEE
attributable to owners of the Company 38,633 26,504
Profit and total comprehensive income RIS RS L m A S 2 A 4858
attributable to the non-controlling interests 41,106 19,980
Profit and total comprehensive income AR 2R A LR 79,739 46,484
Net cash inflow from operating activities KA S RAFRE 90,548 58,560
Net cash outflow from investing activities HEERSNIR S T F5E (19,274) (27,207)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEBMIR SR HIFRE (56,763) -
Net cash inflow REmAFE 14,421 31,353
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mEMEImRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE
38 Non-controlling interests (Continued) 38 FIERERE)
ASIMCO Shuanghuan TR IR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Current assets mENEE 664,119 562,247
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 561,286 514,016
Current liabilities TEARE 191,862 258,435
Non-current liabilities ERHaE 86,542 89,672
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RN TR FE R RS 598,825 458,983
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR R RS 348,176 269,173
Revenue WA 674,630 542,779
Expenses X 578,093 502,849
Profit and total comprehensive income S EREN NS 93,539 39,930
Profit and total comprehensive income AAE R R T R 2 ERA LR
attributable to owners of the Company 58,217 25,156
Profit and total comprehensive income SEERE R E RS T R 2 A B
attributable to the non-controlling interests 38,322 14,774
Profit and total comprehensive income A R EE WA BRE 96,539 39,930
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEE 7R RAFEEE 155,150 103,896
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEE 2B SRR (143,547) (54,568)
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEE R R FRE (50,755) 11,859
Net cash outflow e FE (32,250) 61,187
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R BB ERAR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

38 FEIEMRRERS ()

ASIMCO Camshaft I8 ¥ A Y B
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Current assets BB E 140,215 137,328
Non-current assets IEMEBEE 245,137 226,753
Current liabilities mEEE 100,599 53,229
Non-current liabilities JEmEAE 16,355 17,395
Equity attributable to owners of the Company EN/NEI DY e e 169,091 205,420
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R R 99,307 88,037
Revenue A 216,974 180,177
Expense Hx 189,151 156,913
Profit and total comprehensive income A R 2R AL 27,823 23,264
Profit and total comprehensive income RAEIIR R FEMRET R 2 ABEE
attributable to owners of the Company 17,529 15,184
Profit and total comprehensive income RIS RS L m A S 2 A 4858
attributable to the non-controlling interests 10,294 8,080
Profit and total comprehensive income AR 2R A LR 27,823 23,264
Net cash inflow from operating activities KR IS RAFRE 19,094 43,040
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEEB RS R RE (4,808) (4,338)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEE RS RT FRE (20,122) (34,258)
Net cash outflow Re i Faa (5,836) 4,444
39 Capital commitments 39 EAREAH
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —ZE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of ERENOBEREGEUIERREFE
property, plant and equipment contracted for BRAREYDE  BMEMEREZ
not provided in the consolidated financial BARFAX
statements 138,108 57,147
Acquisition of equity interests from third entities WE=H BRI IERE - 905,374
138,108 962,521
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" _\%Eji%iﬁﬂja% Bﬂ-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE
40 Operating leases 40 REHE

2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARETTT

Minimum lease payments paid under operating FARBKEHES 2

leases during the year: RIEEERK

—Land — i 26,224 5,224
At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had commitments for future REREHIR - AREEEN T 5 HBRIEHA 2~ 7~ 0 35
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which BT E A AR K E R FURYE -

fall due as follows:

2018 2017
—B-N\E —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR¥EFT

Within one year —FR 144,678 5,224
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EFNF(BEEEMSFE) 400,022 20,894
Over five years HFLAE 249,963 31,340
794,663 57,458
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for KERENFIERE BB EAT RS TN 2
certain parcels of land that it occupies. The leases are negotiated for terms © o HAETE FHR20F -
of 20 years.
Property rental incomes earned was RMB16,538,000 for the year ended BE-_ZT—)\F+-A=1+—HILEE - AW
31 December 2018 (2017: RMB17,318,000). The leases are negotiated XS WA BARKE16,538,0000(ZZ—+F + A
for terms of 1 year to 15 years. At the end of each Reporting Period, the R¥17,318,0007T) ° A E T FHAIFE154F ©
Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease REREHR » AEBD BB 2 R RKEHE
payments: SR
pik 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETIT
Within one year —F R 11,582 3,191
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRAF(REERMF) 29,435 8,964
Over 5 years HEAE 24,938 11,716

65,955 23,871
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i E PSR AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

41 Related party transactions

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate controlling
party of the Company is Henan SASAC of the PRC government and that
the Group is subject to the control of the PRC government. In accordance
with IAS 24, entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (“PRC government related entities”) are
regarded as related parties of the Group. Due to the complex ownership
structure, the PRC government may hold indirect interests in many
companies. Some of these interests may, in themselves or when combined
with other indirect interests, be controlling interests which may not be
known to the Group.

(@ The Group and Henan SASAC

The Group has transactions with entities controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by Henan SASAC (“Henan SASAC related
entities”) and the transactions details are as follow:

Sales of finished goods SHE E RN
Purchase of raw materials R R

N BEHAERS

RRABESERR  ARBZRAIEHT7 A EBUF
J@élﬁé AN SR [ 52 R B2 1) © AR IR
PREFHERISE245E - R BRBATES] - KREEHIK
K%%ZA?U¢IﬁWWWEﬁDWﬁE$%
B2 BE )y o ERNEMCHBREEE  DEBAR
RER NG EREERD - E THSHEETHE
HEHMMRERS R - JhRBARERA
A R

@ AEBEMIEERER

AEBEHEZNEERERE - ERESISE
%%Zgﬁ(ﬁﬁélééﬁﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁ
AR ZERGZFBHT

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
2,013 30,657

14 1,002,512

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from Henan SASAC
related entities accounted for 0.003% of total revenue (2017: 0.4%),
and purchases from Henan SASAC related entities accounted for
14.2% of total cost of sales (2017: 17.0%).

The details of outstanding balances with Henan SASAC and Henan
SASAC related entities are set as follow:

REE-_ZT—N\F+-_A=+—BILFE "
RENEEEEZABER RS GRS
0.003%( —ZT—+4F : 0.4%) * MRE AL EH
BERABAEE 2 REREAEENER14.2%(=
T—+HF 17.0%) °

BRAMERERMIHEEEZARER Y
RMEBEBHRFITEIIOT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Amount due to Henan SASAC related entities R EEREZAEEE 2 FIA 4,598 -
Amount due from Henan SASAC related entities ~ FEYCA IS A ZAMAE L~ I8 = 95,956

The amount due to Henan SASAC which was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The amounts due from Henan SASAC
related entities were from trade sales or purchases.

A AEEREZNFARERR  RENA
REREE - BRTHEEEEZAREENM
BREAREE S HERRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ;& ==

41 Related party transactions (continued)

(b) The Group and other PRC government related

entities

Apart from the significant transactions with Henan SASAC related
entities set out above, during the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017, the Group’s transactions with other PRC government
related entities are collectively significant as a large portion of its
sales of goods, purchases of materials, most of bank deposits, and
other general banking facilities and the relevant interest income
eamned and expenses incurred during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017 are transacted with entities owned/controlled by the
PRC government.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions with
PRC government related entities are activities in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business and entered into under normal commercial
terms and conditions, and that the dealings of the Group have not
been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and
those entities are government related. The Group has also established
its approval process for sales of goods and purchases of materials
and its financing policy for borrowings, such approval process and
financing policy do not depend on whether the counterparties are
government related entities or not.

The Group and its associates and joint ventures

The Group had the following significant transactions with its associates
and joint ventures

~ e R AR MY EE

—N\FtZA=t—RLFE

M BEBAERS @)

(b) AEBEEMFEBFREER

Dl

B EXFEEAmERERERERETZE
AREZI REERBE_Z-\FR_-F
—tF T A=+ HILFE R0 EBUT
*EF%E%E%EHZX%E%W&J%EK EERE,

—NER-ZF—+F+-_A=1+—HIt
EEZK*B%E%%% VIRLEREE - KB R
TR~ Bt —ARIRTTRYE LA I B IREUAERE 7
BWARBEERIGY & BT B T
B/ BHNERETZIRS -

ARAREFRR  RFETEBFEEERE
112 %TJ$‘$IZEI%%F BiIZHAEE -
WIZ— AR AR AFRAFRTSL - MAEEAETT
A ER W E AN B % F B A T AERE
MEZHEARTETE - ARETHEMEE
NYPRHRBBR MR - U EERERME

BUER - SRR R EVE BRI T EURI
FHTFREBBRITHAER -

2017
—+kF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Sales of goods and services HEE m LIRS
Associates Jil/NE 51,317 83,006
Joint Ventures BEDE 1,673 421
52,990 83,427
2018 2017
—=E-N\fF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT

Purchase of goods and services R m R R
Associates G/NE]| 107,589 156,003
Joint Ventures B - -
107,589 156,003

2171
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

41 Related party transactions (continued)

N BEHAERS @

() The Group and its associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

The Group had the following outstanding balances with its associates
and joint ventures at the end of each Reporting Period:

Amounts due from:

RTINS TR

O AREEABE
(48)

RERER - NEE
KEUTREESR

N\,

REl e ERE

HEBERNRRAED

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETT

Associates i /N 8,943 142,960
Joint Ventures BEDE 241 -
9,184 142,960

Amounts due to:

R THIRTTH0R

2018 2017
—g-N\fF —E—t%

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARMT T

Associates iG] 58,553 52,740
Joint Ventures BETE 316 -
58,869 52,740
2018 2017
—BE-N\E —ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Loans to: M5 REER
Joint Ventures BEDE 19,750 29,750

All amounts due from or due to associates and joint ventures are

from trade sales and purchase.

FAA FEUER PR B R
KEEZIHERKE -

AIMAEREZ AN
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

M BEBAERS @)

41 Related party transactions (continued)
(d) Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key
management were as follows:

0 F2EEAEME

HITESRAEMEREEABZMESMT

2018 2017

=E-N\F —T—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Short-term benefits KSHAE A 17,284 7,846
Post-employment benefits RIKEF 797 1,295
18,081 9,141

Key management represents the executive directors and other
senior management personnel disclosed in the annual report. The
remuneration of key management personnel is determined with
reference of the performance to individuals and market trends.

42 Contingent liabilities

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in
payment of the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed
notes receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The
maximum exposure to the Group that may result from the default of these
endorsed and derecognised notes receivable at the end of each Reporting
Period is as follows:

A

ik

Outstanding endorsed notes receivable SEEY A S|

with recourse

\

§

42

BE

T

=)

I

I2EEABREFHRTRBECHTESERA
EREEAR - TEEEABZMETIRE
BAFRRETISBHBETE °

HAEE

RAFE - REBASE MR ILHERE TREER
ZHAGEAZMEREZE S NEAMBENFIA -
ARREERS  BRAESE ZREEREhE
BRFZPERITELRERER  BRAEEZ
EREEZRBIA - REREHR - NEEATEE
ARNZEEE R IR BREEMAREZ
BRAREBRIT

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEF T

FE W

A
b

824,706 747,174

These endorsed and derecognised notes receivable have a maximum
maturity of 1 year, and the total undiscounted cash flows of these
endorsed and derecognised notes receivable, representing the Group’s
maximum loss if the issuing banks fail to honour their notes and
guarantees, amounted to RMB824,706,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB747,174,000).

ong

ZEHERKRIFERZ BRREBRNERERHRA
—F R N\FF+ZA=FT—1H  ZEEEX
ERIEFER 2 BN R R R B IR IR © AR BN TIR
TAREHBREZEERERESE  AEBAR
#824,706,000 T 2 T BE(ZE—EF : ARK
747 174,0007T) °
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43 WIBHE A ]
(@) U<BESEG Automotive Germany GmbH

43 Acquisition of subsidiaries
(@ Acquisition of SEG Automotive Germany GmbH

On 2 January 2018, the Company completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in SEG Automotive Germany GmbH
(“SEG”) at a consideration of RMB4,539,973,000, comprising
RMB3,414,281,000 as consideration for the equity interest and
RMB1,125,692,000 as repayment of payables of SEG due to the
seller. This acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase
method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition
was approximately RMB613,626,000, which will not be deductible
for tax purpose. SEG is engaged in the manufacture of auto parts.
With the acquisition of SEG, the Group expect to achieve the synergy
between SEG and ASIMCO group in auto parts segment. Also, the
Group has the plan to utilize the cost advantage and customer
relationship in China to help SEG improve the profitability. Upon
completion of the acquisition, the Company has enlarged its shares
in auto parts market.

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

are as follows:

Non-current assets

Long-term receivables
Property, plant, and equipment
Intangible assets

Contract related assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalent
Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable

Inventories

Non-current liabilities

Other non-current liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liability

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Provisions
Tax liabilities

Net assets acquired

FRBEE

R UK

mE -~ BB L&A
BV ARE
EREMREE
ERERIREE

RBEE

RekReFED
B 5 KR E M EWK
EEEE

&

FREBEME

Hit3EREBIE
i
EERBRE

REBAE

g5 R EAMER K
BB
MEAE

WEEEEFE

WZZE—N\F—A_-H » KRQA) /K WHESEG
Automotive Germany GmbH ([ SEG |) 2 £RA% 4 - X
B A ARE4539,973,0007C © BIER AR
RABE AR #53,414,281,0007T &% (EESEGE & 7
B JE (< 7R TE A R 5 1,125,692,000 7T © 1t 4 B BA
WEESFHAADR « WIEATE £ TR 2
LA A ANRH613,626,0007T © SEGHE =R
BT o BIBUWEESEG - AEBEHER
SEGER TR 3T R} S B /A B T35 SB AV 175 R 3K
fE o AEETTEIFAPEOKNAESRREPS
BRAE BISEGIR m B FIE /1 o I ETEFER
% AARBAER/RET I 4SRN EE o

RIS AR EERBEAFEDT

RMB’000

AR®TT

3,314,273

119,446
2,179,989
799,689
12,227
202,922

5,906,057

688,233
1A 3,268,159

566,743
1,382,922

1,027,429

608,362
191,631
227,436

4,266,554

piz) 3,126,459
1,002,431
137,664

3,926,347




wHEERREERAERAT 0858 | 2 [H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

43 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) 43 WEBMTE ARl ()
(@) Acquisition of SEG Automotive Germany GmbH (@) UEESEG Automotive Germany GmbH(4%)
(Continued)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHEFTE AR E
RMB’000
AR®T
Consideration for the acquisition: WEERE -
Cash consideration paid EXNReNRE 4,468,189
Cash consideration payable ERReNRE 71,784
Total consideration BB 4,539,973
Less: net assets acquired B B EEFE (3,926,347)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEFTE £ 2 2 613,626
RMB’000
ARETT
Net cash outflow on acquisition: WEBEE 2RSSR HFE
Cash consideration paid BEEESNE 4,468,189
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balances acquired B REZRS RIS SEWERS (688,233)
3,779,956
Cash paid in 2017 T+ EFIHBEE (3,345,626)
434,330
The acquisition-related cost were RMB 202 million, and had been WEEBBER A A ARE2028 8T WEN

charged in 2017 financial statements. T FHPFmERNRE -
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43 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

(@ Acquisition of SEG Automotive Germany GmbH

(Continued)
Redemption liabilities

During the acquisition of SEG, the Group and the sellers, including
China Renaissance Capital Investment Inc., (“CRCI”) and Chizhou
Zhongan Zhaoshang Equity Investment LLP (Limited Partnership)
(“Zhongan Zhaoshang”) set up a limited partnership to acquire 100%
of SEG. The Group and the seller hold 69.11% and 30.89% equity
interests of the partnership, respectively. In the meantime, the Group
granted the sellers a put option to sell their 30.89% interests in the
partnership (the “Option Interest”) to the Group at the highest amount
using 3 different calculation method, including:

— Scenario a) the aggregate Capital Contributions made by the
sellers to the Partnership, plus an interest at the rate of 10%
per annum (compounded annually) on sellers’ each capital
contributions calculated on a daily basis for period from the date
of such capital contribution to the date when the sellers issue
a notice to the Group to exercise the put option (“Put Option
Notice”), minus the amount of cash and the value of securities
which have been distributed to the sellers on or before the date
of the Put Option Notice;

—  Scenario b) the fair Market value of the Option Interest;

—  Scenario ¢) the value of the Option Interest calculated pursuant
to the formula defined in the agreement.

As of 31 December 2018, the scenario a) represent the highest
amount of 3 different scenarios. Accordingly, the redemption liabilities
were recorded at the aggregate capital contributions made by the
seller plus an interest at the rate of 10% per annum (compounded
annually), with the principle amount of RMB1,070,837,000
and interest amount of RMB107,084,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,066,617,000).

The put option is exercisable by sellers at any time within the period
commencing from the third anniversary of the closing date. The seller
can choose and require the Company to settle the put option by cash
or issuance of new shares, however, the issuance of new shares is
still subject to applicable laws and the approval of the Company’s
board of directors and meetings of shareholders.

The results of SEG’s operations had been included in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements since the acquisition date. Revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2018 includes RMB13,946,319,000
in respect of the acquired auto parts entities.

43 WIBHE AT
(@) UBESEG Automotive Germany GmbH(4)

BEaE

U RESEGERRT - A& [ 82 & 75 (/& 4 China
Renaissance Capital Investment Inc.([ S21&& 74 |) &
MNP ZEEREREAREE(BERER)
(AR BREREE - LAUREESEG
FI100% - AEBEBE DR EZE Y
12 #969.11% 52.30.89% 7 © [RIFy - ZANER[EIHX
FTEH —BRGHE  URERU T =ETR
HEFRHFBENESSERAEBELEES
REZEBEERI0.89%Em ([ AE#E=]) - &
&

— BRABEFRABEEELNTERSR
MERZTEZ B 2B T MAEEE
HATEERE BB ([ RobEeman])
P E T & BT EREHELEFESF
ME(FES) RI0BVFLE - BHRREH
BBAMBHHZAENIRTEINERE R
EHBEDHE

— 1500 Wi REm AT TE

— &R R HET R AN E B
mfEfE

R-EBE—-N\F+-_A=+—0 BRa)A=1
TRBRNERSE Eit - ~AEEEEH
EH R EEREMN HIEFIEAFE10%:TER
T8 (A& A AK#1,070,837,0007T & F 8%
55 AR107,084,0007T) 25BRIEE(—Z
—tF+=-_A=+—8: ARKH1,066,617,000
JT) e

BT AR E| B R E = FFm e B AT
BTG IR - B i@ EY BRARF]
BRR T BITHRO S E R - A
BT NE B TERERLRARRES
G MBERAEHRLE -

SEGHYAR 2 XA E B WE A IR AKENGA
PBBRAR - BE-Z-N\F+-_A=+—
BIEFENBARRERE KB TETHHE
BB H) A JR13,946,319,0007T ©
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43 Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)
(b) Acquisition of ASIMCO International, Inc.

43

On 1 July 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in ASIMCO International, Inc. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method. The entity is engaged in

the trade of auto parts.

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

= PNGITE)
(b) BRI AR A A
R-T—N\E+A—A  ARFERKE S

MEIERAR QR 2 HHE - AR S
ENIR  REBNEEFE TETEMT -

RMB’000
AR®ETT
Non-current assets EREBEE 4,255
Property, plant, and equipment WE - BB REE 23
Deferred tax assets EETRIEEE 3,560
Other non-current assets HAib3EmehEE 672
Current assets REBEE 80,340
Cash and cash equivalent ReERRSEEY 8,664
Trade and other receivables B 5 R B FEW IR 33,428
Inventories PR 37,883
Other current assets HEtnEh&EE 365
Current liabilities REBAS 57,312
Trade and other payables B R EMEN A 57,224
Other current liabilities HibmshaE 88
Net assets acquired WBEEZE 27,283
Cash consideration paid BEREeNRE 1,284
Other gain and loss E ks & B8 25,999
Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash acquired W B AR ZIRE R (FIRWENIRS)
Cash consideration paid ENBRERE 1,284
Less: Balances acquired B W SR
Cash and cash equivalent ReRESEED (8,664)
Net inflow of cash — investing activities WERANFE-REEH (7,380)

207
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43 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Acquisition of ASIMCO International, Inc. (Continued)

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 is a loss
of RMB1,475,000 attributable to the additional business generated
by the acquired ASIMCO International, Inc.. Revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2018 includes RMB114,265,000 in respect of
the acquired auto parts entity.

ASIMCO International, Inc. mainly provides the trading service in
overseas countries for ASIMCO entities which were acquired by the
Group in 2017 as well as other third party customers. Considering
ASIMCO International, Inc. was part of the ASIMCO Group, and the
customer relationship, branding, and technology are not owned by
ASIMCO International, Inc. The Group achieved a gain on bargain
purchase from the acquisition of ASIMCO International, Inc.

Had the business combination of acquired ASIMCO International,
Inc. been effected at 1 January 2018, the revenue of the Group
would have been RMB26,125,548,000, and the profit for the year
would have been RMB1,049,947,000. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2018, noris it intended to be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of ASIMCO Group in 2017

As at 3 March 2017, the Company completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. and
ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd (Anhui), 63% equity interest in
ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd., 70% equity
interest in ASIMCO Foundry (Yizheng) Co., Ltd., 63% equity interest
in ASIMCO Camshaft (Yizheng) Co., Ltd and 100% equity interest
in CACG LTD. I. This acquisition has been accounted for using the
purchase method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was approximately RMB345,768,000. These entities are
engaged in the manufacture of auto parts. Upon completion of the
acquisition, the Company has duly entered the auto parts market.

43 WEME AR )
(b) WEBRFRIBERER AR @)

REBEE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—HLFEZF
RE B TR AR #51,475,000THY SR - 2B X
EREEKRERHEBREBRARMEE 2R
GNETS - MBI E T \F+_A=+—HIt
FEZFRBABIEREEWE 2 RET B
HEE 2 AR¥114,265,0007T °

THRIERERAREZNENERBEEE
AT tFURBNEHNERREME =)
EFRHEHIRE - ERITHHUBBRERA
BBEMPEEN—HD - FREE Mk
B IR SR BRARER - KM
PUEE R R AR A RN REBEREK

ﬁo

ME W BRI ERARA R ZEEEHNZ
T N\FE—A—BEAEW  AEEZRABE
AR #26,125,548,0007T * MEREFIEAAR
#£1,049,947,0007T » HEERHERFEARE -
W R—FERAAEETRER -_T—N\F—A—
AR BN T BRI R MR A R A& 54
BIEIE - IR VER R EE TR -

R-T—FRBTHHEE

R-E—tF=A=08 ' KRE)AURE T
RIS A R A 7] Koo # RHR A2 iR BN 1l
(RB)BRARZERE  FAEEMRERE
EIRBRAFI6I%IE - FIAETHEHEEAR
NRIT0%AZHE « BRI (B AR A A
63%% 1 K2 CACG LTD. | 100%R%H#E o 1t Uk B8 LA Uk
B 2okR - WEFMELENEESENAA
R#5345,768,0007C - 2 S BRBIFEETET
B o WHESER TS - ARARIEERBAAES
BT
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43 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) 43 U} ﬁ[‘ﬁ%" 7] (&)

(c) Acquisition of ASIMCO Group in 2017 (Continued) © RZZTE—tFRBELHEEE @)
RMB’000
ARET T
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,108,107
Property, plant, and equipment YE - BB LR 1,208,381
Intangible assets mEE 608,780
Leasehold land and land use right FRE T3 J2 + b {F FA 4 192,011
Deferred tax assets EEBIR R E 51,279
Investments in a joint venture N—EAREEENRE 27,906
Loans receivable fEURE TR 19,750
Current assets REEE 2,065,002
Trade and other receivables E 5 & E b EUNGRIE 1,301,286
Inventories PN 438,982
Cash and cash equivalent BE LIRS EEY 259,305
Pledged bank deposits EHRIRTTIFR 4,277
Other assets HtEE 11,152
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE 162,065
Deferred tax liabilty FIEREA &
Current liabilities RBAR 1,288,848
Trade and other payables B9 R EMEN A 1,082,334
Borrowings EBE 88,000
Provision B 78,062
Advances from customers 2B 20,688
Tax liabilities HIEBE 19,764
Net assets acquired WBEERE 2,722,196
Goodwill arising on acquisition: U BEELE AR
Cash consideration paid BERBESNRE 1,687,368
Consideration shares issued (a) EEITRERM@) 745,762
Plus: non-controlling interests (b) B0 FEIERR RS () 634,834
Less: net assets acquired B DB B EFE (2,722,196)
Goodwill arising on acquisition BB E A R 345,768
(a):  The fair value of the consideration shares is determined on the ordinary @: REEROHOAFEDIEREEHITEEREAQAR
shares issued and the share price of the Company as at the acquisition I iE B BRI R BIREE -
date.
(b):  The non-controlling interests in the acquiree at the acquisition date was () : %lelﬁz BE 77 A URBE B HA R IR AR A 25 T R FEIE AR i 2

DECHERERET WA B EEFENLSE -

RMB’000
AR¥T T

initially measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amount of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Net cash outflow on acquisition: B EE LAY IR M 58 ¢

Cash consideration paid BERRERE (1,687,368)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balances acquired B BURERIR e MR S E YR 259,305
Net inflow of cash — investing activities RERMAFE-—KETH (1,428,063)
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44 Reconciliation of liabilities and equity arising 44
from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities and equity arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

BREREMEE2EBRER CHER

TRAMAERENBEZDMEL 2 BENMERS
B BRREMIBASEY - RETDMELZE
BRSIBREREFIARITRERENTEEGZAR
ERERTEDRIS OB RBE TS AELNR

EREZZEFRAE -

Liabilities

associated with
transferred trade Redemption Interests
Borrowings receivables liability payable

HEEEN

B 5 RWEE
BE HENEE BEEE ERRIE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT ARBTT ARET T
At1 January 2018 R=ZZ—\F—A—H 1,009,000 225,297 1,066,617 203
Financing cash flows BMERERE 1,835,589 (124,445) - (103,278)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BEH B A ) - - - 1,462
Finance costs (note 9) BE AR (i EE9) - - 106,848 113,567
Currency exchange B3 23,238 - 4,456 (236)
Other (note) H i (bat) - 142,027 - -

At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF

+ZA=+—H 2,867,827 242,879 1,177,921 11,718

Note: The amount of liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables
represented the offset of trade receivables against liabilities associated with
transferred trade receivables to the extent of the settlement by the ultimate
end user of the equipment.

i CEENEZEUGUEEBNEESRENR
5 EUGIARIE D B R B 5 B AMRR 0
B ARBRGAPENERR -
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45 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, share premium and
other reserves.

Management of the Company reviews the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of Management, the Group will balance its overall
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

The gearing ratio ((total liabilities net cash and cash equivalent)/total

equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017
were as follows:

Gearing ratio B (GRS R

45 EXEBEE

AEEER AR  RRAEE NN R G R
EREGE - MRE TS BE( LA RiESEs
MRS BABIR - 252 BEAM BT -

AEENEARBREERARKNR RS ARG
Rz - ERERREER - B E M E R o

ARABEEESFEHNERRRE - (FRZAEHN
Hip—iR - EREEEZREANANBSEERE
MR o RIFEEENES  AREREBXN
B8 %ﬁﬁk SHEEGREEREES T
HEBARRE -

AEBR-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—BEK_ZT—+F
TZA=t—HfaEEERLX(BERERR
S RIVEEEY) TR BFE)WT

2017
—TE—F

106% 53%
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46 Financial instruments 46 TRITH
Categories of financial instruments TR T AN

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Financial assets: TRIEE :
Financial assets at fair value: BRATEYIENEREE
Financial assets at fair value through AAFEFTEAHEEEHEA
profit or loss BENCHEE 355,539 -
Financial assets at fair value through other WAFEE=E BHESFHA
comprehensive income Hib 2 EWERY
TRVEE 3,986,827 -
Derivative financial instruments PTHESHMIA 4,401 -
Financial assets at amortised cost: BB EK AT EC ERVEE ¢
Trade and other receivables (excluding B 5N E A fEUREIE (TR IETE R
prepayment, China tax recoverable) 18 K& A B A Uk B FTE) 5,809,945 5,521,297
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEY 2,746,038 1,745,177
Bank deposits RITIER 884,480 954,205
Long-term receivables RHEIEUEE 554,161 294,211
Transferred trade receivables DEENE S EWRE 242,879 225,297
Finance lease receivables =i = e e 53,466 69,951
Loans receivable from associates and FEUER & AR R
a joint venture —MEELERER 19,750 53,750
Other financial assets Hih & E = 62,000
AFS investments AHHERE = 50,580
Total 4=t 14,057,486 8,976,468
Financial liabilities: TRIBE -
Financial assets at fair value: BRATEYIENEREE
Derivative financial instruments PTHESBMIA 35,179 -
Liabilities at amortised cost REHENATTENAG
Trade and other payables B 5 REMFER IR
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TEEESHEE) 7,289,396 4,340,507
Borrowings == 2,867,827 1,009,000
Redemption liabilities BOoafE 1,177,921 1,066,617
Total = 11,370,323 6,416,124

47 REHEREE

R N\F+_A=+—HBE-_ZT—HAE=A
Tt NBEZeERBRSRAMBHRERBE Y
AR BB A EARHKBEIR -

47 Events after the reporting period

There were no material subsequent events during the period from 31
December 2018 to approve date of these consolidated financial statements
by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019.
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48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 48 XAFREENB AT ZFHE
company
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 R-E-N\ER-E—+E+_A=+—0 AR
are as follows. BB AR ZFFIBMT ©
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
MR ERORBERE AEEEEEZR
HWEBATERE TEER RYEERE IMERHEE RAERDL

Directly held:
BERE -
EMEREFEEERAF Manufacture of The PRC RMB100,000,000 100.00 100.00
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic hydraulic products H AR #100,000,0007T
Electrical Control Co., Ltd. EERBEM
MR EBR AT Manufacture of The PRC RMB100,000,000 68.89 68.89
Zhengzhou Coal Mining machinery mining machinery H AR #100,000,0007T
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. R
DM EEE RSB YA i Trading of raw materials ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 100.00 100.00
BRAHE and products H AE#10,000,0007T

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group RRRERE
Material Trading Co., Ltd.

DM EHREERERAT Manufacture of The PRC RMB50,000,000 53.21 53.21
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face mining machinery H AR #50,000,0007T

Machinery Co., Ltd. R
LR EE BB ER AT Manufacture of The PRC RMB50,000,000 54.00 54.00
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group mining machinery H AR 50,000,0007T

Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd. EERTEER
BINZMEEERRAR Hotel Managementand ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 100.00 100.00
Zhengzhou Zhima Street Industrial Co., Ltd. construction service H AK100,000,0007T

BIEE B RIRE RS

DREBEBRNEREELA Manufacture of The PRC RMB1,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
Zhengzhou Coal Mine Machinery Co., Ltd. mining machinery H AR #1,000,000,0007C

HERE
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Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Directly held (continuea):
EBERF(E) -

SERARNTERETAR
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Siberia Co., Ltd.

BRUEERE S (BE)BRAR

ZMJ International Trading (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd.

PEBERERAT
ZMJ Germany GmbH

W (M) BRAF
ZMJ America, Inc.

BEBCRANT)BRAF
ZMJ Australia Pty Ltd

DIBTERMGER)ARAR
ASIMCO Technology, Inc.

CACGLTD. I([CACG 1)) (“CACG I)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERAR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
Principal activity operation
MR
TEEK R B B
Aftermarket service of Russia
mining machinery B AEHA
RERMERRY
Sale and purchase of Hong Kong
mining machinery e
THE MR IR
Sale and purchase of Germany
mining machinery/ =
research and
development of
mining products
THE RITB R,
FREIRIEE M
Sale and purchase of Canada
mining machinery mex
THE MR IR
Sale and purchase of Australia
mining machinery BT
THE MR IR R
&
Sale and purchase of auto ~ The PRC
parts and components
HE MR BT
Sale of auto parts Cayman Islands

HERET T HEHS

48

AABETEMB AT ZFHE @)

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid up Proportion of ownership
share capital/ interest and voting power
registered capital held by the Group
ERTRARKRE FEEEEEER
EMEREE FREBOL
2017
—T—tF
%
USD100,000 100.00 100.00
100,000% 7T
USD7,500,000 100.00 100.00
7,500,000 7T
EUR1,000,000 100.00 100.00
1,000,00081 75
CAD100 100.00 100.00
100407T
USD200,000 100.00 100.00
200,000 7T
RMB1,200,000,000 100.00 100.00
AR #1,200,000,0007C
RMB418,970 100.00 100.00
AR®4189707C
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company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARERE

Indirectly held:
RHERA -

BMERZRERDF
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd.

BB MR AR AR
([ EPEHARARIEL])

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Gelin Material Technology Co., Ltd.
(“ZMJ Gelin Material”)

IR H (T BRAF
(RN )

ASIMCO Camshaft (Yizheng) Co., Ltd
(*ASIMCO Camshaft’)

BRI EREERAR AR
([RFRIEIR])

ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng)
Co., Ltd ("ASIMCO Shuanghuan”)

BT HRSERR AR
([EEFRIEEE])

ASIMCO Foundry (Yizheng) Co., Ltd
(“ASIMCO Foundry”)

AR EE (LT BRAF
([3@ErRILE])

ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd.
(Shanxi) (“ASIMCO Shanxi”)

AR EIREN R (%)
BRRE([ZRFTRIN])
ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd

(Anhui) (*ASIMCO NVH")

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Principal activity

TEEH

Sale of molding and
metal material
KERSBMEHEE

Sale of molding and
metal material
KERSBMEHEE

Sale of auto parts
HERBETIH

Sale of auto parts
HERBETIH

Sale of auto parts
HERBETIH

Sale of auto parts

HERETHIT

Sale of auto parts
HERBETIH

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

48 KATEEMB LR ZHER @)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
MR
R &E B

The PRC
PE

The PRC

HE

The PRC
PR

The PRC
PR

The PRC
PR

The PRC
PR

The PRC
PR

Nominal value

of issued and

fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRBEREK,
AMEAHEE

RMB30,000,000
AE#30,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB118,043,007
AR #118,043,0077T

RMB229,703,231
ARH229,703,2317C

RMB49,667 431
AR49,687,4317T

RMB420,362,000
AR #420,362,0007T

RMB252,200,000
AR #252,200,0007T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEBRERER
RREAAL

51.93 51.93
55.26 55.26
63.00 63.00
63.54 63.00
- 70.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
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48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 48 XATEEMBARIZFE @)
company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
HEmRL DRTRBERE FAEEREEER
o INGIEE TEEK R EE HMEAEE KRB
2017
—E—+F
%
Indirectly held (continued):
RiERE () -
OMBERELEERAF Sale of auto parts The PRC RMB2,450,000,000 75.51 75.51
([ZMEE]D HE BT H AR H2,450,000,0007T
Zhengzhou Shengji Mechanical and
Electrical Equipment Company Limited
(“Znengzhou Shengji”)
AREEEBRERAT Sale of auto parts The PRC EUR310,000,000 100.00 100.00
Hong Kong SMG International Co., Limited ~ $& 58T 2f ¢ H 310,000,0008% 7T
DERIBR AR AR Sale of auto parts The USA UsD1 100.00 100.00
ASIMCO International Inc. SHERET MY x5 E
SMG Acquisition Fund, L.P. Sale of auto parts Cayman Islands EUR499,999,905 100.00 100.00
HE BT HEHS 499,999 905 7T
SMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings S.ar.l.  Sale of auto parts Luxembourg EUR12,000 100.00 100.00
SHERET MY ERE 12,000817C
New Neckar Autoparts Holding GmbH Sale of auto parts Germany EUR25,000 100.00 100.00
HERET I =E 25,0008 7T
New Neckar Autoparts Holdings and Sale of auto parts Germany EUR625,000,500 100.00 100.00
Operations GmbH & Co. KG HERET I =E 625,000,500 7T
RERSEERERAF Sale of auto parts Germany EUR25,000 100.00 100.00
SEG Automotive Germany GmbH HERET M =5 25,0008 7T
RERAESHEREERAR Sale of auto parts Brazil EUR50,300,715.57 99.99 100.00

SEG Automotive Components Brazil Ltda. SHERET MY B 50,300,715.57B17T



EINREERMEBRN AR AR 201851

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE

48 KATEEMB LR ZHER @)

48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HE AR EB

Indirectly held (continued):
RHERA (B) :

Starters E-Components Generators
Automotive Hungary Kit.

REBAHE(FE)BRAA

SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd.

RBEAEHEERAR
SEG Automotive India Private Limited

RERAREILERR AT
SEG Automotive North America LLC

BB AEERERAA
SEG Automotive France S.A.S.

RERABAAKAEH
SEG Automotive Japan Corporation

Principal activity

TEEH

Sale of auto parts
HE BT

Sale of auto parts
HE BT

Sale of auto parts
HE BT

Sale of auto parts

HERETHMT

Sale of auto parts
HERETIH

Sale of auto parts
HE BT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
MR
R &E B

Hungary
&) 7F

The PRC
PR

India
g

North America

=M

France

EE

Japan

A7

Nominal value

of issued and

fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRBEREK,
AMEAHEE

EUR15,050,000
15,050,000A 7T

EUR39,292,092.87
39,292,092.87E4 7T

EUR134,395.95
134,395,956/ 7

EURO
OBA7T

EUR50,000
50,0004 7C

EUR736,982.46
736,982,464 7T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEBRERER
RREAAL

100.00

100.00

99.99

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00
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48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 48 XATEEMBARIZFE @)
company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
HEmRL DRTREERES AEEFERER
MBARERE TEEK RIEEHRE FMEREE KRB
2017
—Z—+tF
%
Indirectly held (continued):
BZBE(E)
RERSERATHERRELAT Sale of auto parts Mexico EUR486,633.91 99.99 100.00
SEG Automotive Mexico Manufacturing, HEERBETIM B 486,633.91E 7T
S.A. deC.V.
RERSERATREBRELTE Sale of auto parts Mexico EUR89,994.28 99.99 100.00
SEG Automotive Mexico Service, HE BT 2 89,994 28E 7T
S.deR.L.deClV.
RERSERATHERR LT Sale of auto parts Mexico EUR95,008.49 99.99 100.00
SEG Automotive Mexico Sales, HE BT 2 95,008.498 7T
S.deRL deClV.
RERSEFETARAT Sale of auto parts Portugal EUR25,000 100.00 100.00
SEG Automotive Portugal, Unipessoal Lda. HERETEMT BET 25,0008 7T
RERAEEFERAR Sale of auto parts South Africa EUR59,711.7 100.00 100.00
SEG Automotive South Africa HERET M 3k 59,711.7E0T
Proprietary Limited
RERSEERERAF Sale of auto parts Korea EUR36,834.26 100.00 100.00
SEG Automotive Korea Co. Ltd SHERET MY e 36,834.26E1 7T
EERSERTTARAR Sale of auto parts Spain EUR9,616,000 100.00 100.00
SEG Automotive Spain, S.AU. HERBETEHMH ili%; 9,616,008 7
RERAEEAMNERAR Sale of auto parts ltaly EUR500,000 100.00 100.00

SEG Automotive ltaly S.r.l. SHETET I BEAF 500,0008% 7T
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49 Information about the statement of financial 49 FREAARQ AR R K 2 ER

position of the Company

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—t5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 1,009,045 1,151,065
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE 4 N b R 150,147 217,182
Investment properties EME 165,928 44,009
Intangible assets mAEE 2,661 1,495
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIEE 5,632,994 2,629,331
Investments in associates REFENE 2B 379,173 438,601
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary U B8 — BB A RIFBA FIA = 2,307,286
Available-for-sale investments At HE ZIKE - 415
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss ~ LAAFE(EETE B HE BT A
BaemEE 255 -
Deferred tax assets FEERRIBEE 159,191 168,641
Finance lease receivables R & EEWRIA 28,508 38,476
Long term receivables REAEUGRIA 259,701 152,354
Loans receivable from subsidiaries JEWHIB AR E 75,495 71,876
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 7,863,098 7,220,731
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FRE T4 N A+ b PR A - 5,236
Inventories e} 1,609,284 1,072,039
Loans receivable from an associate JEU— & AR ER - 24,000
Loans receivable from subsidiaries FEWM B AR ER 183,000 150,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAFEW A 1,836,688 3,683,350
Transferred trade receivables BEENE S ENFIE 242,879 225,297
Finance lease receivables mE R EEK A 24,958 31,475
Long term receivables REA WS 131,926 141,857
Tax recoverable A] U B 55 18 - 17,374
Financial assets at fair value through other AT EREBEZSTA
comprehensive income Hib 2=
SREE 2,705,345 -
Bank deposits RITEN 841,746 768,691
Cash and cash equivalents ReENIREZEY 1,251,325 1,491,020
Total current assets WRBEE 8,827,151 7,610,339
Total assets HMmEE 16,690,249 14,831,070
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49 Information about the statement of financial
position of the Company (Continued)

49 BEEARTAUBRRR 2ER (@)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt ARETT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables 5 REMERRE 3,431,646 2,579,609
Contract liabilities ARIAE 1,176,581 -
Advances from customers ZERE - 684,988
Tax liabilities HEAE 9,380 -
Borrowings BE 86,000 80,000
Liabilities associated with transferred trade HEEENE S EIGE
receivables BB E 242,879 225,297
Total current liabilities REBEEARE 4,946,486 3,569,894
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREAE
Other non-current liabilities HiIEREBaE 52,911 35,789
Borrowings gg 730,000 818,000
Total non-current liabilities FkRBEERARE 782,911 853,789
Total liabilities FER=R 5,729,397 4,423,683
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B B
Share capital A A 1,732,471 1,732,471
Share premium B8 735 (B 4,199,421 4,199,421
Reserves (note (a)) e (F5E @) 5,028,960 4,475,495
Total equity e 10,960,852 10,407,387
Total equity and liabilities ERkaEEn 16,690,249 14,831,070
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49 Information about the statement of financial 49 EREAARLRIMBERRKZ2ER &)
position of the Company (Continued)

Note (a) M7 (@)

Statutory Cash flow

Surplus hedging Other Retained
Reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
ZERH BRERE
& EREE  HtRf  REER Ht

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETIT ARBTIT ARETT ARBTET

Balance at 1 January 2017 R-ZE—tF—A—H2#&H 552,539 71,020 117,664 3,629,265 4,370,488
Profit and total comprehensive income FREFREEBALE
for the year - - - 172,355 172,355
Other comprehensive expense for the year — 4F I E fih 2 52 - (71,020) 22,729 - (48,291)
Transfer P 17,236 - - (17,236) -
Dividends (note 14) BB (FfEE14) - - - (19,057) (19,057)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=A
—t+t—HzZ&% 569,775 - 140,393 3,765,327 4,475,495
Change in accounting policy erHEE - - (42,516) 42,516 -
Restated at 1 January 2018 N_ZE—N\F—H—HE% 569,775 - 97,877 3,807,843 4,475,495
Profit and total comprehensive income FREF R EEB AL
for the year - - - 640,088 640,088
Transfer g 64,009 - - (64,009) -
Dividends (note 14) &2 (Pi3E14) - - - (86,623) (86,623)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=A

=t+—HZz&EH 633,784 - 97,877 4,297,299 5,028,960
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Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014

—E—tF  ZF% ZE2-AF ZT-MF

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREF T AREFTT AREFTT AREF T

Revenue WA 26,011,730 7,546,701 3,628,530 4,510,858 6,124,457

Cost of sales SHER A 21,159,849 5,899,296 2,915,417 3,653,833 5,070,466

Profit before tax B T4 B3 1,288,738 423,026 37,384 30,365 232,584

Profit for the year ERHEH 938,908 340,160 36,648 10,609 193,334
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATEEER

A

Owners of the Company A/NG) e 832,344 284,250 61,997 42,198 205,194

Non-controlling interests R 106,564 55,910 (25,349) (31,589) (11,860)

938,908 340,160 36,648 10,609 193,334

Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #HRE M EMRARBFE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

sl T tF —FRxFf —T-aF —T@OF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥ET T AREFTT AREFT ARETT ARETTT

Non-current assets ERBEE 9,336,011 8,503,188 2,520,487 3,245,328 3,135,657

Current assets RBEE 18,672,760 10,048,141 9,407,688 8,804,159 9,060,216

Total assets mEE 28,008,771 19,451,329 11,928,175 12,049,487 12,195,873

Non-current liabilities FnBaE 4,013,211 2,071,202 4,750 14,784 17,163

Current liabilities REAE 11,704,716 5,804,820 2,164,895 2,412,244 2,594,916

Total liabilities ek 15,717,927 7,876,022 2,169,645 2,427,028 2,612,079

Equity attributable to owners of the XA AR BEfE(S

Company s 11,457,210 10,800,206 9,674,173 9,502,572 9,432,318

Non-controlling interests JEIERR I 833,634 775,101 84,357 119,887 151,476

Total equity R 12,290,844 11,575,307 9,758,530 9,622,459 9,583,794

Total equity and liabilities EEREELE 28,008,771 19,451,329 11,928,175 12,049,487 12,195,873
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